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SUTTER COUNTY
970 Klamath Lane
SuPermtendent on ot O 500

% of §¢ ho OI S Phone (530) 822-2900

Tom Reusser, Superintendent Fax (530) 671-3422

February 2, 2023

Dr. Paul Keefer

Pacific Charter Institute

1401 EI Camino Ave #510

Sacramento, CA 95815

Sent via Electronic Mail to paul.keefer@pacificcharters.org

Dear Dr. Keefer,

Pursuant to your January 19, 2023 request and Education Code § 47605(k)(2), with this letter please
find the following items:

An audio recording of the portion of the January 18, 2023 Sutter County Board of Education
Meeting wherein the agenda item and action items related to the Petition of the New Pacific
School Yuba City was discussed and denied;
A Certified Transcript of that recording;
The Board Packet for the of the January 18, 2023 Sutter County Board of Education Meeting,
which includes the Agenda;
The Minutes from the January 18, 2023 Sutter County Board of Education Meeting;
The Resolution denying the Petition of the New Pacific Charter School Yuba City with
attachments; and
The emails from the Board Members who voted to deny that were sent following the meeting,
but which list in writing the reasons stated during the meeting for their denial. These emails
were incorporated into the resolution. The authors and titles of those emails are as follows (title
being the title of the PDF they are sent to you as):

o Harijit Singh: FW_Resoltion to Deny Charter HS

o Victoria Lachance: Deny Petition Resolution No. 22-23V

0 June McJunkin: FW_Resolution to Deny Charter

* Includes the attachment titled “Charter Comments”

Please confirm receipt of these items, and let me know if you have any questions thereon. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Elizabeth T. Bhatti
Director, Compliance Officer
Sent Electronically to Expedite Delivery
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APPEARANCES:

June McJunkin
Tom Reusser

Joe Hendri x

Mer cedes Ger al do
Rachel Kennedy
Eri c Gar ber

Paul Keefer

Heat her Marshal |
Ti m Loboda
Harjit Singh
Gury Pamma
Victoria Lachance
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M5. MCJUNKIN.  Okay. In that case, | am going
to close the neeting and open the public hearing. Now,
let's see, under this public hearing there are rul es.
Let's -- It's the public hearing for New Pacific Schoo
Yuba City appeal of the Unified City school district's
deni al of the charter petition

Pursuant to California Education Code 47605, a
public hearing will be held at Sutter County Board of
Education to receive public testinony and i nput from
the comunity regarding New Pacific School Yuba Cty's
charter petition. The petition was received on appeal
fromYuba City Unified School District's denial of the
charter petition on August 23, 2022.

And pursuant to Education Code Section
470605B, and Title 5CCR, Section 11967D, the governing
board nust nmake a determ nati on whether to grant or
deny the charter petition within 90 days of its receipt
of the petition. Provided, however, that the date may
be extended by an additional 30 days if both parties
agree to the extension. The Sutter County
superi ntendent of schools received the new Pacific
School charter -- Yuba Gty petition on Septenber 21st,
2022.

And we are operating on the 30 day extension

in reference to two brand new board nenbers who needed

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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a mnute to read the binder, that's this. And so
obviously we -- we are on the second to | ast day before
the 30 day --

MR, REUSSER. The 90 day.

M5. MCJUNKIN. -- the 90 day.

MR REUSSER. The 90 day.

M5. MCJUNKIN: -- the -- the window is closed.

Ckay. At that -- Joe, what are you doi ng over
t here?

MR. HENDRI X: | have a PowerPoint to wal k us

t hrough the people who --
M5, MCIJUNKI N
MR, HENDRI X: Ch, |
am

M5. MCIJUNKI N

specifically to consider the |evel

support for the petition.

Is it nore than three m nutes?

woul d i magi ne.

No nore than five.

Let's nove it al ong.

So what got us here

| ot of people here, Joe.

MR. HENDRI X: We do.

M5, MCIJUNKI N:

MR. HENDRI X: W have | egal

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Cone on.

MR. HENDRI X: Ckay.
tonight is for we received the petition.
12th, the county board --

board held a public hearing

On Novenber

Yes,

We have a

requirements.

On Cct ober

of public input and

1st, our staff

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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conduct ed capacity interviewwith the -- with the

petitioners, which is considered best practices. On
the 28th, we published our report and findings of fact
that included our recommendati on regardi ng petition.

On Decenber 14th, the board and the petitioners
mutual |y agreed to extend the deadline for the board to
make the deci sion.

Toni ght, what we're going to do, the board is
here for this public hearing to nake a fina
determ nation on the approval or denial of the charter
petition. The petitioners shall have equivalent tine
and procedures to present evidence and testinony to
respond to the staff recommendati ons and fi ndi ngs.

The order for the public hearing is we'll do
an overview of the criteria for reviewing a charter
petition. W'Ill have public input. Then the county
office staff will do a quick, we've already done an
i n-depth overview of our staff report. Tonight, we'll
do a high level overview, the entire report is
published in the board packet. And then after the
petitioner is able to present, the board menbers who
are inclined to deny the petition will have the
opportunity to list the reasons for which they believe
the petition should be deni ed.

The reason this is in hereis if a-- if a

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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charter petition is denied, there has to be witten
findings of fact that go along with it. So the | ast
time here before we close out, we'll give the board an
opportunity to identify any findings that they may
have, if they're inclined to.

So where that takes us to, I'Il do ny quick
overview on the criteria. It goes back through the
Code, | won't read all of these, because I won't nake
five-mnutes. But | won't read all of them They're
all up here for you to read.

So sonme highlights fromthe criteria. The
board shall grant a charter for the nom nation of a
school under this part, if it is satisfied that
granting the charter is consistent with sound
educational practice and when the interest of the
community in which the school is proposing to |ocate.

The aut horizer al so nust consider the academ c
-- the school proposes to serve. So those two things
have to be considered. The board shall not deny the
petition for the establishnent of a charter schoo
unless it nmakes witten factual findings, setting forth
specific facts to support one or nore of these
follow ng findings.

One is the charter school presents an unsound

educational program Again, |'mnot going to read them

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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all, so just fill in the gaps. [I'll highlight them
Two, the petitioners are denonstrably unlikely to
successfully inplement the programthat's set forth in
the petition. Three, the petition does not contain the
nunber of signatures required by Code. Four the
petition does not contain an affirmati on of each of the
condi tions described in Subdivision E of the Code.

Five, petition does not contain reasonably
conpr ehensi ve descriptions of all of the 15 el enments
set forth in the Code. Six, the petition does not
contain a declaration of whether or not the charter
school shall be deemed the exclusive enployer, public
enpl oyer of the enployees. That's a |ot of code on
that one. Seven, so this is where 801505 kicked in and
it added two new requirenents. One is comunity
i nterest under A Code 47605C7, | just refer to that one
is C7. And fiscal inpact under 47605C8. And in the
bottom in order to deny based on C7, the district nust
make the follow ng findings.

So that's in order to deny on community
interest, the -- the district, or in this case the
board, nust nake the following findings. One is the
charter schools denonstrably unlikely to serve the
interest of the entire community. This finding nust

i nclude an analysis in consideration of the fiscal

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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i mpact .

The district nust al so describe the specific
facts and circunstances they anal yzed in considering
the following factors. So if any board nmenbers wonder
why |'m saying district, the Code considers the county
of fice board as the district when it comes to the
boar d.

So at the end of that one, the district nust
al so describe the specific facts and circunstances that
anal yze and consider these following factors. The
extent in which the proposed charter school was
substantially underm ne existing services, acadenic
of ferings, or programmtic offerings. And whether the
proposed charter would duplicate a program And |'1]I
give you a nonent to read out the rest of that one.

Eight, to deny the petition based on fisca
i npact under Section C8, the school district nust
denonstrate it is not positioned to absorb the fisca
impact. The law specifies this clearly.

One is the school district neets the statutory
criteriaif it has a qualified interimcertification
and the superintendent of schools certifies that
approving the charter school would result in the schoo
district having a negative interimcertification.

I f the school district is -- has a negative

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787

116


http://nygardreporting.com
http://nygardreporting.com

accs-jun23item03

Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 14 of 777
01/18/2023 TRANSCRIPT Page 11

© 00 N oo o A~ W N P

N I R N S T O O S S = N
g A W N P O © 0O N O 0o M W N P O

interimcertification or if the school district is
under state receivership. Under those conditions, it
coul d be denied under C8, under fis -- the district can
absorb the fiscal inpact.

W are now at public coments. Did | do okay?

M5. MCJUNKIN:.  Yes. Thank you very mnuch

MR. HENDRI X: So on the public comments, we're
asking that the speakers take three m nutes. You can
ignore comng to the podium If you'd Iike, just stand
up and -- and address the board.

M5. GERALDO.  Thank you. M nane's Mercedes
Geral do, and I amthe CSA president for Yuba City
Unified Chapter 265, and | stopped at the Yuba Gty
Unified board neeting as well, when this charter cane
up. And we still have concerns about a site, a safe
site for another furbished charter school.

We have concerns about the transportation
The Pacific Charter has said that they're -- they're
servicing, umm at-risk students. Wll, those at-risk
students do not have transportation to school, and
especially if we don't even know where the school is.
So that really hasn't been addressed.

Yuba City Unified does not have enough funds
right now [inaudible 00:09:27] , so that's definitely

an inmpact to our [inaudible 00:09:27] in the district.

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.

117

1-877-438-7787


http://nygardreporting.com
http://nygardreporting.com

accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 15 of 777

01/18/2023 TRANSCRIPT Page 12

© 00 N oo o A~ W N P

N I R N S T O O S S = N
g A W N P O © 0O N O 0o M W N P O

And al so, food service. How are these kids going to
get fed? Is this -- they just bring their lunch every
day? Again, these are at-risk kids that maybe don't
have enough noney. |Is that going to be absorbed in
t hrough the city Unified food services departnent as
well? So those are questions that we still have. And
we encourage the board to deny the petition

MR. HENDRI X:  Ckay.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Anyone el se? Rachel? kay.

M5. KENNEDY: Good evening. M name is Rache
Kennedy, |I'ma CSA | abor relations representative for
YCUSC, and SCOE West, but I'malso yours. 1In PCs
original petition to YUCSD, they didn't have a | ocation
for the school

In the original presentation they had |ike
three or four sites listed, none of themwere secured.
None of them were safe |locations. As a matter of fact,
one of them was on H ghway 20. And we went over how
that's unsafe. You' re going to have kids that can't
cross the street. And that still has not been resol ved
as far as | can tell.

As a matter of fact, in the petition response
fromSCOS to them it let themknow that they still
didn't have a | ocation and needed one, and didn't have

one. And as far as | can tell currently, they still

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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don't have one. As a matter of fact, in their Decenber
response to the county, they ask for nore tinme to
secure a location. How can you approve a petition for
a charter school that doesn't even have a | ocation?

|"mnot quite sure how that works. 1In
addition to all the other concerns, we already have,
you have to have a school site. And we don't have one
yet. W respectfully ask the board to decline. Thank
you.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Anyone el se?

MR. REUSSER: | would like to say sonething.
If it means anything. | had the opportunity | ast
Friday to go visit the school, which | did not do
before, | sent ny staff. | went with Kash (phonetic).

It's unfortunate he is not here tonight to be
able to speak his opinion on that. But | would like to
say, as | wal ked through that school, it rem nded ne of
the very first school that | worked at, Wnship School
District before it was Robbins. It is run exactly the
sane.

| 1 ooked at what they were doing with the
kids. | looked at the prograns that they were
of fering, keeping it small but very intimate. And it
-- it remnded ne, and that's what | said to -- to Kash

when | left, | said, it remnded ne of like this is how

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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| |l earned how to teach right here. Exactly the sane.

Except they have nore points in -- in
particul ar which they have marks of checking for
| earning, different stops that are nmuch nore -- happen
often, much nore in schools today than they did before.
Because, you know, we just went before and that's what
it seemed like. So they're much nore on top of things.
So | just wanted to share that with you, was that | was
qui te i npressed.

MR. GARBER Thank you. M nane is Eric
Garber, and | had the pleasure of hosting the two. |I'm
the principal of the -- the charter school. And | just
want to point out a couple things that don't show up in
t he book itself.

And first and forenost is, | guess, a m ssion.
Have a | ook in-person, also nost inportant thing for
parents. | have -- |'ma daughter -- a father of four
daughters. And I've -- |'ve got the chance to
celebrate the start of school with them

And if you have a child or a grandchild that
goes to school, the first thing you care about is how
do they feel at school. Like how do they feel when
t hey wal k out around the canpus? How do they feel when
t hey cone honme? What are they tal king about?

If they're not excited about it, especially

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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when they're four and five, you're going to | ose them
for along tine. And we -- we designed this school
where that's our primary pur -- purpose, when the kids
first get there that they feel they' re apart of the
school .

We're trying to make school nore fun for
students. We're not just trying to get the student to
school, we're trying to get the school to the student.
And so we're continuing our ability to keep the
conmunity small, so we can |learn every single child.
And we know it's working, because whenever a child is
m ssing fromthe school it changes how the school feels
and we mss the kid. Because the class is different
when they're not there.

We have a foster parent that has 27 foster
kids, that has gone -- five right now W have three
of her foster kids at our school. Al of them had
struggling rel ationships with school before they got
here. One of themwas a daily runner. He |oves
school. He got up at 4:00 in the norning the first
coupl e of weeks just to get to school. He had his
shoes on, he was sitting there ready to go.

He -- we actually have had a new protocol in
pl ace just for him Because whenever a teacher is

absent, we have to call first our sub and second we

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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call his famly. Because it's a big deal when the
teacher's absent, because he's built that relationship
because that's necessary for him So that's a

conbi nation we figured out. He's so anxi ous because he
has abandonnent issues. And he feels like if his
teachers absent, she has abandoned him she's not

com ng back. And so we call them and we |et them
know.

She said that we're the first school she's
been apart of -- actually 34 school districts at this
point in her life right now, we're the first district
-- first school that's gotten it right, at |east for
her famly. And that's the whole point | want to make,
is every school is different. No matter how nuch they
appear simlar on paper, every school is unique. And
we've built | feel a very unique programthat's going
to neet the need of sonme kid in your city, sonme kid in
your district, that's not currently being net.

So the best schools have a certain percent
that the school doesn't fit for them And we found
several of those kids, those are the average kids, the
one's that the school didn't connect to. And we found
all of the students that we handl ed, we accepted
several pioneers that wanted to join us before we were

there and since other parents have heard about it word

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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of nouth, we hit our enrollnment limt. W're full
ri ght now because the famly's found a connection, they
found a need, and we -- they found a place for their
child.

There's so many other things | could talk
about that won't fit into three mnutes, so | can't.
But that was the nost inmportant thing to ne, and when I
put up the thing they want to be apart of sonething
like this. And we had to turn away teachers, because
there's still many that want to try sonmething like this
for a bit. Sonmething small, sonething different, where
| know every single parent, | know every single kid. |
know the cars they drive. | welcone themto school
every norning. And that's sonmething that's special for
the famlies and we're a partner with them

So | just want to nmake sure that |ike that
part is clear too. And that's what | got to experience
today. And if you go see themall tonorrow, you'd
experience our 100th day of school tomorrow. And so
we're all going to dress as 100-year-old peopl e and
cel ebrate our first hundred days together in the
nor ni ng.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Thank you.

MR. GARBER: Thank you.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Thanks. WAt a mnute.

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ms. President, | don't
want to be out -- out of order, but where is the school
| ocated |i ke physically. Were -- like if | was com ng
in--1in--

MR- GARBER In Roseville, it's 143 dinton
Avenue.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. KEEFER:. Can | present? | wanted to
present earlier. | just wanted to speak to -- ny nane
is Paul Keefer, and | amthe petitioner.

We can't have a location until we have a
charter. And all the negotiations for the | ocations
are done in close session, nuch |ike you do, or else we
woul d be not doing fiduciary duty to the State of
California, and by losing our ability to negotiate a
reasonable price. So that's the reason why there's not
a facility |l ocated or declared. The school cones
first, then the facility.

As far as school |unches, we contract with the
-- the high school district in Roseville for |unches,
and so we contract with them So that's how we're able
to feed the students. And safety is priority one,
period. And we would | et you know exactly where the
space is, and we follow all the guidelines, both the

State of California and the |ocal zoning and buil ding

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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lots. As -- or else we don't open the doors, and
that's what the city expects fromus. So thank you.

M5. MARSHALL: Good evening. M nane is
Heat her Marshall, and | amthe admi nistrator for Sutter
Peak Charter Acadeny, which is one of your | ocal
charters. As a public-school teacher and an
adm nistrator for the last 27 years, | always make
decisions in the sane way. And that way is that by
asking nyself what's best for the kids. So when |
t hi nk about those decisions, that is truly the first
guestion that conmes to ny mnd every single tine is
what's best for Kids.

And | know, firsthand, that school choice and
having options for kids is what's best for kids. As a
nom of three, two of whom are adults --understand.
They were all raised by ne, but they all needed
sonething just a little bit different to make sure that
they were acadenmically successful. So |'ve really had
t he opportunity over the 27 years of ny -- ny tine as
an educator to learn that every student is different,
every student has different needs, and every student
deserves that equal opportunity to an education that
provi des themthe opportunity to grow.

So as a |l eader of Sutter Peak Charter Acadeny,

our academ cs speak for thenselves as we're one of the
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top perform ng schools and we have school choices that
are the best for kids. And | hope tonight that when
you' re thinking about your decision and thinking about
that vote, that you also | eave with that choice of, you
know, what's best for kids, and how can we nake sure
that we're nmaking the best decisions for them

MR LOBODA: H . M nane is TimLoboda. 1|'m
al so a PCl educator, director of education services.
And | can tal k about the achievenents of all our
schools, but | think just a person who can tal k about
it nore on a personal note.

| come froma traditional school background as
well. | got involved in Charter and | found and stil
| ove their uniqueness. | had four kids through here,
adult girls. It's -- so they were in traditiona
schools in your classic area. So | enjoyed sports and
becane a football player in high school, so with that
and cheerl eaders -- and a cheer dad -- and | enjoyed
being part of it, Friday night football

And then ny son came al ong who's nmuch younger.
So he's 17 now, and he attended a traditional high
school and during the pandem c he [inaudible 00:19: 44]

He is now in one of our schools and is thriving.

Excuse me. It's -- it's rewarding to watch your Kkids

get somewhere.
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| apologize. | didn't think this would be

[ i naudi bl e 00: 19: 56] but we have good kids in our
schools and they clearly would fit at the high schoo
we got, and you have kids in this area that just are
not gonna fit into that school, and we want to be there
for them W want to partner with you and have a
relationship with people in the comunity, that we are
there for that kid that just doesn't fit in and has
something to offer where they can thrive. So thank
you. | apol ogi ze.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Anyone else? This is your big
chance. Okay. Wsat's the next thing on the list?

MR. HENDRI X: Ckay. The next itemon the |ist
then. The board would like -- | nentioned earlier, we

have published our findings. A staff report was

published. It was nade avail able, put on the website.
It's in the board pack. It's provided to you at this
point and is summarized at -- in the -- the key

t akeaways.

And that would be fromthe staff's report.
The question is about approving whether or not any kind
of question's cone up, does the Charter present an
out si de educational progran? The staff believe, no, it
woul d not .

The second item Are the petitioners
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denmonstrably unlikely to successfully inplenment the
program set forth in the petition? Staff's believe,
no, they're not denonstrably unlikely to be able to
successfully inplement the program Three. Does the
program contai n the nunber of signatures required by
the code? Yes. Four. Does the petition contain an
affirmati on of each of the conditions described under
subdi vision B of 47 605? Yes.

Five. Does the petition contain reasonably
conpr ehensi ve descriptions of the elenments set forth in
47 605? Yes. Six. Does the petition contain a
decl arati on of whether or not the Charter school shall
be deened the exclusive enployer of the -- of the
enpl oyees? Yes. Seven. |s the Charter schoo
denonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the
entire conmunity? And the staff, on -- on review of
the petition, we -- we believe, no, we're not going to
be proven likely to serve the interests.

The eighth itemis whether the school district
is not positioned to absorb the fiscal inpact of the
proposed Charter school. So none of the -- the
statutory criteria are nmet for -- for denying it based
on its purpose. The findings and reconmendati ons of --
also are the criteria to be evaluated, whether -- if

they in fact qualify or negative in our certifications.
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The ninth item |Is there evidence for denying
the petition? It was staff's analysis there were sone
things that would stall, but nothing that we believed
were specific to the petition were identified that rose
to the level of justifying denial. And some of that
comes into, was it denonstrably? So there's a --
there's a criteria, there's a point for that decision.

However, several itens were noted that should
-- we believe should be resolved through an operationa
menor andum of understanding. The itens which have been
brought up cites the facility's location, inclusion of
di spute resolution policy procedures for interna
conflicts.

Clean ups in the anmbiguity we felt was in the
petition on the assurances, which is a clear
description of the correlation between goals and
budgets. At the workshop we pointed out the budget did
contain -- appeared to contain it, but we couldn't make
that direct tie.

And then -- and then E. A |lack of assurance
that recruitnment journals would be printed in all the
| anguages that are identified as a conpl enentary
| anguage spoken by 15 percent or nore of the fanmilies.
And that's not sonething that you can go to contri butor

and say, you have to do this. But in our view of the
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charter, it's to begin to reach those and get those
raci al and ethnic balance, so we believe that can be
wor ked out in and anong you.

And it's staff's recommendati on based on our
-- on our reviewis to recomend that the County adopt
and approve the findings of its own and approve the
petition submtted by the Charter school. Conditions
of approval, we believe, would be a nenorandum of
under st andi ng.

Provide doc -- the -- Charter would provide
docunentation verifying the purchase or | ease of
facilities and nake any additional application that is
needed to the county board as authorized, and that's a
standard item And then we'd reconmend the board
approve any adni ssions preferences that are set forth
in the petition.

So now it's the opportunity for the
petitioner's to provide their presentation.

[ i naudi bl e 00: 25: 55]

MR. KEEFER: Thank you so nmuch for allow ng us
to be here today, and happy new year. So today,
hopefully, 1'Il go swiftly to -- to cover sonme high
points. Wat's nice is all the data is in for our
school in Hubert Gty and so I'll do a short

conparative of how we fare and why we're a good bet.
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And so to -- to give -- the overview is quick,
but we'll talk a little bit about -- just about our

institute, how the New Pacific School is unique and how

it conpares with the district and then I'l| pass
f orward

|"m-- once again, |'mPaul Keefer. | amthe
founder -- the co-founders of the Pacific Charter

Institute. W' ve been in business for 18 years. And
in addition to that, I also sit on the Sacramento
County School Board as trustee and president of the
school board. And we have an incredible teamthat |I'm
really proud to | ead, and | know that the work were
trying to do is above nornmal and difficult.

Here is a quick rundown of what we are as an
organi zation. W had been working since 2005. W have
five charter schools, seven |earning centers, over
3,000 students, 11 academ c progranms, literacy is our
f ocus.

W' ve set out every year on staff satisfaction
and one of the ones that popped out tonight, [inaudible
00: 27: 26] teacher cares about them and their |earning.
That aligns with what you' ve heard tonight from our
t eam

And finally, we are -- we have a strong budget

and we have a very strong reserve. So our goal is to
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make sure that we're able to back up what we plan to do
and have the resources to do so. Qur board of
directors. Dr. Rex Fortune. He's a founding board
menber, so he's been on the board for 18 years, fornmer
superintendent -- former -- fornmer deputy
superintendent of the State of California. His
daughter and his organi zation started the Fortune
School of the Sacramento County, serving predom nantly
African-American children, to bridge that gap.

Jean-Paul Prentice is an engineer. Joshua
Modlinis -- is a key figure for the conmunity coll eges
to help develop a job force for California. Judy
MIller is a CASBO representative, and al so has worked
for years as admi nistrative -- both on the board, and
on the conmttees for the largest credit union in Los
Angel es.

Mart ha Mel endez-Quadros is really an expert in
| anguage, | anguage centers |l earning and adds a | ot of
depth to organi zation. Al pana Carey, also been working
in the Charter schools as a |leader in Charter schools.
And then John Brennan is a real estate -- owns -- owns
and manages a real estate organization that owns
busi ness -- owns real estate and al so nanages
properties in the Sacramento regions.

So why are we unique. And | have toned this
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down quite a bit. But essentially, we're a snall
integrated | earning community, which M. Hendrix has
pointed out. W rely on well-qualified teachers. W
believe in evidence-based [inaudi ble 00:29:12] . That
is different. So, yes, MISS is inmportant, |ocal --
| ocal nethods and project-based | earning, snmall group
| ear ni ng.

And then finally, the one that really connects
t he organi zation is the culture and connectiveness,
which is the | eading new program used by 4,400 school s
wor | dwi de that focuses on social enotional |earning.
W really let the kids I earn how to be real conpetent
citizens and becone -- becone the scientists and the
mat hemat i ci ans that we went our children to becone.

Qur pedagogy relies on individual plans,
mul ti-disciplinary standard based curricul um project
based | earni ng, data-driven instruction, integrated
technol ogy and mastery learning. Mastery learning is
key in that it's not they've conpleted an assi gnnent,
it's that they've -- they have taken part in a project
that they're able to | earn across disciplines.

So how does it conpare with Hubert Cty? So
the star scores -- oh, not star. |'mdating nyself.
The CAT -- the CAT -- the CAT scores have -- have --

have been provided. And this is how we stack up.
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Hubert City Unified is on your left. And what this is
showi ng you is they are 20.7 percent chronically absent
and they had a graduation rate of 82.8 percent in 2022.

If you | ook at all four of our schools. Now,
Il will -- 1 will contend, obviously we're independent
study and -- and honme school, so our -- our ITT should
be low, if not very low But we face the sane
graduation rates as they do. W focus on it and we
del i ver.

And it's not quite as easy, or It's actually
quite difficult in independent studies because we
gat her students who come to us behind, because they're
i ndependent studies. They have not been in the
traditional system They haven't been tracked.

So not only do we get themtracked, but we
al so push them forward through concurrent enrollnent in
community colleges, as well as really directed
i ndependent | esson plans. So that's the first path.
The second thing that -- that 1'd like to call to your
attention is, this is very loosely in regards to
mat hematics scores fromdi stance fromcenter, which is
a new standard. And so Hubert City is 34 points
di stance fromstandard in English literature, arts.
And mat hematics are 74.5 points bel ow standard.
Meaning if they were 20 and 60, they'd be getting
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cl oser to where they need to get to.

So as you could see to the right there
[i naudi bl e 00: 31: 41] Acadeny, which is authorized by
NSCCE, they're 9.2 points above standard -- above
standard. And then they're 36.6 points bel ow standard,
but they're half closer -- 50 percent closer than the
district for mathemati cs.

If we go to Heritage Peak, which is a | arge
school serving a -- a very diverse group of students,
it too surpasses Hubert City as does Valley View at 7.5
poi nts above standard and 21.7 points bel ow standard.

Al these kids -- 2,000 kids are all being
instructed in independent stay at honme schools. They
don't see the kids every day. They see the kids once a
week, twice a week. They work with the parents, they
work with the student. The fact that we're delivering
w thout being in front of the kids every day is a clear
i ndi cator that we know what we're doing.

So the question of, what we're doing, how do
we know what we're going to do, this should nmake it
pretty clear that we're not a flyer -- we're not an
organi zation that doesn't know what we're doing. W
know -- we know why we want to be here and we know what
we' re doi ng when we get here.

And | think this is very inportant that you as
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a county board nenber should be very aware of -- and

t he suspension rate of being at 7.8 percent. That's
the highest in Sacramento County. [If this district was
in Sacranento County this would be the highest in the
county.

And | think it's really inportant to | ook at
who is nost affected, your how -- what their percentage
rate is. | can verify this, it's 12.5 percent. That's
pretty far for me to see -- for to view You could see
the data, be it for students, how can you inprove your
scores if you're not even going to school? How can you
i mprove your scores if you're not in school?

And so | think this is an indicator of
sonet hing the County Board has the opportunity to help
to start renediati ng now, rather waiting for another
Charter school at may or may not ever show up here.
This is -- if we think that education is critical, this
tonme is critical

This is sad. And this is -- and | know t hat
as -- as educators we can do better than this. So
that's the bad news, but there's good news. The good
news is we're here tonight. W are -- we've put a |ot
of effort and sweat into this effort. W've -- we've
put a lot of value and dollars towards being in front

of you for this very nonent.
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| nmentioned why facilities is difficult, to
just show up with a facility. W just can't do that.
We |l ose all control. W' ve never done that. And no
Charter school will come in unless it's a district
sponsored school or sonmeone says, when you cone in,
just so you know, you can use our building. If that
woul d have happened, that would be fantastic. But that
didn't happen so --

Di spute resolution. W feel we have a clear
system but we will offer any nore gui dance as to how
we -- how we nmanage any dispute resolution within our
organi zation. W -- in organization we've had one
di spute resolution where it went beyond nyself. This
i ndi vidual went to the board. The board hired a third
party to investigate both nmyself as the executive
director and investigate the whole situation

So | think our board respects ne, but they
al so hold ne accountable, and so |I'm not above them
And so in 18 years we've had that happen. So it's --
it doesn't happen very often as non-profit Schoo
District, but it happened and |'m here standing in
front of you still, so it -- not only was it
successful, but it makes everyone better know ng that
we have that type of oversight for staff.

We all [inaudible 00:35:10] using docunments in
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our guidelines. There's no wiggle roomon that. W
have to conply with it or else you, as a board can --
can go through processes to renediate or to revoke our
charter. | provided you in the neno on Decenber 6th,
the |linkage between the goals and the L cap, so you
have that in your possession.

And then the MPS. Hubert City will hire
staffer conference experts to ensure the popul ati ons
are all talked to and spoken with and conmunicated with
in their |language, as well as verbally and witten. In
summary for a New Pacific school in Hubert Cty, the
staff did a deep analysis and they found that we're
likely to succeed.

| knew that Hubert Gty Unified Schoo
District staff and our sedentary staff cited negative
fiscal inpacts on existing prograns, and thus neet the
criteria for approval according to California State
Law. New Pacific School in Hubert City will be the
first sight based school in the area to be grades
TK-12, the snallest group instruction |eader in the
proj ect based | earning contained multi-grade
cl assroons.

W' re happy to address all the staff
suggestions in an MU that woul d, uh, arise tonight.

And we just ask that you pass resolution 22, 23 for

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.

138

1-877-438-7787


http://nygardreporting.com
http://nygardreporting.com

accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 36 of 777

01/18/2023 TRANSCRIPT Page 33

© 00 N oo o A~ W N P

N I R N S T O O S S = N
g A W N P O © 0O N O 0o M W N P O

tonight. Thank you. And | -- once again, it's --
really appreciate your time and the inportant decision
that's in front of you

MR, HENDRI X: Ckay. So the Board has ny
presentation in front of you. The last box is an
opportunity for the Board. 1It's -- | handed out paper
copies. So the last box there is an op -- is an
opportunity for the Board, and | contacted | egal
counsel to nmake sure | was supporting you in your
deci sion, whatever it is. And this is an opportunity
for the Board.

If soneone is inclined to believe it should be
denied, it's an opportunity for you to identify the
reasons that -- then if you would | ook at the next item
on the agenda, which is an action item there's space
on there for the Board. |If you so choose to deny, then
you can wite those reasons in that resolution. And
that was advice from|legal counsel on howto do that,
if you so choose.

[ i naudi bl e 00: 37: 30].

MR. SINGH First off, I just want to thank
everyone who has shared from both perspectives, uh, to
-- at tonight's neeting. Really great to hear fromyou
all. Umm especially the personal, uh, testinonies of

the Grossnont charter school, and thank you for the
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staff for presenting all the findings as well.

Um |'ve been | ooking through this and
t hi nki ng about this a lot, and so |I've just noted down
a fewpoints that 1'd Iike to share. Umm so just that
as -- as Board, we can nmake a -- nake a deci sion
t oni ght .

Uh, so | just want to start by saying that I
bel i eve that students and parents should have as nmany
choi ces as possible when it cones to their chi --
children's education, unm and where to send their kids
to school. If we can offer students nore educationa
opportunities that fit their needs, that is a win for
us as educators.

And that's what we pride ourselves, here, at
the Sutter County O fice of Education, especially by
provi ding career and technical education pathways. So
when consi dering any new prograns that cone, | want to
ensure that they provide a sound education and are
equitable in their design.

Unh, in reviewi ng New Pacific School petition

there are many aspects of the petition that | like. |
like the nodel. Unh, | like the vision. Un, | -- |
really like the -- the idea of small class sizes. And

| -- 1 didn't get a chance to visit the Roseville

canmpus, but ju -- just based on what |'m hearing, uh
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I"'msure it's a great program They run it very well.

Um | just want to nmake sure that we're
separating the Roseville canpus and what's there from
this specific charter, umm and the petition that's, uh
-- that we're voting on today. And so -- the --
there's just two criteria that | really want to focus
on, the -- and it's the first two, the questions of
whet her the charter school presents an unsound
educational program umm and if the petitioners are
denonstratively unlikely to successfully inplenent the
program

So in reading to the pes -- uh, petition, |
noticed that in the school's first year, there will be
100 TK to 5, uh, students. And now for those students,
there will be three teachers and four assistants. So
this nmeans there would be two classes of 33 students
and one class of 34 students, with the student-to-adult
ratio of 14:1.

So I know that New Pacific School, unm prides
thenselves in a small class size. Uh, and | -- | know
that 33 students in a class is not small. Umm and in
fact, one class would -- did have 34 students, which
would -- wouldn't fall -- follow a provider, so that's
somet hing 1' m concerned about.

Um and al so the new |l aw with universal pre-K
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states that: A charter school shall maintain an average
ratio of at |east one adult per every 12 pupils, umm
during instructional time. And the ratios that we're
| ooking at for this charter are 14 to 1

So that's a bit higher than, uh, you know,
what the California Universal pre-K, uh, reconmendation
is. Um so you know, the -- those are some of the
things that |I've been |looking at as relating to this
charter in particular. And | -- | noted, |ike Joe
poi nted out, there were a few, uh, uh, other issues
that were pointed out that can be addressed in an M,
umm in ternms of like, How is the outreach being done?
Who is being outreached to? You know, we want our
charter to be inclusive of the diverse Yuba Cty
community and we had di scussion on this and there is a
proposed MOU.

Um but -- and | think what staff has found
is correct in ternms of |ooking at the charter, but I
know t hat as board nenbers, we have to look a little
bit nore holistically at sort of what this charter
woul d nean, and the precedent that charters set for
future people, umm who m ght be petitioning after
future charters within the district.

And the thing is that we have to -- just

having an MU is not enough, uh, in ny opinion. You

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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have to get it right in the original charter. Umm the
| anguage has to be such that when soneone | ooks at this
charter petition, they're seeing that everything is
done right fromthe get-go

And so you know, these are sone of the
concerns that I -- | have with the charter. Uwmm and
again, it has nothing to do with the current prograns
that are already in place because | -- it seens that
those are running very great. But it's just with this
speci -- specific one, umm that | see these
i nconsi st enci es.

M5. MCJUNKIN: M. Pamm, do you have any
comrent s?

MR. PAMMA: Ckay, well, | do have three
comrents, as I'mquite newto this. Umm anyway, unm

| talked to Joe (phonetic) the other day, and uh,

basically, | was concerned about the costs for the
county to start up this school. W said there's no
cost to the county to start up this school. Only, uh

mai nt enance for the ongoing, uh, school of the, you
know -- the county to maintain that. And then there'l
be a limt on the nunber of students. And is that a
firmnunber that --

MR HENDRIX: | -- | reached out to the

charter and they said they would put in the, unm

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.
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petition a limt onit. | believe they said 400 for

the K through 12. So that's -- Brian (phonetic) and
were tal king, that's probably just over 30 per grade
| evel. Not necessarily per class, but per grade |evel.

MR. PAMMA: And | think it'd be good that if
we must address the questions that, you know, the main
ten in the back about the lunch and I think you d be
ready, and then the -- the bus -- the bussing of the
students and so | think that would be appropriate to
al so address. And that's all | know.

M5. LACHANCE: Well, |'ve read so nuch, |'m
confused, you know. One of ny things | have here was,
um of the facility, which you' ve kind of expl ained
toni ght, why you haven't naned the facility yet. But

N N N N NN N P PP PR
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in-- you would -- originally it said sonething about
99 inclusive in that area, which is a highway and
stuff, and I do -- | don't feel that's a good area to
even be | ooking at for a charter school for kids to be
going to. And then, um the physical inmpact which, we
found out, it's just maintenance and stuff.

MR. HENDRI X: So for -- for clarity though,
it's the oversight. That would be the inpact?

M5. LACHANCE: Ri ght.

MR. HENDRI X: They're responsible for al
their bills.
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M5. LACHANCE: Right.

MR. HENDRI X: Yes, thank you.

M5. LACHANCE: | really [inaudible 00:44:44]
that, yeah. But then, also, ny thing is: | worked for
Yuba City Unified for 25 years, and then |I've been on
the Board here for 12. And all of our -- we have
charter schools within our area and we have sone
school s that are smaller than other, |ike Robbins and
Central Gaither, and we have Browns, but -- and I'm
fromthe south area, so that's why | know we have the
smal | er schools, and there is a charter school down
t here now.

Now in this charter school, where you're
saying you're going to have 100 students, is this
students that are going to be there, or are they going
to be nore FaceTimng, or -- yeah, | nmean, you -- you
know, on the conmputer, work from honme, or -- because
don't see, like Harjit was sayi ng, about how many
students are in the classroom how that is considered a
smal |l classroomwi th the teachers you had nentioned
that woul d be there.

And that's kind of ny concern, is just -- |
want the best for all our students. And | feel this
Board and the county and all of our schools we have,

have done a -- well -- done a very good job in all --

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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everything that's been going on for the students that
are here, now, in Sutter County for -- for everywhere,
with all the prograns we've added, wi th, uh, career
things and all that, and the ROP; everything. |It's
just been amazing in the time |'ve been here. And with
Tom and, you know, getting this all set up for us.

So -- but ny biggest concern, | think, is the
kids. A small classroom to ne, is not 37 kids in a
cl assroomw th one teacher and a coupl e of assistants.
That's not a small classroom And | don't see how t hey
can individualize for each student that's in that
cl assroom Because like we've said, they're all
different, all students are different, and they al
need sonething else. You know, sone help, sone way or
sonething. So that's kind of ny -- | have a | ot nore,
but I'd be talking nore than three mnutes, so --

M5. MCJUNKIN: | didn't give us a tineline.

M5. LACHANCE: That's all right. But that's a
-- that's my main stuff, it's the classroomsize and
have seen the sane thing, about 100 students and |
think, wait with three teachers? You know, that --

M5. MCJUNKIN.  One of the things that -- right
at the top of the information that we were | ooking at
now, that remnded nme of -- is this charter schoo

really in the best interest of the community? And I

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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have to say, fromthe get-go, | was disappointed in the
petition. It was not well done. Wen you coul dn't
change Sacramento to Sutter, it tells ne this was a cut
and paste, let's turn it over and slide it into the
next place. It kind of turned me off fromthe get-go.

But as | read the petition, | went, Ckay.

Um | saw that the schools that you-all -- that were
included in the petition as the, umnm-- the schools
that you chose to, actually, point out in the petition
are Park Avenue, Bridge Street, Gray Avenue, and Yuba
City H gh School. They are fromthe very | owest end of
our community in terns of success. And yet, when you
tal k about where you're thinking about putting the
facility, it's about as far away from Park and Bri dge
as you can get.

And those are famlies that do not drive their
kids to school; guaranteed. | know that because that's
the schools ny kids went to. That's ny district.
That's ny trustee area. And yeah, Park Avenue is maybe
not what it used to be, but it's still a good schoo
and it will get back to being a good school one of
t hese days.

So anyway. Umm |'m-- |'mcurious about the
corporate structure and then the board of directors

because | don't see a place for an authorizing board to

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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be a part of that in any way, shape, or form It -- it

seens |ike, Okay, you want us to authorize and the
superintendent and his staff will do oversight because
we aut horized. And what does that nmean for us? |
mean, what's our place in this picture? 1 -- 1 just

never quite got that.

And | -- so | don't sense it. | don't have a
sense of partnership here. |It's kind of like, You want
us to authorize, and then you'll go build your school,
and we'll go visit. And that's all you really want

fromus. This conmmunity is alittle nore involved than
that. | nean, in that sense. Vicky (phonetic) was
kind of pointing that out. She's fromthe south end of

the county and very involved. So it's kind -- it's --

N N N N NN N P PP PR
aa A W N B O © 00 N o Ou

it's really -- yeah.

And as far as the MOU, the things that are
bei ng suggested shoul d have been there to begin wth.
They shouldn't be afterthoughts. Some of them may
because that -- that happens. But sone of these should
not have -- |anguage should -- |anguage should not have
been, or the way things are presented for famli es.

You-all did the research. | read in the
petition. You had the nunbers about what the
popul ation | ooked |i ke, and yet you get down to the

ot her part and you don't include one of our very

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc.

148

1-877-438-7787


http://nygardreporting.com
http://nygardreporting.com

© 00 N oo o A~ W N P

N I R N S T O O S S = N
g A W N P O © 0O N O 0o M W N P O

accs-jun23item03

Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 46 of 777
01/18/2023 TRANSCRIPT Page 43
| argest populations in your materials. So -- okay. |
think 1've said enough. Now what do we do? OCh --

MR. REUSSER: The resol ution.

M5. MCJUNKIN: Ch. On. Make the notion.

Thank you rmuch. W have to nove. GCkay. So we have to
nove to adopt or deny the New Pacific School, Yuba
City, charter school.

MR. KEEFER. Can | comment on any of that? O
isit -- is there roomfor coments? 'Cause it sounded
like | was being asked questions. Ws | being asked
questions or was | ignoring reservations?

M5. MCJUNKIN: We're not in a hearing.

M5. LACHANCE: Yeah, we're in a neeting.

M5. MCJUNKIN. We're in a -- we're back on.

MR, KEEFER: Ckay.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  However, did anyone ex -- have
questions that you wanted answers for?

Al righty. So we're on -- it is an action
item

M5. LACHANCE: Right. There's so -- there's
SO many pages in our petition that | know.

M5. MCJUNKIN: | know. It's kind of hooky,
there it is.

M5. LACHANCE: | just |ooked yellow on the
side and then | sawit. Okay. Here it is. Nunmber 9,

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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okay. So we need to nmake a notion --

M5. MCIJUNKI N Un-huh

M5. LACHANCE: -- to deny or accept --

M5. MCJUNKIN: O to approve.

M5. LACHANCE: -- approve adopting the New --
| don't have ny glasses on. | left them The New
Paci fic School, Yuba City, [inaudible 00:52: 35]

M5. MCJUNKIN.  That's what we're | ooking at.
[i naudi bl e 00:52:35] | didn't see her. |'msorry.

M5. LACHANCE: Yeah, that's what | was seeing.
On ny side, what | was seeing.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  Are you -- you noving to adopt,
or are you noving to deny?

M5. LACHANCE: Okay. | -- I'mnoving to deny.

M5. MCJUNKIN: |Is there a second?

MR. SINGH  Just based on what |'ve been
hearing, |'ll second that.

M5. MCJUNKIN. Okay. It has been noved and

seconded to deny the petition of the New charter -- New
Pacific charter school in Yuba Cty. Al in favor?
Oh.

MR. HENDRI X: Roll call.
MS. LACHANCE: W have a roll call.
MB. MCIJUNKI N: Excuse ne. It needs a roll

call.

Carol Nygard & Associates, Inc. 1-877-438-7787
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M5. LACHANCE: Yes.

M5. MCJUNKI N Trustee Singh?

MR SINGH  Yes.

M5. MCJUNKI N Trustee Panma?

MR PAMVA:  Abst ai n.

M5. MCJUNKIN: Trustee Lachance?

MS. LACHANCE: Yes.

M5. MCJUNKIN:  President [inaudible 00:53:11]
?

UNI DENTI FI ED FEMALE SPEAKER 1: Yes.

MR, HENDRI X: If | could reiterate, |egal coun
-- legal counsel, um --

MR, REUSSER. We need to put the reasons in.

M5, MCIJUNKI N Yes.

MR. REUSSER. Do you have thenf

M5. LACHANCE: 1'Il type m ne out.

M5. MCJUNKIN:. Yeah, just send themto ne and
"1l put it in the resolution. Thank you.

(Thereupon, the proceedi ngs were concl uded.)
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Agenda

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, January 18, 2023 - 5:30 p.m.

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office

970 Klamath Lane — Board Room
Yuba City, CA 95993

0 Public Hearing — New Pacific School Yuba City Petition

O Public Hearing to Sunshine Bargaining Proposal for 2023-2024 Negotiations of
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools with the Teacher Association of Sutter
County

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools’ website at www.sutter.k12.ca.us.

5:30 p.m.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call of Members:

June McJunkin, President, Trustee Area 2
Victoria Lachance, Vice President, Trustee Area 5
Harjit Singh, Member, Trustee Area 4

Kash Gill, Member, Trustee Area 3

Gurv Pamma, Member, Trustee Area 1

Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board

Members of the public wishing to address the Board on specific
agenda items, or any item of interest that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the Board, will be given an opportunity to do
so. At the discretion of the Board president, time limits may be
imposed upon such presentations. No action may be taken on
items not appearing on the posted agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA
[Action Item]

5.1  Approval of Minutes of December 14, 2022

5.2  Acceptance of donation of $500.00, from Golden State
Water Company, to be used for students at the Feather
River Academy during the December holiday season
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6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

5.3 Acceptance of donation of $2,500.00, from the Winn
Foundation, to be used for staff development/retreat for
staff at Feather River Academy and Pathways Charter
Academy

The above items are self-explanatory. All items on the Consent
Agenda are considered a routine item or one that has been
previously discussed. Any Board Member may request that an
item be pulled for further discussion.

Facilities, Maintenance, Operations and Fleet (FMOF) Department
Presentation — James Peters

Accept Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Audit
Report — Jen Aras [Action Item]

The 2021-2022 Audit Report prepared by Crowe LLP will be
presented.

Public Hearing — New Pacific School Yuba City Appeal of the
Yuba City Unified School District’s Denial of the Charter Petition
Joe Hendrix

Pursuant to California Education Code Section 47605, a public
hearing will be held by the Sutter County Board of Education to
receive public testimony and input from the community regarding
New Pacific School-Yuba City’s charter petition. The petition was
received on appeal of the Yuba City Unified School District’s denial
of the charter petition on August 23, 2022.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(b) and Title 5 CCR
Section 11967(d), the governing board must make a determination
whether to grant or deny the charter petition within 90 days of its
receipt of the petition, provided, however, that the date may be
extended by an additional 30 days if both parties agree to the
extension. The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools received
the New Pacific School-Yuba City petition on September 21, 2022.

Adopt or Deny the New Pacific School Yuba City Petition
Joe Hendrix [Action Item]

The Sutter County Board of Education has two options for action
with regard to the New Pacific School Yuba City Charter:

1. Approve the Petition — Resolution No. 22-23-IV — Resolution to

Approve the Petition to Establish the New Pacific School — Yuba
City Charter School
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10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

15.0

2. Deny the Petition — Resolution No. 22-23-V — Resolution to Deny
the Petition to Establish the New Pacific School — Yuba City
Charter School and Written Findings in Support Thereof

School Accountability Report Cards
Brian Gault

School Accountability Report Cards are prepared, per state requirements,
for Sutter County Special Education, Feather River Academy and
Pathways Charter Academy.

Business Services Report
11.1 Monthly Financial Report — December 2022
Nic Hoogeveen
11.2 Investment Report — September 2022 — Ron Sherrod
11.3 Facilities Update — Ron Sherrod

SCSOS Graduation Requirements
Lorilee Niesen

SCSOS graduation requirements will be reviewed.

Public Hearing to Sunshine Bargaining Proposal for 2023-2024
Negotiations of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools with the
Teacher Association of Sutter County

Ron Sherrod

Pursuant to Government Code Section 3547, the initial
negotiations proposals of the employer shall be “sunshined” for
public comment.

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools and the Teacher
Association of Sutter County is presenting a proposal for the
2023/2024 school year for sunshining.

New and Revised Board Bylaws — First Reading
Maggie Nicoletti

The following new and revised Board Bylaws are submitted
for a first reading:

e BB 9010 - Public Statements

e BB 9121 - President/Vice President

e BB 9124 - Attorney

e BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials

New and Revised Board Policies — First Reading
Ron Sherrod
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16.0

17.0

18.0

19.0

The following new and revised Board Policies are submitted
for a first reading:
e 3514.1 AR - Hazardous Substances
3514.1 BP — Hazardous Substances
3514.2 AR - Integrated Pest Management
3515 SP/BP — Campus Security
3470 BP - Debt Issuance and Management
3512 BP/AR - Equipment
3513.4 SP/BP - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools

Select and Convene Superintendent’s Salary Committee
Ron Sherrod [Action Item]

Education Code Section 1209 states that a county superintendent
of schools shall not increase his or her salary, financial
remuneration, benefits, or pension in any manner or for any
reason without bringing the matter to the attention of the county
board of education for its discussion at a regularly scheduled
public meeting of the board and without the approval of the
county board of education.

We would like to convene the committee to review the
Superintendent’s current salary schedule for comparability and
possible adjustments to the structure of the schedule.

Second Reading of BP/SP 2100 Policy and Regulation Drafting
Authority and Precedence
Superintendent Tom Reusser [Action Item]

BP/SP 2100 - Policy and Regulation Drafting Authority and
Precedence is being presented to the Board for a second reading
and approval.

Items from the Superintendent/Board

Adjournment

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the Board Meeting
room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings,
please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-822-2900 for assistance. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
will enable the Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board Meeting and
to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services.

All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior to the scheduled
meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath
Lane, Yuba City, CA 95993.
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Agenda Item No. _5.0

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Consent Agenda

BOARD MEETING DATE: January 18, 2023

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY:

v Action Maggie Nicoletti

_ Reports/Presentation SUBMITTED BY:

___ Information Tom Reusser

_____ Public Hearing PRESENTING TO BOARD:
__ Other (specify) Tom Reusser

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

The following items will appear under the Consent Agenda for Board approval:
1. Minutes of the December 14, 2022 Board Meeting

2. Donations:

Donor Value Purpose
Golden State Water Company $500 FRA-for students during the Holiday’s
Winn Foundation $2500 For FRA/PCA students
22-23 Year __ Current Period To Date
Total Donations-Cash $4,171.32 $3,000.00 $7,171.32
Total Donations-Value $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00
Total Donations $8,671.32 $3,000.00 $11,671.32
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SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES
Regular Meeting
December 14, 2022

Call to Order

A regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education was called to
order by President McJunkin, 5:30 p.m., December 14, 2022, at the Sutter
County Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City,
California.

Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jim Richmond.

Roll call of Members

June McJunkin, President — Present
Victoria Lachance, Vice-President — Present
Jim Richmond, Member — Present

Harjit Singh, Member — Present

Trustee Area 1 — Vacant

After Administering the Oath of Office, current Board Members:
June McJunkin, President, Trustee Area 2 - present

Victoria Lachance, Vice-President, Trustee Area 5 - present
Harjit Singh, Trustee Area 4 - present

Kash Gill, Trustee Area 3 - present

Gurv Pamma, Trustee Area 1 - present

Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary — Present

Staff Members Present: Ron Sherrod, Joe Hendrix, Nic Hoogeveen, Brian
Gault and Maggie Nicoletti

Items of Public Interest to come to the attention of the Board
None

Approve the following Minutes of the Sutter County Board of Education
5.1 The minutes of the November 9, 2022, regular meeting of the Sutter County
Board of Education are presented for approval.

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the November 9, 2022,
regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education.

Motion: Richmond Seconded: Singh
Action: Motion Carried

Ayes: 3 (Richmond, Singh and McJunkin)

Noes: 0

Absent: 0 Abstain: 1 (Lachance)
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6.0

7.0

8.0

5.2 The minutes of the November 15, 2022, study session of the Sutter County Board
of Education are presented for approval.

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the November 15, 2022,
study session of the Sutter County Board of Education.

Motion: Singh Seconded: Richmond
Action: Motion Carried

Ayes: 4 (Richmond, Singh, Lachance and McJunkin)

Noes: 0

Absent: 0 Abstain:

Items from the Superintendent/Board

Superintendent Reusser stated this is Jim’s last Board Meeting. He told
Jim how much he appreciated his service to our Board, organization and
students of this community and he appreciates Jim’s visibility in the
community. He read a proclamation from Congressman John Garamendi
commending Jim for his service to the educational community. Jim stated
that he thought SCSOS was at its pinnacle right now from leadership
down and especially with the leadership of Superintendent Tom Reusser.
Jim conveyed his desire that we keep our outdoor education and

outdoor programs operating.

Harjit thanked Jim for his service to the Board and thanked him for
making him feel welcome and having an open and inclusive space.

Administer Oaths of Office

Superintendent Reusser administered the Oaths of Office to Harjit Singh,
Kash Gill and Gurv Pamma. After administering the Oaths, following is a
categorization of trustees and trustee areas:

Gurv Pamma - Trustee Area 1
June McJunkin — Trustee Area 2
Kash Gill — Trustee Area 3

Harjit Singh — Trustee Area 4
Victoria Lachance — Trustee Area 5

Reorganization of the Sutter County Board of Education

8.1 Election of Board President
Board President McJunkin opened nominations for the office of
President. Victoria Lachance nominated June McJunkin for President
of the Sutter County Board of Education. There being no further
nominations, President McJunkin closed the nominations.

A motion was made to elect June McJunkin to serve as President of
the Sutter County Board of Education December 2022 through
November 2023.
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Motion: Lachance Seconded: Singh
Action: Motion Carried
Ayes: S (Lachance, Singh, Gill, Pamma and McJunkin)
Noes: 0
Absent: 0 Abstain: 0

9.0

10.0

8.2 Election of Board Vice President
President McJunkin opened nominations for the office of Vice
President. Harjit Singh nominated Victoria Lachance for Vice
President. There being no further nominations, President McJunkin
closed the nominations.

A motion was made to elect Victoria Lachance to serve as Vice
President of the Sutter County Board of Education December 2022
through November 2023.

Motion: Singh Seconded: Gill

Action: Motion Carried

Ayes: S (Singh, Lachance, Gill, Pamma and McJunkin)
Noes: 0

Absent: 0 Abstain: 0

8.3 Set Location, Time, Meeting Dates and Adopt 2023 Calendar
A motion was made to set location, time and meeting dates and adopt
the 2023 Sutter County Board of Education calendar with the
exception of changing the January date to January 18, 2023.

Motion: Gill Seconded: Lachance
Action: Motion Carried

Ayes: 5 (Gill, McJunkin, Lachance, Singh, and Pamma)
Noes: 0

Absent: 0 Abstain: 0

Curriculum, Instruction and Accountability Department Presentation

Due to illness of the presenter, this item was struck from the agenda.

Public Hearing — New Pacific School Yuba City Appeal of the Yuba City
Unified School District’s Denial of the Charter Petition

The November 2022 election resulted in two new Board Members being
elected to the Sutter County Board of Education. To give them a
reasonable amount of time to complete their own analysis of the Petition,
both parties agreed upon an extension to the January 18, 2023, Board
Meeting.

A motion was made to hold the Public Hearing — New Pacific School Yuba
City Appeal of the Yuba City Unified School District’s Denial of the Charter
Petition on January 18, 2023.
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Motion: Gill Seconded: Singh
Action: Motion Carried
Ayes: 5 (Gill, Singh, McJunkin, Lachance and Pamma)
Noes: 0
Absent: 0 Abstain: 0
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12.0

13.0

14.0

Adopt or Deny the New Pacific School Yuba City Petition

The November 2022 election resulted in two new Board Members being
elected to the Sutter County Board of Education. To give them a
reasonable amount of time to complete their own analysis of the Petition,
both parties agreed upon an extension to the January 18, 2023 Board
Meeting.

Approve Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ First Interim Report
2022-2023

Nic presented the Schools’ First Interim Report for 2022-2023 to the
Board. Nic reviewed the First Interim Report with the Board and he
referenced certain sections of the report. Nic asked the Board if there were
any questions regarding the First Interim Report. Pertinent questions
were asked regarding the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ First
Interim Report and discussion followed the presentation.

A motion was made to approve Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’
First Interim Report 2022-2023.

Motion: Lachance Seconded: Gill

Action: Motion Carried

Ayes: S (McJdunkin, Singh, Gill, Lachance and Pamma)
Noes: 0

Absent: 0 Abstain: 0

Business Services Report

13.1 Facilities Update

Ron stated we have done the RFQ for the new building, we have issued
the RFP; the next step will be that RFPs are due to us by January 15th.
After they are received, the vendor selected will be presented to

the Board.

June asked about the new HVAC system; Ron stated we have not received
bids yet. We are also still looking at possibly installing solar at Shady
Creek due to the cost of electricity.

First Reading of BP/SP 2100 Policy and Regulation Drafting Authority and
Precedence

We have existing policies that may be Board Policy but the policies have
nothing to do with the Board. This policy will allow the Superintendent to
change the policies without requiring the Board to have a 1st and 2nd
reading.
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15.0

Items from the Superintendent/Board — Continued from Item 6
Superintendent Reusser stated we received approval of the $515,000.00
grant that Eric Pomeroy worked on and we also received two more grants
and will not know the amounts until Friday, December 16, 2022.

The holiday staff meeting/luncheon was held on December 13t and was
well attended.

June congratulated Harjit on his position as Chairman of the CSBA AEC
Conference being held in December 2023 in San Francisco. June further
stated that she was glad that Kash was able to attend the CSBA AEC 2022
conference.

Harjit said he thinks the workshops presented at the CSBA AEC
Conference by the county offices were very beneficial and he encouraged
SCSOS to participate in December 2023. Tom stated that he has some
ideas for presentations.

The existing Board Members welcomed the new Board Members.

Adjournment
A motion was made to adjourn the meeting 6:21 p.m.

Motion: Singh Seconded: Lachance
Action: Motion Carried

Ayes: S (Singh, Lachance, Gill, Pamma and McJunkin)
Noes: 0

Absent.: 0 Abstain: 0
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS OFFICE
GIFT AND DONATION FORM

Donor Identification ® Individual @ Business

Donor Name: ) 8% ~3600D
Address: 3605 Guwo Gumal D, Clty/Sta Ranche LordownZip: ASCID

Business only: Position:_Co en ae”

Phone: Type of Business: Watee C 59 rR

Gift or Donation: O Cash @& Check Dollar Amount: $ % &v .80

O Other (List item below)

Date of Donation:

Intent of Gift or Donation fo@. Shwdemts udin ..4 a the o L;dg_.l 9

Working Condition:
Estimated Dollar Value $

Donated To (Site/Program): &= @A £ sl
Site/Program Administrator: C ?-\.&:‘2\-"1 ~A 1 U Ldﬁ‘:ﬁ
Typed Name ignal
Asst. Superintendent/Director for Dept.: Brian Gault %
Typed Name \Srgﬂﬁu{e 1
Delivery Date: Delivered By:
Received By:

For Business Office Use Only
/’,f —

Signature

Assistant Superintendent Business Services

Revenue Code:

Review Comments:

Board Agenda Date:

js: wordfiles/forms/donationform
revised 5-25-05
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS OFFICE
GIFT AND DONATION FORM

Donor Identification [ Individual [A Business

Donor Name:_in_ 1yndaiiod Phone:_4l-420- 0425
Address:_ 555 | niVerstun Awe. S 150 City/State Sacramenkd - Zip: 95825

Business only: Position: =
Phone: Type of Business:

Gift or Donation: Kl Cash [ Check Dollar Amount: $ 2|SDD

O Other (List item below)
Date of Donation: [)g¢ %, 20:

Intent of Gift or Donation: STACE Develol ME.-N)T{/ RetTeeAsT
Working Condition:
Estimated Dollar Value $

Donated To (Site/Program): T2 / FcA IR o e
Site/Program Administrator:Cy} rls Beyua ( __j 2 U (<en
"fypcd Name ' Signatur
Asst. Superintendent/Director for Dept.: an
Typed Name Signature
Delivery Date: Delivered By:
Received By:

For Business Office Use Only

Assistant Superintendent Business Services

Signature
Revenue Code:

Review Comments:

Board Agenda Date:
js: wordfiles/forms/donationform
revised 5-25-05
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BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Facilities, Maintenance, Operations and Fleet Department
Presentation

BOARD MEETING DATE: January 18, 2023
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY:
Action James Peters
_ X  Reports/Presentation SUBMITTED BY:
_____ Information James Peters
__ Public Hearing PRESENTING TO BOARD:
__ Other (specify) James Peters

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

FMOF Department Presentation
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SUTTER COUNTY

Superintendent
\-/g’\— of Schools

Tom Reusser, Superintendent

Facilities, Maintenance, Operations & Fleet

Presented by James Peters, Director
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The Facilities, Maintenance, Operations & Fleet Department (FMOF) serves the ever-changing and diverse needs of the Sutter County
Superintendent of Schools (SCSOS) by providing safe, healthy, secure, accessible, pleasant, and comfortable buildings, grounds, and
vehicles.

Studies have shown that poor quality environments, such as lighting, air quality, heating and cooling, aesthetics, etc., have a
significant impact on student and staff outcomes; FMOF efforts are an integral part of the quality and effectiveness of the SCSOS
operations, and we are deeply committed to our mission.

e FMOF as a department is an administrative function and reports directly to the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services,
Ron Sherrod.

e As part of the core "trifecta" departments that provide services and care to every department of the SCSOS, FMOF maintains a
close relationship with Human Resources and Information Technology.

e FMOF oversees and complies with a broad array of codes, regulations, and laws that mandate the operations of Public
Agencies, including maintaining relationships with corresponding agencies. A few examples are:
e Public Contract Code, including procurement
e Building Code, including fire and accessibility
e Health and Safety Code
e Penal and Civil Code
e Integrated Pest Management Regulations
e Vehicle licensing and omissions.
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FMOF comprises four separate and distinct functions that are closely associated in nature but can be very different in a day-to-day
aspect. A summary of each function follows:

Facilities

The acquisition, development, construction, rehabilitation, modernization, and sale of sites and buildings through long-term planning,
implementation, and coordination of plan strategies.

The SCSOS facilities consist of 132,206 square feet on approximately 147 acres, with 74,321 sq. ft. at the Klamath Lane
campus, 33,885 at Shady Creek in Nevada County, and 24,000 sq. ft. of classrooms located on District sites. (Refer to the
Facility Master plan for more information).

Consults and, at times, provides project management for Districts and Charters in Sutter County, as requested.
Coordinates with the Board of Education, the Superintendent, and Cabinet to align needs, goals, and mission.

Funded from the general fund through short and long-term savings strategies.

Maintenance

The preventive, routine, and deferred maintenance, repair, rehabilitation, modernization, and replacement of site, building, and vehicle
components.

Maintenance regularly cares for the 108,206 sq. ft. of SCSOS primary facilities and the owner's responsibilities at the 24,000
sq. ft. of classrooms at District sites.
We do not have specialized positions; we all shoulder the work collectively. Our maintenance team works closely,
collaborating to maximize individual skill sets, experience, and paradigms.
0 Work is reprioritized daily.
Efficiency, effectiveness, and economy of scale are our primary focus.
89% of all contractor and/or construction-related scope are performed in-house
100% of professional development and safety training are performed in-house.
Please see the attached Key Point Indicator Report from SchoolDude/Brightly Software at the end of this presentation
for more information.
Maintenance commonly assists Districts, Special Education, and the SELPA as requested and billed back.
Coordinates with the Superintendent, Cabinet, site administrators, and department leads to provide for needs.
Funded through departmental contributions to a pool, general fund contribution, and Routine Restricted Maintenance account.

O O0O0O0o
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Operations

The performance of tasks required to provide for the day-to-day operational needs of the organization, including but not limited:
e Custodial services,

Utility connections, monitoring, and payment,

HVAC and lighting controls,

Parcel deliveries,

Room reservations,

Event preparations, etc.

e Operations regularly serve the organization's and the public's needs, coordinating access, room availability, and events.

e Coordinates with site administrators and accountants.

e Funded through departmental contributions to a pool based on a square foot rate.

Fleet
The acquisition, maintenance, care, and surplus of vehicles.
e There are currently fifty (50) vehicles in the fleet, which is diverse, from passenger coupes to two-ton trucks and wheelchair
lift vans, a tractor, golf carts, a man lift, etc.
e Vehicles are used and stored at various locations through Sutter and Nevada Counties. Fleet coordinates as necessary to
provide for the client and vehicle needs.
e Coordinates with primary drivers and department leads.
e Funded through departmental contributions to a pool.
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The Who!

Celebrating achievements of our goals and milestones, keeping a positive outlook and a caring, service-minded composure is not
always easy. It takes a group of unique, driven individuals to pull it off, and the SCSOS is blessed to have some of the best around!
Always in high demand, responding to needs in real-time today while maintaining goals and plans that stretch out as far as fifteen
years, our work is never done.

FMOF comprises ten (10) full-time and six (06) part-time employees. Here is our Team:

FMOF (Comprehensive/all sites)

James Peters, Director, full-time

Mona Evans, Administrative Secretary, full-time (aka, Center of the Universe)
Demetrio Mendez, Maintenance Worker, full-time

Seth Embleton, Maintenance Worker, full-time

Andy Mendez, Maintenance Worker, full-time

Daniel Garvin, Maintenance Worker, part-time

Anthony Hearns, Custodian (day), full-time

Klamath
e Jesus Adame-Sanchez, Custodian, part-time
e Patricia Rivera, Custodian, part-time

Feather River Academy/Pathways Charter Academy
e Ron Myers, Custodian, part-time
e Peter Yang Custodian, part-time

The 1 Stop and Adult Education
e Miguel Camargo, Custodian, full-time (day)
e Open Custodian, part-time
Shady Creek
e Michaelle Kellerman, Maintenance, Custodian & Groundskeeper (MCQ), full-time
e Shannon Clayton, MCG, full-time
e Open Custodian, part-time
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KPI
The following Key Point Indicator (KPI) Report is presented from our Maintenance Work Order Software from SchoolDude/Brightly

Software. These KPIs are compiled by comparing our productivity reports with hundreds of other Local Education Agencies (LEA) in
California, including Yuba City Unified School District and Marysville Joint Unified School District.

Maintenance
Executive Overview
Briefing

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools

2022-12

@ Dude Solutions
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Categories

What will these Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) allow me to do?

Increase maintenance staff efficiancy and overall productivity,
/ :;;; y LR ﬂnla-amirue workflows, improve customer sngagemant and
5 satlsfaction, capture and show productivioy gains, and track owverall
- haalth of your maintenance program

: Datermina success of your pravantive maintanancs program,
s Cicten Transsthon to belng more prosctive, redets backlogged wark,
A inCrease life expactancy of equiprment, and decrease catastrophic

= failuras

Time Frame
Key Performance Indicators (KPls): Past 12 Months

Trends: Past 3 Years, plus current year
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Total Number of Work Orders

# of WOs
2.222

Total Corrective Maintenance (CM) Total Planned Maintenance (PM)
1,808 413

Thiz reflects how many repairs and jobs were captured in
the 12 month rolling window. (includes all statuses)
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WOs Per 1,000 SQFT

# Wos Per 3QFT

[ [ &)

Yaur # of Law
FOTT= W Value TEOTCageNY oo ots  zony,  MeREN Top20%

FLIER S 2,222 138 Public K-12 2,851 120 1.52 ras

Totad count of work ordars for a 12 month rolling window (this month — fast 1.2 months, ignores rejected work)
divided by the total sum of square footage and then multiphacd by 1,000.
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Total # of WOs by Month/Year

# WOs by Month/Year

Trend: Past 3 Years, phus current data; based on Created Data
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Total # of WOs by Year

# WOs by Month/Year
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Trend; Past 3 Yaars, plus current date; basad on Creataed Date
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% of Completed Work with Data
Quality

% of Completed WOs with Data Quality

.

i 10, - . O . M4 EErg -
Al 5% e -1

I . -
o [Ty e Crat jzurm

Fupazs
Key Flelds: Wi has to have 6 of the following B conditicns: valid Location, Valid Area/Room#, Valid

Craft, valid Purpose, Valid Assigned To, Descripticn of at least 20 characters, action Taken of at least
10 characters and Either Labor Hours or WO Costs. (Rolling 12 Months)

177



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 75 of 777

% of WOs Completed in Less
than a Week

% of CM Completed 7 Days or Less

H Eicl

& Wihs Your # of Low Top
Camp valge PEErCEIEQOY ot zong  Medam o oo
e TOO%, Putile K12 2881 AR B Te%

This KPlindicates how much work an institution i able to complate in 7 calendar days, Balow the national
average suggasts potentlal process improvemeants for managing and completing work. Ahove the natonal
average could be a sign you have embraced mobds, your staff cormplates thelr ovwen work assignments online
andfor hava reduced (or eliminatad) paper in vour processas, This comparas Completion Date — Start Date (uses
Raquest Date if Start Date & ot usad) for WO's with a Priority of Lows, Mad or High & ignores PR's 1o sae what %
of P W0's are completad in ¥ Days or Lass. (Rolling 12 Months)
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% CM WOs Completed in a Week
by Year

%% of WOs Completed in Less than Week by Year (Completion Date)

o I
o« I
] [ T M 7% e o T Ee

Trendd; Past 3 Yaars, plus current date; basad on Complation Data
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Average Count of Work Orders
Per Employee Per Year

Avg WOs Assigned Per Technician
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# of Hyrg Employeses: 7, & af Cust. Emplrgses

Empiapzes: D

Thiz metric gives you a direct comparison of your staff's productivity compared to peer
institutions, Employvess are users wha have been assigned more than 30 work onders, but less
than 2,000 in a rolling 12 month window.
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Avg WOs Per Technician by Year

Avg # of WOs Assigned per Maint Tech Each Month

i} S mn 15 o] 1= x n 41 &5 =1 == Ell -~ o

Tremd; Past 2 Yaars, plus currant date; basad on Created Date
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% of PMs Completed 30 Days or
Less by Year

% of PMs Completed in 30 Days or Less (Completion Date)

Ti%

=]
]

e it FilL b ] )% i filft Hire i fl'e

Trend; Fast 2 Yaars, plus currant date; based on Compdation Date
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Agenda Item No. 7.0

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: 2021-2022 Financial Audit

BOARD MEETING DATE: January 18, 2023

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY:

_ X Action Crowe LLP

___ Reports/Presentation SUBMITTED BY:

__ Information Nicolaas Hoogeveen
__ Public Hearing PRESENTING TO BOARD:
__ Other (specify) Jen Aras

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

Audit of the financial statements of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools as of
June 30, 2022 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing an opinion
as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022
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Crowe LLP
Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Education
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
Yuba City, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
maijor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools, as
of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Sutter County
Superintendent of Schools, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools’ ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

(Continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 8 and the County School Service Fund Budgetary Comparison
Schedule, the Adult Education Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the Schedule of Changes in the County
Office’s Total Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability, the Schedule of the County Office’s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of the County Office’s Contributions
on pages 47 to 53 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

(Continued)
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
and other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
except for that portion marked “unaudited”, was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information, has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The information marked “unaudited” has
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14,
2022 on our consideration of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2022
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970 Klamath Lane
Yuba City, CA 95993
Phone (530) 822-2900
Fax (530) 671-3422

Tom Reusser, Superintendent

This section of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools (County Office) annual financial report
represents our discussion and analysis of the County Office’s financial performance during the fiscal year
ending on June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented in conjunction
with information which is furnished in the financial statements that follow this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This report consists of the following three sections: management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements, and the required supplementary information. The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the County Office:
government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements. The financial statements may also
include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed
data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further
explains and supports the information in the financial statements.

L 1
] 1 1

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements report information about Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector businesses. This
means the statements take into account all revenues and expenses related to the fiscal year, regardless of
when the cash involved is received or paid. The government-wide statements do not include programs
and activities that are fiduciary in nature because their resources may not be used to support the
operations of the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools.

The two government-wide statements report the County Office’s net position and how it has changed.
Net position, or the difference between the County Office’s assets and liabilities, is one way to measure
the County Office’s financial position. Increases or decreases in the County Office’s net position are
indicators of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
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The government-wide financial statements are reported in two categories:

e Governmental Activities include the basic instructional services, support services, debt
service payments, and capital equipment purchases. Local Control Funding Formula funds,
state grants, federal grants, and interest earnings finance the majority of these activities.

e Business-type Activities reflect the operations of the Shady Creek Outdoor Education
Program facility during non-student times, such as weekends, when the facility is available to
outside groups for a fee. The revenues generated from these activities are transferred to the
general program in an effort to reduce student cost. Operational costs of the Career Training
Center are also included in business-type activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information regarding three major categories of
funds: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Funds are the accounting devices the
County Office uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and expenditures/expenses for particular
activities or objectives. The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and
contractual requirements.

1. Governmental funds are used to account for most of the County Office’s basic services. The
governmental funds provide a detailed short-term view that help determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance County
Office operations. The primary differences between the government-wide and fund
statements relate to capital assets, and long-term liabilities, which are reported in the
government-wide financial statements, but not in the fund-based statements. Capital assets
are items such as land and buildings, and long-term liabilities are items such as bonded debt,
net pension liability, amounts owed for compensated absences, and capital lease obligations.

2. Proprietary funds are used to show activities that operate more like entities found in the
private sector. The County Office operates three proprietary funds: two enterprise funds,
one for the Shady Creek Outdoor Education Program facility and one for the Sutter County
Career Training Center and a self-insurance fund for post-employment health care benefits
for eligible retired employees.

3. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of external parties.
Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of these funds are not available to support the operations of the Sutter County
Superintendent of School’s programs.

Financial Analysis of the County Office

Net Position

On June 30, 2022, total net position from governmental activities is $16.9 million, an increase of $4.6
million compared to the prior year. Although there are several changes that offset each other, this 37.3%
increase is primarily due to an increase in fund balance for future facility needs and within restricted
programs.
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Investment in capital assets, net of related debt, represents $16.6 million of the Sutter County
Superintendent of School’s total net position. This includes investment in items such as land, buildings,
and capital equipment. Another $17.2 million of the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools” net
position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Any final
positive remaining net position represents unrestricted assets, which may be used to meet ongoing
obligations, though certain laws and internally imposed designations on resources may further limit the
purpose for which those assets may be used.

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources. The statement presents the
assets and liabilities in order of relative liquidity. The liabilities with average maturities greater than one
year are reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than
one year. The long-term liabilities of the County Office, consisting of net pension liability, other post-
employment benefits and compensated absences payable have been reported in this manner on the
Statement of Net Position.

As shown on the Statement of Net Position, the County Office’s total activities at the end of the fiscal year
reflected assets of $49.7 million and liabilities of $26.7 million. The largest assets are $26.5 million in cash,
$13.9 million in depreciable capital assets, $6.1 million in receivables, and $2.7 million in non-depreciable

assets. The largest liabilities are long-term liabilities of $23.6 million of which $18 million represent the

net pension liability.

Fund Level Highlights

As of June 30, 2022, the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools” governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $25.3 million, an increase of $1.7 million compared to the prior fiscal

year.

Fund Financial Analysis

The Balance Sheet of the B T
governmental funds Condensed Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2022
reported $28.7 million in
“11s . Special
assets, $3.4 million in Resarvetor
liabilities, and $25.3 County School Adult Education Capital Outlay All Non-Major Governmental
11 . Service Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds Total
million in fund balances
Assets
as of June 30, 2022. Total cash 5 15194112 § 383962 3 6176323 § 29106 S 21,783,503
assets prlmarlly consist of Receivables 5,905,850 158,242 10,676 45,030 5,119,798
cash balances of $21.8 Prepaid Expenses 612,827 612,827
million and accounts Due from Other Funds 226736 100 226,836
. 1 Total Assets 3 21039525 § 542204 § 5185999 § 74236 S 28,742,964
receivable of $6.1 million,
while total liabilities .
primarily consist of $2.3 Accounts Payable 3 1,762,103 § 461,408 8 s 74501 5 2,298,412
mﬂhon in accounts Due to Other Funds 521,079 1,599 522 678
Unearned R 525707 525,707
payable and $626 —
. Total Liabilties 5 2908383 | § 461408 S s 76500 S 3,446,797
thousand in unearned
revenue. Fund Balances 5 19030636 S 80,796 S 6186999 $ (2264) S 25,296,167
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Within the total $25.3 million in fund balance, $12.5 million is reserved for specific programs by federal or
state law, external constraints, or by contractual obligations, as well as internally imposed restrictions. A
total of $1.9 million is designated for economic uncertainties, $10.2 million is assigned for specific
purposes, and the remaining $623 thousand represents amounts that are generally unrestricted reserves,
which have been designated as “non-spendable” to cover amounts for prepaid expenditures and
revolving cash.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances of the governmental funds
shows $42.1 million in revenues and $39.1 million in expenditures. The largest source of revenue is Other
State Sources representing $18.6 million (44.1%), followed by LCFF of $9.8 million (23.2%). The ending
fund balance of the governmental funds for the year ending June 30, 2022 is $25.3 million, which
represents an increase of $1.7 million (7.2%) from the prior year.

Governmental Funds

The Sutter County Superintendent of

Schools’ major governmental funds General Fund Revenue 2021-22

include the County School Service Fund, Local Revenues Transfers T

commonly called the General Fund, and 26% 0% LCFF
25%

the Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17). The
County School Service Fund is the Sutter
County Superintendent of Schools” main
operating fund. The Special Reserve
Fund is used to earmark funds for long-
term planning and non-capital projects.
The Adult Education (Fund 11) is used
to track revenue and expenses associated
with our Adult Education program. The
Special Reserve for Capital Outlay
Projects (Fund 40) is used set aside
general fund moneys for capital outlay
purposes. All other governmental funds
are considered non-major funds for
financial reporting purposes. The County School Service Fund ended the most recent fiscal year with a
fund balance of $19.0 million, while the remaining governmental funds reported a combined ending

Federal
Revenues
10%
State Revenues
39%

balance of $6.3 million.

On the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances for the governmental funds,
the County School Service Fund had revenues of $38.5 million and $34.8 million in expenditures for the
year ending June 30, 2022. The largest source of revenues for the County School Service Fund was $15.1
million from Other State Sources followed by $9.8 million of LCFF funds. The County School Service
Fund’s ending balance as of June 30, 2022 was $19.0 million, which represents a slight decrease of $45
thousand compared to the prior year.

Custodial Funds
The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools has one custodial fund, the Special Education Pass Thru
fund acts as a clearing account and therefore does not have net assets.

193 7.



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 91 of 777

Proprietary Funds

The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools has two proprietary funds: an internal service fund, the
“Self-Insurance Fund,” and an enterprise fund, the “Other Enterprise Fund.” The Self-Insurance Fund,
established in 2006-07, is used to pay post-employment health care benefits for eligible employees. The
net position of the Self-Insurance Fund is $4.7 million as of June 30, 2022, which is a decrease of $184
thousand. The Other Enterprise Fund is used to account for the revenue and expenses for use of the
Shady Creek facility by outside agencies during student non-attendance days and programs within the
Sutter County Career Training Center. Typically, the fund has minimal assets since excess cash is
transferred to the General Fund to help offset the educational program cost for Shady Creek. The
enterprise fund has a negative net position of $483 thousand, which is largely attributed to the net
pension liability.

Capital Asset and Long-Term Liabilities

Capital Assets
The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2022 totaled $16.6
million (net of accumulated depreciation), which was a decrease of 1.3% from the prior year.

Long-Term Liabilities
The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools did not make any purchases in 2021-22 that would require
long-term debt.

Economic Outlook and Future Budgets

Although the federal and state economies have shown a quick recovery from the fiscal implications caused
by COVID-19, the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools continues to maintain its conservative
approach to fiscal matters. The current times are filled with one-time funds but long range planning is in
place for when these funds expire. A significant fiscal concern of the County Office is the ability to create
a dependency on one-time COVID-19 funds and the ease for students, parents, and staff to continue to
expect the purchases and additional staffing levels that the funding has allowed us to provide, even after
the funds expire. Another concern is the significant increase of expenses, including staffing costs, while
our LCFF funding remains flat. With these economic factors in mind, Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools will continue to monitor reserves and adjust services as needed in the best interest of students in
the community while maintaining its current positive position.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools’ finances to interested parties. Questions concerning the information provided in this report, or
requests for additional information should be addressed to the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
Office, Business Services, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA 95993.
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Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 2) $ 26,539,373 $ - $ 26,539,373
Receivables 6,133,956 2,043 6,135,999
Internal balances (295,842) 147,021 (148,821)
Prepaid expenses 612,827 - 612,827
Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 4) 2,690,183 - 2,690,183
Depreciable capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation (Note 4) 13,861,792 - 13,861,792
Total assets 49,542,289 149,064 49,691,353
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow s of resources - pensions
(Notes 7 and 8) 6,224,109 210,063 6,434,172
Deferred outflow s of resources - college acquisition - 450,000 450,000
Deferred outflow s of resources - OPEB (Note 9) 1,118,948 - 1,118,948
Total Deferred Outflow s of Resources 7,343,057 660,063 8,003,120
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,296,422 100,831 2,397,253
Unearned revenue 625,707 45,058 670,765
Due to grantor governments 61,243 - 61,243
Long-term liabilities (Note 5):
Due w ithin one year 34,696 - 34,696
Due after one year 22,870,632 682,728 23,553,360
Total liabilities 25,888,700 828,617 26,717,317
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow s of resources - pensions
(Notes 7 and 8) 14,018,780 463,220 14,482,000
Deferred inflow s of resources - OPEB (Note 9) 55,958 - 55,958
Total Deferred Inflow s of Resources 14,074,738 463,220 14,537,958
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 16,551,975 - 16,551,975
Restricted:
Legally restricted programs 6,335,905 - 6,335,905
Capital projects 6,186,999 - 6,186,999
Internal service 4,710,775 - 4,710,775
Unrestricted (16,863,746) (482,710) (17,346,456)
Total net position $ 16,921,908 $ (482,710) $ 16,439,198

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Governmental activities:
Instruction
Instruction-related services:
Supervision of instruction
School site administration
Pupil services:
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services
General administration:
Data processing
All other general administration
Plant services
Community Services
Enterprise activities
Other outgo
Business-type activities:

Enterprise activities
Total governmental and
business-type activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and  Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 12,507,382 $ 3,316,285 $ 9,987,287 $ - $ 79,190 $ - 8 796,190
3,830,439 409,337 2,228,399 - (1,192,703) - (1,192,703)
2,681,035 233,943 1,155,564 - (1,291,528) - (1,291,528)
- - 39,644 - 39,644 - 39,644
265,207 - 62,958 - (202,249) - (202,249)
3,493,942 709,772 2,731,809 - (52,361) - (52,361)
1,146,769 - 2,794 - (1,143,975) - (1,143,975)
4,033,952 438,373 1,886,651 - (1,708,928) - (1,708,928)
1,962,271 137,449 381,440 - (1,443,382) - (1,443,382)
2,035,777 343,524 1,765,350 - 73,097 - 73,097
315,980 26,380 77,947 - (211,653) - (211,653)
13,018,451 1,289,897 12,781,728 - 1,053,174 - 1,053,174
2,494,434 184,968 472,458 - - (1,837,008) (1,837,008)
$ 47,785,639 $ 7,089,928 $ 33,574,029 $ - (5,284,674) (1,837,008) (7,121,682)
General revenues:
Taxes and subventions:

Taxes levied for general purposes 1,767,492 - 1,767,492
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 8,103,281 - 8,103,281
Interest and investment earnings (loss) (1,098,681) 3,115 (1,095,566)
Interagency revenues 1,207,126 - 1,207,126
Miscellaneous 1,158,505 211,075 1,369,580
Internal transfers (1,251,782) 1,251,782 -

Total general revenues 9,885,941 1,465,972 11,351,913

Change in net position 4,601,267 (371,036) 4,230,231

Net position, July 1, 2021 12,320,641 (111,674) 12,208,967

Net position, June 30, 2022 $16,921,908 $  (482,710) $ 16,439,198

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2022

County Special Reserve
School Adult For Capital All Total
Senice Education Outlay Projects Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury $15,176,654 $ 383,962 $ 6,176,323 $ 29,106 $ 21,766,045
Cash in banks 1,958 - - - 1,958
Cash in revolving fund 10,500 - - - 10,500
Cash with Fiscal Agent 5,000 - - - 5,000
Receivables 5,905,850 158,242 10,676 45,030 6,119,798
Due from other funds 226,736 - - 100 226,836
Prepaid expenditures 612,827 - - - 612,827
Total assets $21,939,525 $ 542,204 $ 6,186,999 $ 74,236 $ 28,742,964
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,700,860 $ 461,408 $ - $ 74901 $ 2,237,169
Due to grantor governments 61,243 - - - 61,243
Due to other funds 521,079 - - 1,599 522,678
Unearned revenue 625,707 - - - 625,707
Total liabilities 2,908,889 461,408 - 76,500 3,446,797
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 623,327 - - - 623,327
Restricted 6,255,109 80,796 6,186,999 - 12,522,904
Assigned 10,223,298 - - - 10,223,298
Unassigned 1,928,902 - - (2,264) 1,926,638
Total fund balances 19,030,636 80,796 6,186,999 (2,264) 25,296,167

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 21,939,525 $ 542,204 $ 6,186,999 $ 74,236 $ 28,742,964

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds $ 25,296,167

Amounts reported for gowernmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $25,819,522

and the accumulated depreciation is $9,267,547 (Note 4). 16,551,975

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
funds. Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2022 consisted of

(Note 5):
Net pension liability (Notes 7 and 8) $ (18,049,272)
Total OPEB liability (Note 9) (4,821,360)
Compensated absences (34,696)

(22,905,328)
In the gowernmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of
resrouces relating to pensions are not reported because they
are applicable to future periods. In the Statement of Net
Position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating
to pensions are reported (Notes 7 and 8):

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions $ 6,224,109
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (14,018,780)
(7,794,671)
Internal senice funds are used to conduct certain activities for
which costs are charged to other funds. Assets and liabilities
are reported with governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position. 4,710,775
In government funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
relating to other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods
In the Statement of Net Position, deferred outflows and
inflows of resrouces relating to OPEB are reported (Note 9)
Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB $ 1,118,948
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (55,958)
1,062,990
Total net position - governmental activities $ 16,921,908
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
12.
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County Special Reserve
School Adult For Capital All Total
Service Education  Outlay Projects Non-Major  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF):
State apportionment $ 7,976,446 $ -3 -3 - $ 7,976,446
Local sources 1,775,485 - - - 1,775,485
Total LCFF 9,751,931 - - - 9,751,931
Federal sources 3,689,836 322,644 - 114,985 4,127,465
Other state sources 15,113,085 3,430,185 - 10,305 18,553,575
Other local sources 9,921,038 (11,195) (285,652) (2,264) 9,621,927
Total revenues 38,475,890 3,741,634 (285,652) 123,026 42,054,898
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 8,895,778 454,592 - - 9,350,370
Classified salaries 10,357,840 248,550 - 110,433 10,716,823
Employee benefits 8,610,892 263,702 - 39,539 8,914,133
Books and supplies 919,913 43,435 - 121,176 1,084,524
Contract services and operating
expenditures 4,617,852 349,949 - 59,002 5,026,803
Other outgo 882,928 2,539,396 - - 3,422,324
Capital outlay 530,055 5,440 50,190 - 585,685
Total expenditures 34,815,258 3,905,064 50,190 330,150 39,100,662
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 3,660,632 (163,430) (335,842) (207,124) 2,954,236
Other financing (uses) sources:
Transfers in 109,577 209,602 2,100,000 221,805 2,640,984
Transfers out (3,815,657) (60,164) - (16,945)  (3,892,766)
Total other financing
(uses) sources (3,706,080) 149,438 2,100,000 204,860 (1,251,782)
Net change in fund balances (45,448) (13,992) 1,764,158 (2,264) 1,702,454
Fund balances, July 1, 2021 19,076,084 94,788 4,422,841 - 23,593,713
Fund balances, June 30, 2022 $19,030,636 $ 80,796 $ 6,186,999 $ (2,264) $25,296,167

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 1,702,454

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Acquisition of capital assets is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but increases capital assets in the
Statement of Net Position (Note 4). 580,245

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not recorded
in the governmental funds (Note 4). (738,353)

In governmental funds, the entire proceeds from disposal of capital
assets are reported as revenue. In the statement of activities, only
the resulting gain or loss is reported. The difference between the
proceeds from disposal of capital assets and the resulting gain
or loss is: (Note 4) (59,621)

In governmental funds, other postemployment benefits are
recognized when employers contributions are made. In
government-wide statements, other postemployment benefits
are recognized on the accrual basis (Notes 5 and 9). (318,476)

In the Statement of Activities, expenses related to compensated
absences are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured
by the amount of financial resources used (Note 5). 801

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when
employer contributions are made. In the Statement of
Activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs 3,618,354

and actual employer contributions was (Notes 7 and 8).

Net revenues of the Self-Insurance Fund are reported with

governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. (184,137)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 4,601,267

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2022

Internal
Enterprise Senvice
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury (Note 2) $ - 8 4,755,870
Due from Other Funds 284,259 -
Receivables 2,043 14,158
Total assets 286,302 4,770,028
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources - college acquisition 450,000
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions (Notes 7 and 8) 210,063 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 660,063 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 100,831 59,253
Unearned revenue 45,058 -
Due to other funds 137,238 -
Total current liabilities 283,127 59,253
Net pension liability - long-term (Notes 7 and 8) 682,728 -
Total liabilities 965,855 59,253
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions (Notes 7 and 8) 463,220 -
NET POSITION
Unrestricted $ (482,710) $ 4,710,775

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION —

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Internal
Enterprise Senice
Fund Fund
Operating revenues:
Other state revenue $ 27,444 % -
Other local revenue 844,172 136,479
Total operating revenues 871,616 136,479
Operating expenses:
Classified salaries 242,581 -
Classified salaries 461,586 -
Employee benefits 1,097,841 -
Books and supplies 159,663 -
Contract senices and operating expenses 532,763 320,616
Total operating expenses 2,494,434 320,616
Operating loss (1,622,818) (184,137)
Non-operating (expense) revenue:
Transfers in 1,284,250 -
Transfers out (32,468) -
Total non-operating revenue 1,251,782 -
Change in net position (371,036) (184,137)
Net position, July 1, 2021 (111,674) 4,894,912
Net position, June 30, 2022 $ (482,710) $ 4,710,775

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Internal
Enterprise Senvice
Fund Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from self-insurance $ - $ 130,278
Cash received from state and local sources 625,270 -
Cash paid to employees (1,427,798) -
Cash paid for operating expenses (612,315) (291,901)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,414,843) (161,623)
Cash flows provided by financing sources
Transfer to other funds 65,424 -
Transfer from other funds 1,284,250 -
Net cash provided by financing sources 1,349,674 -
Decrease in Cash in County Treasury (65,169) (161,623)
Cash in County Treasury, July 1, 2021 65,169 4,917,493
Cash in County Treasury, June 30, 2022 $ - $ 4,755,870
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Operating loss $ (1,622,818) $ (184,137)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (1,325) (6,201)
Due from other funds (284,259)
Deferred outflows of resources (636,365) -
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 80,111 28,715
Deferred revenues 39,238 -
Net pension liability 549,044 -
Deferred inflows of resources 461,531 -
Total adjustments 207,975 22,514
Net cash used in operating activities $ (1,414,843) $ (161,623)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ASSETS

Cash in County Treasury (Note 2)

Receivables
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Special Education
Pass-through Fund

$ 211,441
2,643,255
178,680

5 3033376
3,014,317
29,859

3,044,176

$ (10,800)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION —
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Special Education
Pass-through Fund

Revenues:
Federal - pass-through $ 4,047,083
Other State Revenue 5,549,044
Other Local Revenue (10,800)
Total revenue 9,585,327
Expenditures:
Other outgo 9,596,127
Change in net position (10,800)

Net Postion, July 1, 2021 -

Net Postion, July 1, 2022 $ (10,800)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools (the "County Office") accounts for its financial transactions in
accordance with the policies and procedures of the California Department of Education's California School
Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the County Office conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity: The Superintendent of Schools and the Board of Education are the level of government
which has governance responsibilities over all activities related to public school education as conducted by
the County Office. The County Office is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board members and the Superintendent have
approval authority, the responsibility to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for
fiscal matters.

The County Office receives funding from local, state and federal government sources and must comply with
all the requirements of these funding sources.

Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements: The basic financial statements include a Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) section providing an analysis of the County Office's overall financial
position and results of operations, financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the
County Office's activities, including infrastructure, and a focus on the major funds.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. Custodial funds
are not included in the government-wide financial statements. Custodial funds are reported only in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position at the fund financial statement level.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes
place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Codification Section (GASB Cod. Sec.) N50.118-.121.

Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the
program itself or from parties outside the County Office's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program
revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the County Office's general revenues.

Allocation of indirect expenses: The County Office reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement
of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense
is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on long-
term liabilities is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting: The accounts of the County Office are organized on the basis of
funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
balances, revenues and expenditures. County Office resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.

A - Major Funds

The County School Service Fund is the general operating fund of the County Office and accounts for all
revenues and expenditures of the County Office not encompassed within other funds. All general tax
revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures and capital improvement costs that are not paid
through other funds are paid from the County School Service Fund. For financial reporting purposes, the
current year activity and year-end balances of the Special Reserve for Other than Capital Outlay Fund is
included in the County School Service Fund.

The Adult Education Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

The Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects Fund is a Capital Projects Fund used to account for
resources used for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and equipment by the County Office.

The Proprietary Fund - Enterprise Fund is a business-type activity fund that is used to account for activities
of the Shady Creek Outdoor School Program and Sutter County Career Technical Training Center. On
September 1, 2021, Sutter County Superintendent of Schools acquired Cambridge Junior College (the
“College”) in exchange for $450,000. Sutter County Superintendent of Schools will operate the College
and account for its operations in an enterprise fund. No assets or liabilities were acquired.

The Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund is a self-insurance fund used to account for services rendered
on a cost-reimbursement basis within the County Office.

B - Other Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. This classification includes the Child Development
and Cafeteria Funds.

The Special Education Pass-Through Fund is a custodial fund used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for special education programs operated by
various school districts within the county.

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual: Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, the proprietary fund financial
statements and the fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Modified Accrual: The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within
60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and
interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by
July 1. A public hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The County Office's governing
board satisfied these requirements.

Receivables: Receivables consist of amounts due from the federal, state and local government, or private
sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the County Office's
grants and contracts. The County Office has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was
needed as of June 30, 2022.

Capital Assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value for the
contributed asset. Additions, improvements and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life
of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over 4 - 30 years depending on asset types.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as
such will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The County Office
has recognized a deferred outflow of resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability and
total OPEB liability reported in the Statement of Net Position.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County Office has recognized a deferred inflow of
resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability and total OPEB liability reported in the
Statement of Net Position.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) and Public Employers Retirement Fund B (PERF B) and
additions to/deductions from STRP’s and PERF B'’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by STRP and PERF B. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Certain investments are reported at fair value.

STRP PERF B Total
Deferred outflows of resources $ 3,475,160 $ 2,959,012 $ 6,434,172
Deferred inflows of resources $ 8,421,000 $ 6,061,000 $ 14,482,000
Net pension liability $ 5,671,000 $ 13,061,000 $ 18,732,000
Pension expense $ 556,730 $ 1,145,153 $ 1,701,883
(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interfund Activity: Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated
as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions
are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or governmental proprietary funds are netted as
part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Compensated Absences: Compensated absences benefits totaling $34,696 are recorded as a liability of
the County Office. The liability is for the earned but unused benefits. The amount to be provided by future
operations represents the total amount that would be required to be provided from the general operating
revenues of the County Office if all the benefits were to be paid.

Accumulated Sick Leave: Sick leave benefits are accumulated for each employee. The employees do not
gain a vested right to accumulated sick leave. Accumulated employee sick leave benefits are not
recognized as liabilities of the County Office since cash payment of such benefits is not probable. Therefore,
sick leave benefits are recorded as expenditures in the period that sick leave is taken.

Unearned Revenue: Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are recorded as unearned
revenue until earned.

Net Position: Net position is displayed in three components:

1 - Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent bond proceeds) of
any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

2 - Restricted Net Position - Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not
appropriable for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restriction for
legally restricted programs represents the portion of net position restricted to specific program expenditures.
The restriction for capital projects represents the portion of net position restricted for capital projects. The
restriction for self-insurance represents the portion of net position restricted for payment of contracted
services related to claims. It is the County Office's policy to use restricted net position first when allowable
expenditures are incurred.

3 - Unrestricted Net Position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net
investment in capital assets".

Fund Balance Classifications: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and
1800, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800)
implements a five-tier fund balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government
is bound by spending constraints imposed on the use of its resources. The five classifications, discussed
in more detail below, are non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

A — Non-spendable Fund Balance: The non-spendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that
are not in spendable form, such as revolving fund cash and prepaid expenditures.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B - Restricted Fund Balance: The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to
externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These are the same restrictions used to determine
restricted net position as reported in the government-wide and fiduciary fund statements.

C - Committed Fund Balance: The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal
constraints self-imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. The constraints giving rise to
committed fund balance must be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts
may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. Formal
action by the Board of Education is required to remove any commitment from any fund balance. At June 30,
2022, the County Office had no committed fund balances.

D - Assigned Fund Balance: The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the County
Office's Board of Education has approved to be used for specific purposes, based on the County Office's
intent related to those specific purposes. The Board of Education can designate personnel with the authority
to assign fund balances. At June 30, 2022, Sutter County Superintendent had been designated with
authority to make fund balance assignments.

E - Unassigned Fund Balance: In the County School Service Fund only, the unassigned fund balance
classification reflects the residual balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

In any fund other than the County School Service Fund, a positive unassigned fund balance is never
reported because amounts in any other fund are assumed to have been assigned, at least, to the purpose
of that fund. However, deficits in any fund, including the County School Service Fund that cannot be
eliminated by reducing or eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative
unassigned fund balance.

Fund Balance Policy: The County Office has an expenditure policy relating to fund balances. For purposes
of fund balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balances first, followed in
order by committed fund balances (if any), assigned fund balances and lastly unassigned fund balances.

While GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do not require county offices to establish a minimum fund balance
policy or a stabilization arrangement, GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do require the disclosure of a
minimum fund balance policy and stabilization arrangements, if they have been adopted by the Board of
Education and the Superintendent. The County Office has established a policy to maintain a 5% reserve
for economic uncertainty but has not established a stabilization arrangement.

Property Taxes: Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1.
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are
due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Sutter bills and collects taxes for the County
Office. Tax revenues are recognized by the County Office when due.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the
commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

Eliminations and Reclassifications: In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column.

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.
GASB 87 requires the recognition of certain assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified
as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. Under this statement a lease is required to be recognized as a lease liability and
an intangible right to use lease asset and the lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and deferred
inflow of resources. This statement was originally effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019, but due to the adoption of GASB 95, the implementation date was extended to reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2021. County Office management performed an analysis and determined that the
implementation of GASB 87 did not have a material impact on the County Office’s financial statements and
there was no restatement to beginning net position.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Governmental
Activities
Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury $ 26,521,915
Deposits:
Rewlving cash fund 10,500
Cash on hand and in banks 1,958
Cash with Fiscal Agent 5,000
Total $ 26,539,373

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Pooled Funds: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the County Office maintains
substantially all of its cash in Sutter County Treasury. The County Office is considered to be an involuntary
participant in an external investment pool. The fair value of the County Office's investment pool is reported
in the financial statements at amounts based upon the County Office's pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County
Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

Because the County Office's deposits are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund under the
care of a third party and the County Office's share of the pool does not consist of specific, identifiable
investment securities owned by the County Office, no disclosure of the individual deposits and investments
or related custodial credit risk classifications is required.

In accordance with applicable state laws, Sutter County Treasurer may invest in derivative securities.
However, at June 30, 2022, Sutter County Treasurer has indicated that the Treasurer's pooled investment
fund contained no derivatives or other investments with similar risk profiles.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk: The County Office limits custodial credit risk by ensuring uninsured
balances are collateralized by the respective financial institution. Cash balances held in banks are insured
up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by the
respective financial institution. At June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the County Office's accounts was
$12,458 and the bank balances were $12,458, all of which was insured by the FDIC.

Cash with Fiscal Agent: Cash with Fiscal Agent totaling $5,000 represents amounts held in the County
Office's name by a third party custodian at June 30, 2022.

Interest Rate Risk: The County Office does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. At June 30, 2022, the County Office had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and
investments held.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The County Office does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any
one issuer. At June 30, 2022, the County Office had no concentration of credit risk.

(Continued)

26.
213



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 111 of 777

SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Activity: Transfers between funds of the County Office are recorded as interfund transfers. The
unpaid balances at year-end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from individual
funds.

Interfund Receivables/Payables: Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30,
2022 were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
Governmental Activities
Major Fund:
County School Senice $ 226,736 $ 521,079
Non-Major Funds:
Cafeteria 100 1,599
Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Fund:
Other Enterprise 284,259 137,238
Custodial Fund:
Special Education Pass-Through 178,680 29,859
Totals $ 689,775 $ 689,775

Transfers: Transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which
the resources are to be expended.

Transfer from the County School Senice Fund to the Adult Education Fund $ 209,602
to use unrestricted funds.

Transfer from the County School Senice Fund to the Cafeteria Fund to cover costs. 221,805

Transfer from the County School Senice Fund to the Special Reserve for Capital
Outlay Projects Fund for deferred maintenance. 2,100,000

Transfer from the County School Senice Fund to the Enterprise Fund for activities. 1,284,250

Transfer from Adult Education Fund to the County School Senice Fund for
indirect costs. 60,164

Transfer from the Child Development Fund to the County School Senvice Fund for

indirect costs. 2,000
Transfer from the Cafeteria Fund to the County School Senice Fund for indirect costs. 14,945
Transfer from the Enterprise Fund to County School Service Fund for closing offset. 32,468

$ 3925234
(Continued)
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 is shown below:

Transfers Transfers
Balance and and Balance
July 1, 2021 Additions Deductions June 30, 2022
Non-depreciable:
Land $ 2,419,931 § - $ - $ 2,419,931
Work-in-process 59,429 210,823 - 270,252
Depreciable:
Land improvements 1,191,482 33,161 - 1,224,643
Buildings 19,224,420 149,848 (85,991) 19,288,277
Equipment 2,460,017 186,413 (30,011) 2,616,419
Totals, at cost 25,355,279 580,245 (116,002) 25,819,522
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 346,770 60,768 - 407,538
Buildings 6,541,178 495,580 (26,370) 7,010,388
Equipment 1,697,627 182,005 (30,011) 1,849,621
Total accumulated
depreciation 8,585,575 738,353 (56,381) 9,267,547
Capital assets, net $ 16,769,704 $ (158,108) $ (59,621) $ 16,551,975

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction $ 363,107
Instruction supervision and administration 50,100
School site administration 44,619
Food sernvices 2,972
All other pupil senices 12,520
Community senvices 28,808
Enterprise Activities 2,212
All other general administration 162,785
Plant senices 65,441
Data processing 5,789

Total depreciation expense $ 738,353

(Continued)
28.

215



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 113 of 777

SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Schedule of Changes In Long-Term Liabilities: A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 is shown below:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2021 Additions Deductions June 30,2022 One Year

Governmental Activities

Net pension liability (Notes 7 and 8) $35,866,316 $ - $17,817,044 $18,049,272 $ -
Total OPEB liability (Note 9) 4,373,131 448,229 - 4,821,360 -
Compensated absences 35,497 - 801 34,696 34,696

Totals $40,274,944 $ 448,229 $17,817,845 $22,905328 $ 34,696

Business-Type Activities
Net pension liability (Note 7 and 8) $ 133684 $ 549,044 $ - $ 682728 $ -

Payments on net pension liability, total OPEB liability and compensated absences are made from the fund
for which the related employee worked.

(Continued)
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NOTE 6 - FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, by category, at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Special
County Reserve for
School Adult Capital Outlay All
Service Education Projects Non-Major
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Revolving cash fund $ 10,500 $ -3 - 8 - % 10,500
Prepaid expenses 612,827 - - - 612,827
Subtotal nonspendable 623,327 - - - 623,327
Restricted:
Legally restricted programs 6,255,109 - - - 6,255,109
Adult education programs - 80,796 - - 80,796
Capital projects - - 6,186,999 - 6,186,999
Subtotal restricted 6,255,109 80,796 6,186,999 - 12,522,904
Assigned:
County Office of Education 6,085,084 - - - 6,085,084
One Stop 72,307 - - - 72,307
Educational services 1,487,776 - - - 1,487,776
ROP 62,628 - - - 62,628
SELPA 45,987 - - - 45,987
MAA 1,240,905 - - - 1,240,905
Alternative education 12,862 - - - 12,862
Pathw ays Charter Academy 5,709 - - - 5,709
Equipment replacement
and purchase 1,210,040 - - - 1,210,040
Subtotal assigned 10,223,298 - - - 10,223,298
Unassigned:
Designated for economic
uncertainty 1,928,902 - - - 1,928,902
Unassigned - - - (2,264) (2,264)
Subtotal unassigned 1,928,902 - - (2,264) 1,926,638
Total fund balances $ 19,030,636 $ 80,796 $ 6,186,999 $ (2,264) $ 25,296,167

(Continued)
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NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN
General Information about the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan

Plan Description: Teaching-certified employees of the County Office are provided with pensions through
the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). The Teachers'
Retirement Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and amended by the
California Legislature, established this plan and CalSTRS as the administrator. The benefit terms of the
plans may be amended through legislation. CalSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can
be obtained at http://www.calstrs.com.

Benefits Provided: The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas:

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could
be creditable to CalSTRS.

. CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS.

The Defined Benefit (DB) Program provides retirement benefits based on members' final compensation,
age and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon
disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon the death of eligible members. There are several differences
between the two benefit formulas which are noted below.

CalSTRS 2% at 60 - CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for
retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members
who have 30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the
age factor, up to the 2.4 percent maximum.

CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on a one-year final compensation for members who retired
on or after January 1, 2001, with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with less
than 25 years of credited service if the employer elected to pay the additional benefit cost prior to January 1,
2014. One-year final compensation means a member’s highest average annual compensation earnable for
12 consecutive months calculated by taking the creditable compensation that a member could earn in a
school year while employed on a fulltime basis, for a position in which the person worked. For members
with less than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is the highest average annual compensation
earnable for any 36 consecutive months of credited service.

CalSTRS 2% at 62 - CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age
factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest average annual
compensation earnable for 36 consecutive months of credited service.

(Continued)
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NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Contributions: Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature
and Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law.

The CalSTRS Funding Plan established a schedule of contribution rate increases shared among members,
employers, and the State of California to bring CalSTRS toward full funding by fiscal year 2046. California
Senate Bill 90 and California Assembly Bill 84 (collectively the “Special Legislation”), were signed into law
in June 2019 and June 2020, respectively, and provided supplemental contributions to the DB Program
along with supplemental contribution rate relief to employers through fiscal year June 30, 2022.

A summary of statutory contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the DB Program pursuant
to the CalSTRS Funding Plan, and the Special Legislation, are as follows:

Members - Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 10.250 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2021-22. Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members contribute 50 percent of the
normal cost of their retirement plan, which resulted in a contribution rate of 10.205 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2021-22.

According to current law, the contribution rate for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members is adjusted if the normal
cost increases or decreases by more than 1 percent since the last time the member contribution rate was
set. Based on the June 30, 2020, valuation adopted by the board in June 2021, the increase in normal cost
was less than 1percent. Therefore, the contribution rate for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members did not change
effective July 1, 2021.

Employers — 16.920 percent of applicable member earnings. This rate reflects the original employer
contribution rate of 19.10 percent resulting from the CalSTRS Funding Plan, and subsequently reduced for
the 2.18 percentage points to be paid on behalf of employers pursuant to Special Legislation.

Beginning in fiscal year 2021-22, the CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer
supplemental contribution rate up or down by a maximum of 1% for a total rate of no higher than 20.25%
and no lower than 8.25%. In June 2021, the CalSTRS board voted to keep the employer supplemental
contribution rate the same for fiscal year 2021-22; it remained at 10.85% effective July 1, 2021.

Through the Special Legislation approved in June 2019 and June 2020, the State made supplemental
contributions of approximately $2.2 billion to CalSTRS on behalf of employers to supplant the amounts
submitted by employers for fiscal years 2019-20 through 2021-22. Specifically, employers will remit 1.03%,
2.95% and 2.18% less than is required by the CalSTRS Funding Plan for fiscal years 2019-20, 2020-21
and 2021-22, respectively.

(Continued)
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NOTE 7 - NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The CalSTRS employer contribution rate increases effective for fiscal year 2021-2022 through fiscal year
2045-46 are summarized in the table below:

Supplemental Rate
Rate Per Adjustment
Effective Base CalSTRS Per Special
Date Rate Funding Plan Legislation Total
July 1, 2021 8.250% 10.850% (2.180%) 16.920%
July 1, 2022 to
June 30, 2046 8.250% 0 N/A 0
July 1, 2046 8.250% Increase from prior rate ceases in 2046-47

(1) The CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer contribution rate up or down by up to
1% each year, but no higher than 20.250% total and no lower than 8.250%.

The County Office contributed $1,392,160 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

State — 10.828 percent of the members’ calculated based on creditable compensation from two fiscal years
prior.

The state is required to contribute a base contribution rate set in statute at 2.017%. Pursuant to the
CalSTRS Funding Plan, the state also has a supplemental contribution rate, which the board can increase
by up to 0.5% each fiscal year to help eliminate the state’s share of the CalSTRS unfunded actuarial
obligation by 2046. In June 2021, the board approved an increase of 0.5% for fiscal year 2021-22, which
will increase the state supplemental contribution rate to 6.311% effective July 1, 2021.

Special legislation appropriated supplemental state contributions to reduce the state’s portion of the
unfunded actuarial obligation of the DB Program in fiscal years 2019-20 through 2022-23. These
contributions are funded from future excess County School Service Fund revenues, pursuant to the
requirements of California Proposition 2, Rainy-Day Budget Stabilization Fund Act, which passed in 2014.
Accordingly, the contribution amounts are subject to change each year based on the availability of funding.
For fiscal year 2020-21, CalSTRS received $297.0 million in supplemental state contributions from
Proposition 2 funds. Of this total, approximately $170.0 million is designated to cover forgone contributions
due to the suspension of the 0.5% increase to the state supplemental contribution rate in fiscal year 2020—
21. The remaining $127.0 million is designated to reduce the state’s share of CalSTRS’ unfunded actuarial
obligation.

(Continued)
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The CalSTRS state contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2021-2022 and beyond are summarized in
the table below.
Supplemental

Rate Per
Effective Base CalSTRS SBMA
Date Rate Funding Plan Funding(® Total
July 01, 2021 2.017% 6.311% 2.50% 10.828%
July 01, 2022 to
June 30, 2046 2.017% @ 2.50% @
July 01, 2046 2.017% @ 2.50% @)

(1) The SBMA contribution rate excludes the $72 million that is reduced from the required contribution in
accordance with Education Code section 22954.

(2) The board has limited authority to adjust the state contribution rate annually through June 2046 in order to
eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation. The board cannotincrease the supplemental rate by more
than 0.5% in a fiscal year, and if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation, the supplemental contribution rate
imposed would be reduced to 0%.

(3) From July 1, 2046, and thereafter, the rates in effect prior to July 1, 2014, are reinstated, if necessary, to
address any remaining unfunded actuarial obligation.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2022, the County Office reported a liability for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the County
Office. The amount recognized by the County Office as its proportionate share of the net pension liability,
the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the
County Office were as follows:

County Office's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 5,671,000

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the County Office 3,374,000
Total $ 9,045,000

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The County Office’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the County Office’s share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the contributions of all participating school districts and the State. At June 30, 2021, the
County Office’s proportion was 0.012 percent, which was a decrease of 0.003 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2020.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the County Office recognized pension expense of $556,730 and revenue
of $947,855 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2022, the County Office reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 14,000 $ 604,000
Changes of assumptions 804,000 -
Net differences between projected and

actual earnings on investments - 4,486,000
Changes in proportion and differences between

County Office contributions and proportionate share

of contributions 1,265,000 3,331,000
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 1,392,160 -

Total $ 3,475,160 $ 8,421,000

$1,392,160 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2023 $ (1,386,100)
2024 $ (1,131,100)
2025 $ (1,461,100)
2026 $ (1,711,767)
2027 $ (221,767)
2028 $ (426,166)

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions and changes in proportion
and differences between County Office contributions and proportionate share of contributions are amortized
over a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 7 years as of
the June 30, 2021 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between
projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2021 . The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, used
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2020

Experience Study July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.10%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth 3.50%

Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB, maintain 85%

Purchasing power level for DB, not
applicable for DBS/CBB

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increase per AB
1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment
rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense
occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the STRP’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

Mortality: CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality
table and projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in
increases in life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom
tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal
to 110 percent of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table,
issued by the Society of Actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS investment staff and
investment consultants as inputs to the process.
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The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the CalSTRS board in January 2020 in
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, CalSTRS
consulting actuary reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital
market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset
allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*
Assumed Asset Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public Equity 42% 4.8%
Real Estate Assets 15 3.6
Private Equity 13 6.3
Fixed Income 12 1.3
Risk Mitigating Strategies 10 1.8
Inflation Sensitive 6 3.3
Cash / Liquidity 2 (0.4)

* 20-year geometric average

Sensitivity of the County Office’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate: The following presents the County Office’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.1 percent, as well as what the County Office’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage- point
lower (6.10 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)
County Office's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $ 11,544,000 $ 5,671,000 $ 796,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalSTRS financial report.

NOTE 8 - NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B
General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund B

Plan Description: The schools cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Public
Employer’s Retirement Fund B (PERF B) is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). Plan membership consists of non-teaching and non-certified employees of public
schools (K-12), community college districts, offices of education, charter and private schools (elective) in
the State of California.

(Continued)
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The Plan was established to provide retirement, death and disability benefits to non-teaching and non-
certified employees in schools. The benefit provisions for Plan employees are established by statute.
CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at:

https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/acfr-2021.pdf.

Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service, age,
final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible
members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after
five years (10 years for State Second Tier members) of credited service.

Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from members
and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a percentage of
applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and depend on the
respective employer’s benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by periodic actuarial
valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas and employee groups
of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made when districts first join
PERF B, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining contribution rates.

The required contribution rates of most active plan members are based on a percentage of salary in excess
of a base compensation amount ranging from zero dollars to $863 monthly.

Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the year
ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Members - The member contribution rate was 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year
2021-22.

Employers - The employer contribution rate was 22.91 percent of applicable member earnings.
The County Office contributed $2,487,012 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2022, the County Office reported a liability of $13,061,000 or
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021. The County Office's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
County Office's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating
school districts. At June 30, 2021 the County Office’s proportion was 0.064 percent, which was a decrease
of 0.005 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the County Office recognized pension expense of $1,145,153 and no
revenue was provided by the State. At June 30, 2022, the County Office reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 390,000 $ 31,000
Changes of assumptions - -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments - 5,012,000
Changes in proportion and differences between County Office
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 82,000 1,018,000
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,487,012 -
Total $ 2,959,012 $ 6,061,000

$2,487,012 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Years Ended

June 30,
2023 $ (1,501,000)
2024 $ (1,288,000)
2025 $ (1,406,000)
2026 $ (1,394,000)

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions are amortized over a
closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 4 years as of the
June 30, 2021 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected
and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 , and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2021. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, used
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2020

Experience Study June 30, 1997 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.15%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.50%

Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service
Post-retirement Benefit Increases Contract COLA up to 2.00% until Purchasing

Power Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies 2.50% thereafter

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 90% of Scale MP 2016. For more details on this table,
please refer to the 2017 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, mortality and
retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS’ website.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.

Long-Term* Expected Expected
Assumed Asset Real Rate of Return Real Rate of Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 Years 11+@
Global Equity 50% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28 1.00 2.62
Inflation Assets - 0.77 1.81
Private Equity 8 6.30 7.23
Real Estate Assets 13 3.75 4.93
Liquidity 1 - (0.92)

* 10-year geometric average
(1) An expected inflation rate of 2.00% used for this period
(2) An expected inflation rate of 2.92% used for this period

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection
of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out.
The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a detailed report that
can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.

(Continued)
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NOTE 8 - NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical and
forecasted information for all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11+ years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using
both short-term and long- term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

Sensitivity of the County Office’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate: The following presents the County Office’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the County Office’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage- point
lower (6.15 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)
County Office's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $ 22,023,000 $ 13,061,000 $ 5,621,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Notes 7 and 8, the County Office provides
post-employment health care benefits under a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan to eligible
retirees. The plan does not issue separate financial statements.

The Plan, which is administered by the County Office, allows employees who retire and meet retirement
eligibility requirements to continue health insurance coverage as a participant in the County Office’s plan.
The County Office’s Governing Board has the authority to establish or amend the benefit terms offered by
the Plan. The County Office’'s Governing Board also retains the authority to establish the requirements for
paying the Plan benefits as they come due. As of June 30, 2022 the County Office has not accumulated
assets in a qualified trust for the purpose of paying the benefits related to the County Office’s Total OPEB
Liability.

(Continued)
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NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: The following is a table of plan participants at June 30, 2022:

Number of
Participants
Inactive plan members, covered spouses, or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 13
Active employees 252
265

Benefits Provided: The benefits provided are the same as those provided for active employees. Employees
aged 55 or older who retire from the County Office with fifteen years of full-time service for administrative
personnel or twenty years of full-time service for non-administrative personnel are eligible. Administrative
retirees receive an amount equal to 50% of the highest available plan at the composite rate at the time of
retirement. Non-administrative retirees receive 65% of the cap at the time of retirement. The County Office
pays the benefits until the retiree reaches age 65 or becomes Medicare eligible.

Contributions: California Government Code specifies that the County Office's contribution requirements for
covered employees are established and may be amended by the Governing Board. Retirees participating
in the group insurance plans offered by the County Office are required to contribute 100% of the active
premiums. In future years, contributions are assumed to increase at the same rate as premiums. The
County Office’s premium rates being charged to these retirees are lower than the expected cost for a retiree
population under age 65. Thus, an implicit subsidy exists as a result of this difference between the actual
cost and the true retiree cost.

Contributions to the Plan from the County Office were $191,812 for the year ended June 30, 2022.
Employees are not required to contribute to the OPEB plan.

Total OPEB Liability

The County Office’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021.

(Continued)
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NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless

otherwise specified:
Valuation Date

Measurement Date

Mortality Rate

Discount Rate

Retirement Rate

Inflation Rate

Payroll Increases

Health Care Inflation

Termination Rate

Funding

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2021

2017 CalPERS Active Mortality for
Miscellaneous Employees and 2020

CalSTRS Mortality Table

2.16% - Based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond
Index

2017 CalPERS Retirement Rates for School
employees. 2020 CalSTRS Retirement
Rates.

2.50% per year

2.75% per year

4.00%

CalPERS 2017 Rates

CalSTRS 2020 Rates

Method Entry Age Cost Method (Level
Percentage of Pay)

(Continued)
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NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Changes in total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 4,373,131
Changes for the year:
Senice cost 344,778
Interest 98,281
Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between actual and expected experience 181,761
Changes in assumptions 15,221
Benefit payments (191,812)
Net change 448,229
Balance, June 30, 2022 $ 4,821,360

The changes in assumptions includes a change in the discount rate from 2.20% in the prior valuation to
2.16% in the current valuation due to the change in the bond rate. There were no changes between the
measurement date and the year ended June 30, 2022 which had a significant effect on the County Office’s
total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the Total
OPEB Liability of the County Office, as well as what the County Office’s Total OPEB Liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher
than the current discount rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(1.16%) Rate (2.16%) (3.16%)

Total OPEB liability $ 5,211,595 § 4,821,360 $ 4,451,094

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following
presents the Total OPEB Liability of the County Office, as well as what the County Office’s Total OPEB
Liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage-point lower
or one percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
(3.0%) Rate (4.0%) (5.0%)
Total OPEB liability $ 4,203,533 $ 4,821,360 $ 5,563,202
(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
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NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the County Office recognized OPEB expense of $509,318. At June 30,
2022, the County Office reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 278,792 $ -
Changes of assumptions 649,314 55,958

Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments - -

Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - -

Benefits made subsequent to measurement date 190,842 -

Total $ 1,118,948 $ 55,958

$190,842 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to benefits paid subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30,
2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB liability will be recognized
in OPEB expense in the amount of $66,259 annually. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows:

Years Ended

June 30,
2023 $ 66,259
2024 $ 66,259
2025 $ 66,259
2026 $ 66,259
2027 $ 66,259
Thereafter $ 540,853

(Continued)
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NOTE 10 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

The County Office is also a member of Tri-County Schools Insurance Group (TCSIG), which is a common
risk management and insurance program providing health and welfare insurance. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
The following is a summary of financial information for TCSIG as of June 30, 2021 (the latest information
available):

Total assets $ 35,687,368
Deferred outflows of resources $ 189,048
Total liabilities $ 11,255,003
Deferred inflows of resources $ 61,410
Net position $ 24,560,003
Total revenues $ 47,221,064
Total expenses $ 44,446,127
Change in net position $ 2,774,937

The relationship between Sutter County Superintendent of Schools and the Joint Powers Authority is such
that it is not a component unit of the County Office for financial reporting purposes.

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES

The County Office is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business.
In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially
affect the financial position or results of operations of the County Office.

Also, the County Office has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review
or audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under
terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements will not be material.
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Budget Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Local Control Funding Formula:
State apportionment $ 8377,092 $ 8,021,130 $ 7,976,446 $ (44,684)
Local sources 1,775,485 1,775,485 1,775,485 -
Total LCFF 10,152,577 9,796,615 9,751,931 (44,684)
Federal sources 4,935,686 5,749,705 3,689,836 (2,059,869)
Other state sources 10,650,380 14,488,972 15,113,085 624,113
Other local sources 12,731,222 11,416,455 9,921,038 (1,495,417)
Total revenues 38,469,865 41,451,747 38,475,890 (2,975,857)
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 9,350,906 8,820,118 8,895,778 (75,660)
Classified salaries 10,976,797 10,686,556 10,357,840 328,716
Employee benefits 9,058,684 8,706,992 8,610,892 96,100
Books and supplies 1,080,028 1,417,039 919,913 497,126
Contract senices and operating
expenditures 5,875,286 7,250,495 4,617,852 2,632,643
Other outgo 267,656 691,632 882,928 (191,296)
Capital outlay 161,504 919,879 530,055 389,824
Total expenditures 36,770,861 38,492,711 34,815,258 3,677,453
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 1,699,004 2,959,036 3,660,632 701,596
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 187,500 157,618 109,577 (48,041)
Transfers out (597,723) (3,974,786) (3,815,657) 159,129
Total other financing
sources (uses) (410,223) (3,817,168) (3,706,080) 111,088
Net change in fund balance 1,288,781 (858,132) (45,448) 812,684
Fund balance, July 1, 2021 19,076,084 19,076,084 19,076,084 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2022 $ 20,364,865 $ 18,217,952 $ 19,030,636 $ 812,684
See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
ADULT EDUCATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Federal sources $ 314,922 $ 327,178 $ 322,644 $ (4,534)
Other state sources 3,282,655 3,431,997 3,430,185 (1,812)
Other local sources - - (11,195) (11,195)
Total revenues 3,597,577 3,759,175 3,741,634 (17,541)
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 346,699 470,682 454,592 16,090
Classified salaries 268,900 255,013 248,550 6,463
Employee benefits 253,681 278,191 263,702 14,489
Books and supplies 48,805 51,223 43,435 7,788
Contract senices and operating
expenditures 408,646 390,810 349,949 40,861
Other outgo 2,472,663 2,605,628 2,539,396 66,232
Capital Outlay - 6,000 5,440 560
Total expenditures 3,799,394 4,057,547 3,905,064 152,483
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (201,817) (298,372) (163,430) 134,942
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 201,817 284,670 209,602 (75,068)
Transfers out - - (60,164) (60,164)
Total other financing
sources (uses) 201,817 284,670 149,438 (135,232)
Net change in fund balance - (13,702) (13,992) (290)
Fund balance, July 1, 2021 94,788 94,788 94,788 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2022 $ 94,788 $ 81,086 $ 80,796 $ (290)

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY OFFICE'S
TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Last 10 Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 340420 $ 349,782 $ 343589 $ 272,313 $ 344,778

Interest 96,348 112,886 119,451 129,945 98,281

Difference betw een actual and expected experience - - 56,552 73,330 181,761

Change in assumptions - (75,094) 267,720 483,896 15,221

Benefit payments (223,866) (232,643) (188,229) (252,474) (191,812)
Net change in total OPEB liability 212,902 154,931 599,083 707,010 448,229
Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 2,699,205 2,912,107 3,067,038 3,666,121 4,373,131
Total OPEB liability - end of year $ 2,912,107 $ 3,067,038 $ 3,666,121 $ 4,373,131 $ 4,821,360
Covered employee payroll $19,974,992 $20,524,304 $21,088,722 $19,254,182 $20,409,854
Total OPEB liablity as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 14.6% 14.9% 17.4% 22.7% 23.6%

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively. The amounts presented for each fiscal year were
determined as of the year end that occurred one year prior. All years prior to 2018 are not available.

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

County Office's proportion of the

net pension liability 0.016% 0.016% 0.016% 0.015% 0.016% 0.014% 0.015% 0.012%
County Office's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 9,453,000 $10,529,000 $13,013,000 $13,726,000 $14,315,000 $12,373,000 $14,907,000 5,671,000
State's proportionate share of the

net pension liability associated w ith

the County Office 5,708,000 5,568,000 7,408,000 8,120,000 8,196,000 6,750,000 8,147,000 3,374,000

Total net pension liability $15,161,000 $16,097,000 $20,421,000 $21,846,000 $22,511,000 $19,123,000 $23,054,000 9,045,000

County Office's covered payroll $ 7,205,000 $ 7,259,000 $ 8,018,000 $ 7,866,000 $ 7,990,000 $ 4,504,000 $ 8,606,800 $ 6,910,000
County Office's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage of its

covered payroll 131.20% 145.05% 162.30% 174.50% 179.16% 274.71% 173.20% 82.07%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56% 71.82% 87.21%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

County Office's proportion of the

net pension liability 0.059% 0.065% 0.066% 0.067% 0.069% 0.068% 0.069% 0.064%
County Office's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 7,505,000 $ 9,624,000 $13,034,000 $15,909,000 $18,435,000 $19,849,000 $21,093,000 $13,061,000
County Office's covered payroll $ 6,154,000 $ 7,228,000 $ 7,918,000 $ 8,496,000 $ 9,177,000 $ 9,489,000 $10,130,000 $ 9,170,000
County Office's proportionate share of the

net pension liability as a percentage of its

covered payroll 121.95% 133.15% 164.61% 187.25% 200.88% 209.18% 208.22% 142.43%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 83.38% 79.43% 73.89% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05% 70.00% 80.97%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S CONTRIBUTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Contractually required contribution $

Contributions in relation to the contractually

State Teachers' Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

644,571 $ 860,335 $ 1,003,630 $ 1,152,938 $ 733,321 $ 1,471,692 $ 1,319,875 $ 1,392,160

(644,571) $ (860,335) $(1,003,630) $(1,152,938) $ (733,321) $(1,471,692) $(1,319,875) $ (1,392,160)

-8 -8 -8 - s -8 - s - s -

required contribution $
Contribution deficiency (excess) $
County Office's covered payroll $

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

7,259,000 $ 8,018,000 $ 7,866,000 $ 7,990,000 $ 4,504,000 $ 8,606,800 $ 6,910,000 $ 7,289,000

8.88% 10.73% 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 17.10%* 16.15%* 16.92%***

* This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 18.13 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 1.03 percentage points to be paid on behalf of

employers pursuant to SB90.

*k

employers pursuant to SB 90.

This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.95 percentage points to be paid on behalf of

*** This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.18 percentage points to be paid on behalf of

employers pursuant to SB 90.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Contractually required contribution $ 850,864 $ 938,001 $ 1,173,463 $ 1425344 $ 1,713,883 $ 1,997,667 $ 1,898,153 $ 2,487,012
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution $ (850,864) $ (938,001) $(1,173,463) $(1,425,344) $(1,713,883) $(1,997,667) $(1,898,153) $ (2,487,012)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 3 - $ - $ - $ -
County Office's covered payroll $ 7,228,000 $ 7,918,000 $ 8,496,000 $ 9,177,000 $ 9,489,000 $10,130,000 $ 9,170,000 $10,856,000
Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 11.77% 11.85% 13.89% 15.53% 18.06% 19.72% 20.70% 22.91%

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

241



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 139 of 777

SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule: The County Office employs budget control by object codes and by
individual appropriation accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of
Education to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major
object code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the County School Service and Adult
Education Funds are presented as Required Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the
same as GAAP.

Schedule of Changes in Total Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability: The Schedule of Changes
in Total OPEB Liability is presented to illustrate the elements of the County Office's Total OPEB liability.
There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled,
governments should present information for those years for which information is available. The County
Office has not accumulated assets in a qualified trust for the purpose of paying the benefits related to the
County Office’s Total OPEB Liability.

Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability: The Schedule of the County
Office’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability is presented to illustrate the elements of the
County’s Net Pension Liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information
is available.

Schedule of the County Office's Contributions: The Schedule of the County Office's Contributions is
presented to illustrate the County’s required contributions relating to the pensions. There is a requirement
to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should
present information for those years for which information is available.

Changes of Benefit Terms: There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required Supplementary
Information.

Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate used to calculate the County Office’s OPEB liability was 3.5%,
2.2% and 2.16% in the June 30, 2019, 2020 and 2021 actuarial reports, respectively.

The discount rates used for the Public Employer's Retirement Fund B (PERF B) was 7.50, 7.65, 7.65, 7.15,
7.15, 7.15, 7.15 and 7.15 percent in the June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020
actuarial reports, respectively.

The following are the assumptions for State Teachers' Retirement Plan:

Measurement Period

As of As of As of As of As of As of As of
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30
Assumption 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Consumer price inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.00% 3.00%
Investment rate of return 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.60% 7.60%
Wage growth 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.75% 3.75%
54.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury
Receivables

Due from other funds

Total assets

Child
Development Cafeteria
Fund Fund Total

$ 44,321 $ (15215) $ 29,106
28,019 17,011 45,030
- 100 100

$ 72,340 $ 1,896 $ 74,236

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unrestricted

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and
fund balances

$ 74604 $ 297 § 74,901

- 1,599 1,599
74,604 1,896 76,500
(2,264) - (2,264)
(2,264) - (2,264)

$ 72340 $ 1,896 $ 74,236
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Child
Dewelopment Cafeteria
Fund Fund Total
Revenues:
Federal sources $ 52,704 $ 62,281 $ 114,985
Other state sources 6,718 3,587 10,305
Other local sources (2,264) - (2,264)
Total revenues 57,158 65,868 123,026
Expenditures:
Current:
Classified salaries - 110,433 110,433
Employee benefits - 39,539 39,539
Books and supplies - 121,176 121,176
Contract senices and
operating expenditures 57,422 1,580 59,002
Total expenditures 57,422 272,728 330,150
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (264) (206,860) (207,124)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 221,805 221,805
Transfers out (2,000) (14,945) (16,945)
Total other financing
(uses) sources (2,000) 206,860 204,860
Net change in fund balances (2,264) - (2,264)
Fund balance, July 1, 2021 - - -
Fund balance, June 30, 2022 $ (2264) $ - % (2,264)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

ORGANIZATION
June 30, 2022

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools provides supportive services to eight elementary school districts,
two unified school districts and two high school districts within Sutter County. There were no changes in
the County boundaries during the current year.

The County Office supervises the activities and financial affairs of each school district to ensure that
requirements of the California Education Code are met. It also provides administrative and budgetary
assistance, furnishes educational specialists, facilitates the development or improvement of instructional
programs, coordinates interdistrict activities, and performs other services, as needed, to improve the quality
of education throughout the County.

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires
June McJunkin President 2024
Victoria Lachance Vice President 2024
Jim Richmond Member 2022
Harijit Singh Member 2022
Vacant Member 2022

CABINET ADMINISTRATION

Tom Reusser Jessica Burrone
Superintendent Director
Special Education
Joe Hendrix
Deputy Superintendent Kathy Mercier
Director
Ron Sherrod Human Resources
Assistant Superintendent
Business Services Angela Huerta
Director
Brian Gault Communications
Assistant Superintendent
Educational Services Maggie Nicoletti

Executive Assistant to the Superintendent
Dr. Carolyn Patton
Assistant Superintendent
SELPA

Eric Pomeroy
Assistant Superintendent
Career and Adult Education
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
June 30, 2022

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
Certificate Numbers 52EF6161 14B47A5B
County Funded Non-Juvenile Courts:
Elementary 4 5
Secondary 22 24
Total County Funded Non-Juvenile Courts 26 29
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pass-
Through
Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures
U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California
Department of Education
Special Education Cluster:
84.027A Special Education: Alternate Dispute Resolution,
Part B, Sec 611 13007 $ 84,164
84.173A Special Education: IDEA Preschool Staff
Development, Part B, Section 619 13431 621
Subtotal Special Education Cluster 84,785
Adult Education Programs:
84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education and ELA 14508 77,228
84.002A Adult Education: English Literacy and Civics
Education 14109 35,952
84.002 Adult Education: Institutionalized Adults 13971 42,306
84.002A Adult Education : Adult Education 13978 167,158
Subtotal Adult Education Programs 322,644
ESEA: Title | Programs:
84.010 ESSA: Title |, Part A, Basic Grants Low Income
and Neglected 14329 86,427
84.010 ESEA: ESSA School Improvement (CSI)
Funding for LEAs 15438 220,926
84.010 ESEA: ESSA School Improvement (CSI)
Funding for COEs 15439 28,694
Subtotal ESEA: Title | Programs 336,047
Education Stabilization Fund Programs - COVID-19:
84.425 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant:
ESSER Il State Reserve - COVID-19 15618 110,682
84.425 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant:
ESSER Il State Reserve Emergency Needs - COVID-19 15620 79,353
84.425 Expanded Learing Opportunities (ELO) Grant: GEER Il
- COVID-19 15619 27,938
84.425C Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund:
Learning Loss Mitigation - COVID-19 15517 124,929
84.425 American Rescue Plan-Homeless Children and
Youth (ARP - Homeless I) - COVID-19 15564 112
84.425 Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ESSER) Fund - COVID-19 15536 26,451
84.425 Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ESSER Il) Fund - COVID-19 15547 258,399
Subtotal Education Stabilization Fund
Programs - COVID-19 627,864
84.181 Special Education: IDEA Early Intervention, Part C 23761 169,534
84.196 ESEA: Education for Homeless Children and Youth,
Subtitle VII-B Mckinney-Vento Act 14332 57,467
84.126 Department of Rehab: Workability Il, Transition Partnership 10006 184,239
(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pass-
Through
Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures
U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California
Department of Education
84.365 ESSA: Title Ill, English Learner Student Program 14346 $ 49,431
84.367 ESSA: Title Il, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 14341 13,581
84.424 ESSA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and
Academic Enrichment Grants 15396 10,000
Total U.S. Department of Education 1,855,592
U.S. Department of Health & Human Senices - Passed Through
California Department of Education
93.575 Child Development: Local Planning Councils 13946 52,704
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human
Senvices 52,704
U.S. Department of Labor - Passed through California Department
of Education
17.259 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 10055 2,195,931
Total U.S. Department of Labor 2,195,931
U.S. Department of Agriculture - Passed Through
California Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster:
10.555 Child Nutrition: School Programs 13391 275,087
10.555 Child Nutrition: SNP COVID-19 Emergency Operational
Costs Reimbursement (ECR) 15637 12,586
Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster 287,673
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 287,673
Total Federal Programs $ 4,391,900

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Enterprise
Fund

June 30, 2022 Unaudited Actual Financial Reporting

Ending Fund Balance: $ 3,175
Client proposed adjustment for GASB 68 (35,885)
Deferred outflow of resources related to purchase of Cambridge College (450,000)
June 30, 2022 Audit Financial Statements Ending

Fund Balance $ (482,710)

There were no adjustments made to any other funds of the County Office.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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(UNAUDITED)
(Budgeted)
2023 2022 2021 2020

County School Senice Fund
Rewvenues and other

financing sources 41,064,754 $ 38,585,467 36,880,985 $ 36,664,144
Expenditures 38,126,703 34,815,258 32,685,957 33,846,446
Other uses and transfers out 2,589,923 3,815,657 412,147 655,936
Total outgo 40,716,626 38,630,915 33,098,104 34,502,382
Change in fund balance 348,128 $ (45,448) 3,782,881 § 2,161,762
Ending fund balance 19,378,764 $ 19,030,636 19,076,084 $ 15,293,203
Available reserves 2,029,984 $ 1,928,902 1,651,990 $ 1,686,257
Designated for economic

uncertainties 2,029,984 $ 1,928,902 1,651,990 $ 1,686,257
Undesignated fund balance - $ - - 3 -
Available reserves as

percentages of total outgo 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 4.9%
All Funds
Total long-term liabilities 22,870,632 $§ 22,905,328 40,274,944  $ 35,791,097
Average daily attendance

at annual 25 26 50 50

The County School Service Fund balance has increased by $5,899,195 over the past three years. The
fiscal year 2022-23 budget projects a surplus of $348,128. For a County Office this size, the State of
California recommends available reserves of at least 3 percent of total County School Service Fund
expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo). The County Office met this requirement at

June 30, 2022.

The County Office has incurred operating surplus in two of the past three years, and anticipates incurring
an operating surplus during the 2022-23 fiscal year.

Total long-term liabilities have decreased by $12,885,769 over the past two years, primarily due to the net
pension obligation and total OPEB liability.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 24 over the past two years and is anticipated to decrease by

1 during the 2022-23 fiscal year.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Included in County Office
Financial Statements, or

Charter Schools Chartered by County Office Separate Report

2000 — AeroSTEM Academy Separate Report

2089 — Pathways Charter Academy Included in County Office

Financial Statements

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance: Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils
attending classes of the County Office. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to
provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts or county offices.
This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in
different programs.

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards: The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards includes the
federal award activity of the County Office and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained
in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. The County Office has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate
allowed in the Uniform Guidance.

Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements: This schedule
provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited
financial statements.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis — Unaudited: This schedule provides information on the County
Office's financial condition over the past three years and its anticipated condition for the 2022-23 fiscal year,
as required by the State Controller's Office.

Schedule of Charter Schools: This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education
to monitor financial reporting by Charter Schools.

NOTE 2 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosures in the financial statements of county offices of
education which adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code Sections 22714
and 44929. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the County Office did not adopt such a program.
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Crowe LLP
Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Board of Education
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
Yuba City, California

Report on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

We have audited Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the State of California's 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (the "Audit Guide") applicable to the state laws and regulations

listed below for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Description

Attendance

Teacher Certification and Misassignments

Kindergarten Continuance

Independent Study

Continuation Education

Instructional Time

Instructional Materials

Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers
Classroom Teacher Salaries

Early Retirement Incentive

Gann Limit Calculation

School Accountability Report Card

Juvenile Court Schools

Middle or Early College High Schools

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment

Transportation Maintenance of Effort

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

District of Choice

California Clean Energy Jobs Act

After/Before School Education Protection Account Funds
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Local Control Accountability Plan

Independent Study — Course Based

Immunizations

Procedures
Performed

Yes
Yes
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
Yes
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
Yes
Yes
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
Yes
No, See Below
No, See Below
No, See Below
Yes
Yes
Yes
No, See Below
No, See Below

(Continued)
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Procedures
Description Performed
Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO-G) Yes
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Yes
In Person Instruction Grant Yes
Attendance, for charter schools Yes
Mode of Instruction, for charter schools No, See Below
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study,
for charter schools Yes
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based
Instruction, for charter schools Yes
Charter School-Annual Instruction Minutes-Classroom based No, See Below
Charter School Facility Grant Program No, See Below

The County Office did not operate any kindergarten programs; therefore, we will not perform any
procedures over Kindergarten Continuance.

Independent Study ADA is below the minimum required for audit procedures; therefore, we did not perform
any procedures related to independent study.

The County Office did not offer Continuation Education; therefore, we did not perform any procedures
related to Continuation Education.

Instructional Time does not apply to County Offices of Education; therefore, we did not perform any
procedures related to Instructional Time.

The County Office is not a School District, therefore Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers is not
applicable.

The County Office is not a School District; therefore, Classroom Teachers Salaries is not applicable.

The County Office did not operate an Early Retirement Incentive Program in the current year; therefore, we
will not perform any procedures over this section.

The County Office does not operate a Juvenile Court School; therefore, we did not perform any procedures
related to Juvenile Court Schools.

The County Office did not have Middle or Early College programs; therefore, we did not perform any
procedures related to Middle or Early College.

The County Office did not operate any traditional kindergarten through third grade programs; therefore, we
will not perform any procedures over K-3 Grade Span Adjustment.

We did not perform any procedures related to Transportation Maintenance of Effort as the County Office
did not expend or reserve any Transportation MOE funds in the 2012-13 base year.

The County Office did not operate an Apprenticeship - Related and Supplemental Instruction programs in
the current year; therefore, we will not perform any procedures over this section.

The County Office did not elect to operate as District of Choice; therefore, we will not perform any
procedures over this section.

The County Office did not expend any Clean Energy Job Act funds; therefore, we did not perform any
procedures over this section.

(Continued)
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The County Office did not offer After/Before School Education and Safety Programs; therefore, we did not
perform any procedures related to this section.

The County Office does not operate any Independent Study - Course Based programs; therefore, we did
not perform any procedures over this section.

The County Office did not have any schools subject to audit of immunizations; therefore, we did not perform
any procedures related to Immunizations.

The County Office does not operate a Classroom Based Charter; therefore, we did not do any procedures
over Charter Schools Mode of Instruction or Charter Schools Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom
Based.

The County Office did not receive any Charter School Facility Grant Program funding in the 2021-22 yearr;
therefore, we did not perform any procedures over this section.

In our opinion, Sutter County Superintendent of Schools complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state laws and regulations referred to
above for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of the 20271-2022 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (Audit Guide). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Audit Guide are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section
of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County Office and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the County Office’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the County
Office's government programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the County Office's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the County Office's compliance
with the requirements of the government program as a whole.

(Continued)
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide,
we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the County Office's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

» Obtain an understanding of the County Office's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County Office's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and
the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of California's 20271-22 Guide for Annual

Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2022
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Crowe LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
Yuba City, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sutter County
Superintendent of Schools' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sutter
County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified.

(Continued)
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sutter County Superintendent of Schools'
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2022
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Crowe LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED
BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Education
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
Yuba City, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2022. Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Sutter County Superintendent of Schools complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sutter
County Superintendent of Schools’ compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Sutter
County Superintendent of Schools’ federal programs.

(Continued)

71,
260



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 158 of 777

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material honcompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report
on compliance about Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

* Obtain an understanding of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sutter
County Superintendent of Schools’ internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

(Continued)
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2022
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
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SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

AL Number(s)

84.425, 84.425C
17.259

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
STATE AWARDS

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
state programs:

Unmodified

Yes No

Yes None reported

Yes No

Yes No

Yes None reported
Unmodified

Yes No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Education Stabilization Fund Programs - COVID-19
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

$750,000

X Yes

No

Unmodified

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2022

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No matters were reported.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2022

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.

(Continued)
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2022

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
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SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2022

No matters were reported.
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Agenda Item No. _8.0

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing — New Pacific School Yuba City Petition

BOARD MEETING DATE: January 18, 2023
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY:
Action Joe Hendrix
_ Reports/Presentation SUBMITTED BY:
______ Information Joe Hendrix
__ v Public Hearing PRESENTING TO BOARD:
__ Other (specity) Joe Hendrix

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

Pursuant to California Education Code Section 47605, a public hearing will be held by the Sutter
County Board of Education to receive public testimony and input from the community regarding New
Pacific School-Yuba City’s charter petition. The petition was received on appeal of the Yuba City
Unified School District’s denial of the charter petition on August 23, 2022.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(b) and Title 5 CCR Section 11967(d), the governing
board must make a determination whether to grant or deny the charter petition within 90 days of its
receipt of the petition, provided, however, that the date may be extended by an additional 30 days if
both parties agree to the extension. The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools received the New
Pacific School-Yuba City petition on September 21, 2022.
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SUTTER COUNTY
970 Klamath Lane

Superintendent ok
% of Schools uba Gy, Ch o5

Tom Reusser, Superintendent Fax (530) 671-3422

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the Public Hearing will be held as follows:
PUBLIC HEARING: New Pacific School-Yuba City Petition
Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2023

Time: 5:30 p.m. — The Public Hearing will be part of the regular Board
Meeting

Place: Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office
N/S Board Room
970 Klamath Lane
Yuba City, CA 95993

Pursuant to California Education Code Section 47605, a public hearing will be held by the Sutter
County Board of Education to receive public testimony and input from the community regarding
New Pacific School-Yuba City’s charter petition. The petition was received on appeal of the Yuba
City Unified School District’s denial of the charter petition on August 23, 2022.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(b) and Title 5 CCR Section 11967(d), the governing
board must make a determination whether to grant or deny the charter petition within 90 days
of its receipt of the petition, provided, however, that the date may be extended by an additional
30 days if both parties agree to the extension. The Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
received the New Pacific School-Yuba City petition on September 21, 2022.

We encourage parents, feachers, staff, community members and bargaining units fo

participate in the Public Hearing

Posted on January 9, 2023
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SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STAFF REPORT AND PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
REGARDING NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL - YUBA CITY PETITION

l. Introduction

On September 21, 2022, New Pacific School—Yuba City (the “Charter,” or “Charter
School”) timely submitted a charter school petition (“Petition”) to the Sutter County
Board of Education (the “County Board”), pursuant to Education Code section
47605(k)(1)(A), following denial by the Yuba City Unified School District of said Petition
on or about August 23, 2022. The Charter School would be located within the
boundaries of Yuba City Unified School District and would initially serve 100 students in
grades TK-5. The Petition seeks an initial charter term that would begin on July 1, 2023
and end on June 30, 2028.

On October 12, 2022, the County Board held a public hearing to consider the level of
public support for the Petition. On November 1, 2022 county staff conducted a capacity
interview with Petitioners. On December 14, 2022, the County Board will hold a public
hearing to take action to approve or deny the Petition, and to consider the admissions
preferences in the Petition.

. Summary of Charter School’s Proposed Mission and Program
The Mission, Vision, and Goals articulated through the charter petition include a

commitment to being leaders in whole child education, inquiry driven learning, and
family partnerships. This commitment is supported by:

. A small school environment with individualized educational programs,
responsive school resources, and well supported school personnel.
. A student-centered approach designed to ensure students are challenged,

engaged, supported, and safe.
Programmatically, the petition describes multi-grade classrooms organized and
facilitated by “Learning Growth Plans,” Project Based Learning, and embedded Social

Emotional Learning.

The stated goal is to produce graduates who will be lifelong, purpose-driven learners
who author their own futures and thrive in a rapidly changing world.

Il. Criteria for Reviewing a Charter Petition

A county authorizer reviewing a petition that is appealed from a school district denial
must approve or deny petitions in the same manner as a petition to a district. (Ed.
Code, § 47605(k)(1)(A).) Education Code section 47605 subd. (c) states that “[t]he
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governing board of the school district shall grant a charter for the operation of a school
under this part if it is satisfied that granting the charter is consistent with sound
educational practice and with the interests of the community in which the school is
proposing to locate.” The authorizer also must consider “the academic needs of the
pupils the school proposes to serve.”

A school district board or county authorizer shall not deny such a petition for the
establishment of a charter school unless it makes written factual findings, specific to the
particular petition, setting forth specific facts to support one or more of the following
findings:

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be
enrolled in the charter school.

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the petition.

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by subdivision (a)
[of section 47605].

4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
subdivision (e) [of section 47605].

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the 15
elements set forth in [section 47605, subdivision (b)(5)].

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school
shall be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter
school for purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of
Title 1 of the Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))

I_ “

7. AB 1505 also introduced two new bases for denial: “community interests” under
Education Code Section 47605 (c)(7) and “fiscal impact” under Education Code
section 47605 (c)(8). While the proposed school’s potential fiscal impact is a part of
the consideration under section 47605 (c)(7), there is a separate basis to deny under
(c)(8) if the school district meets the statutory criteria showing inability to absorb
the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. In order to deny based on section
47605 (c)(7), the district must make the following findings:

The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate. This finding must include
analysis and consideration of the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school.
The district must also describe the specific facts and circumstances that analyze
and consider the following factors:
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- The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially
undermine existing services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings.

- Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently
offered within the school district and the existing program has sufficient
capacity for the pupils proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to
where the charter school intends to locate.

8. To deny a petition based on fiscal impact under section 47605 (c)(8), the school
district must demonstrate it is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the
proposed charter school. Charter schools proposed in a school district satisfying one
of these conditions shall be subject to a rebuttable presumption of denial. A school
district meets the statutory criteria if:

- it has a qualified interim certification pursuant to Section 42131 and the
county superintendent of schools, in consultation with the county office
Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, certifies that approving the
charter school would result in the school district having a negative interim
certification pursuant to Section 42131;

- it has a negative interim certification pursuant to Section 42131; or

- itis under state receivership.

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT!?

County staff conducted a thorough analysis of the Petition and its supporting
documents, and provide the County Board with the following proposed findings of fact
and recommendation regarding the Petition.

1. Does the Charter present an unsound educational program?

No. Staff have concluded that the Charter does not present an unsound educational
program for the students it proposes to educate.

In Summary:

e The small school environment, Leader in Me, and project based learning
described in the Petition are research-based and provide valid bases for the
Charter School’s proposed educational program. (Petition, pgs. 27, 35-36)

e Alow student to staff ratio supports the educational program. (Petition, p.
27)

! Staff note that some of the data tables referenced and relied upon in the Petition are inaccurate, at least
in part. These inaccuracies have been considered by staff, but do not ultimately change the conclusions in
this analysis.
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e There is no legal requirement that charter schools utilize state adopted
curriculum. That being said, curriculum referenced in the Petition, and
further discussed in the capacity interview, are appropriate for the
educational program. As noted by the Special Education staff’s review, the
curriculum is effective for targeted instruction and used for students with
disabilities. (Petition, pgs. 47-66)

e The Petition provides for supports such as tutoring, targeted one-on-one
assistance, strategic interventions, intensive interventions, and online
support programs to support student success. (Petition, pgs 18, 100, 105,
113)

Are the Petitioners demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
set forth in the Petition?

No. Staff have concluded that the Petitioners are not demonstrably unlikely to

successfully implement the program set forth in the Petition.

In summary:

The Charter School will be operated by Pacific Charter Institute (“PCI”), which
has a record of successfully operating and implementing charter school academic
programs in the region. (Petition, pgs. 13, 17-18)

The Governance, organizational structure, and Board of Directors’ experience
support successful implementation. (Petition, pgs. 115-127)

PCl staff’s managerial experience and required employee qualifications support
successful implementation. (Petition, pgs. 120-125 and 129-135)

Administrative, educational, Human Resources, Legal, and Special Education

services provided by PCI, as described, are sufficient, and there is a history of
success at other schools, supporting successful implementation. (Petition, p.

175)

The financial position of PCl, as analyzed by staff, supports successful
implementation. (Appendix 6: 2021 Financial Audit for Pacific Charter Institute &
Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The proposed educational program describes its curriculum, methodology, and
structure in detail, along with how it will educate its student population,
including high and low achievers and special education students, supporting
successful implementation. (Petition, p. 43-85)

The Charter School has represented that it will be approved for membership in
the El Dorado Charter SELPA. (Appendix 9: Letter from EDCOE SELPA)
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3. Does the Petition contain the number of signatures required by Education Code
47605(a)?

Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains the number of signatures
required by Education Code 47605(a).

In Summary:

EC 47605(a) states that “the petition may be submitted to the governing board of
the school district for review after either of the following conditions is met:

(A) The petition is signed by a number of parents or legal guardians of pupils that is
equivalent to at least one-half of the number of pupils that the charter school
estimates will enroll in the charter school for its first year of operation.

(B) The petition is signed by a number of teachers that is equivalent to at least one-
half of the number of teachers that the charter school estimates will be employed at
the charter school during its first year of operation.”

The Petition budget assumptions project staffing three (3) teachers at the Charter
School during its first year of operation (Appendix 7: Budget and financial
Documents), and the Petition was signed by three (3) teachers, which exceeded one-
half of the number of teachers that the Charter School estimates will be employed at
the Charter School during its first year of operation (Appendix 7: Budget and
financial Documents). Therefore, this requirement is met.

4. Does the Petition contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
subdivision (e) [of section 47605]?

Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains affirmations of each condition
described in Edcuation Code 47605(e).

In Summary:

Formal affirmations are found on Petition pages 8-10, and meet the legal
requirements for a charter Petition.

5. Does the Petition contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the [15
elements set forth in section 47605, subdivision (c)(5)]?
Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains reasonably comprehensive
descriptions of all of the elements set forth in Education Code 47605(c)(5).

Below is a summary by element.

Element A: Vision, Mission, and Educational Program
A petition should provide a reasonably comprehensive description of the educational
program of the charter that includes a description of “whom the charter school is

5
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attempting to educate,” what it means to be an “educated person in the 21st
century, and how learning best occurs.” (Ed. Code, § 47605, subd. (c)(5)(A)(i).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
e The Petition describes the targeted student populations and community need,
including:

0 The students the charter school will try to educate and a
demonstration of need for the proposed educational program
(Petition, p. 26-37);

0 Grade levels and number of students the charter school plans to serve
(Petition, p. 26-27, 36);

0 A clear, concise school mission and vision statement that aligns with
the target population (Petition, p. 27); and

0 The needs and challenges of the student groups to be served (Petition,
p. 28-34).

e The Petition describes attendance, including:

O The school year/academic calendar, number of school days and
instructional minutes (Petition, p. 43-47);

0 Attendance expectations and requirements, including enrollment
projections (Petition, p. 36);

O The master/daily schedule and proposed bell schedule (Petition, p. 43-
47 and Appendix 7: Budget and financial Documents)

e The Petition describes what it means to be an educated person in the 215t
Century, including:

O Goals that are consistent with enabling all pupils to become or remain
self-motivated, competent, lifelong learners (Petition, pgs. 26, 38-40);

0 Lists of academic skills and qualities important for an educated person
(Petition, pgs. 28, 38); and

0 Lists of general nonacademic skills and qualities important for an
educated person (Petition, p. 38-40).

e The Petition describes how learning best occurs and instructional design,
including:

0 A framework for instructional design that is aligned with the needs of
the students that the charter has identified as its target student
population (Petition, pgs. 38-43);

0 A description of the learning setting (e.g., site-based matriculation,
independent study, tech-based) (Petition p. 11, 39-40);

0 Instructional approaches and strategies the school will use that will
enable the school’s students, including subgroup populations such as
English language learners (ELL), to master the content standards for
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the core curriculum areas adopted by the State Board of Education
(Petition, pgs. 33-36, 47-65);
A process for developing or adopting curriculum and teaching methods
(Petition, pgs. 47-65);
How the charter school will identify and meet the needs of students
with disabilities, ELL students, students who are achieving substantially
above or below grade level expectations, and other special student
populations (note: The description demonstrates understanding of the
likely ELL population and includes a sound approach to identify and
meet the needs of subgroup populations) (Petition, pgs. 70-85);
A special education plan including, but not limited to, the means by
which the charter school will comply with the provisions of Education
Code section 47641 (Petition, pgs. 79-85); and
A plan for professional development that aligns with the charter
school’s proposed program (Petition, pgs. 66-68).

e The Petition describes its materials and technology, including:

(0]

o

How staff’s and students’ technology resources are aligned with the
instructional program and meet state assessment requirements
(Petition, p. 70-71);

What materials are available to students (Petition, pgs. 39, 70-71);
student-to-computer ratio appears reasonable (Petition, p. 70-71);
A description or plan for providing adaptive technology for special
education students (Petition, pgs. 70, 79-83); and

Common Core technology standards, digital assessments, and
professional learning (Petition, p. 66-68, 70-71).

o The Petition describes annual goals, including:

(0]

(0]

Annual goals for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified
pursuant to Education Code Section 52052 that apply to the grade
levels served (Petition, pgs. 91-110);

Goals tied to state priorities listed in Education Code Section 52060(d)
and LCAP, as appropriate (additional priorities related to unique
aspects of the proposed charter school program include goals and
specific annual actions) (Petition, pgs. 91-110); and

Specific annual actions designed to achieve the stated goals (Petition,
pgs. 99-110).

e The Petition describes requirements for Charter Schools serving high school
students, including:

o

(0}

How parents will be informed about the transferability of courses to
other public high schools (Petition, p. 47);

How parents will be informed about the eligibility of courses to meet
college entrance requirements (Petition, pgs. 68-69);
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0 How each student will receive information on how to complete and
submit the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) (Petition,
p.71);

0 How the exit outcomes will align with mission, curriculum and
assessments (Petition, pgs. 86, 90, 91);

0 Information indicating that all students will have the opportunity to
take courses that meet the University of California’s A-G requirements
(Petition, pgs. 22-23, 47); and

0 Planned graduation requirements and Western Association of Schools
and Colleges accreditations (Petition, pgs. 17, 47-68).

Element B: Measurable Student Outcomes

Every charter petition must identify annual goals, specific annual actions to achieve
those goals, measurable pupil outcomes and methods of measuring progress in meeting
pupil outcomes. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(B-C).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes measurable pupil outcomes for all groups, i.e., specific
assessment methods or tools listed for each exit outcome. (Petition, pgs. 89-110)

The Petition describes a description of how pupil outcomes align with the state priorities
consistent with the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), as described in
Education Code section 52060(d), that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of
the program. (Petition, pgs. 89-110)

The Petition describes specific annual actions designed to achieve the stated goals.
(Petition, pgs. 91-109)

The Petition describes additional school priorities related to unique aspects of the
proposed charter school program, with goals and specific annual actions. (Petition, pgs.

109-110)

The Petition describes a description of how pupil outcomes will address state content
and performance standards in core academic areas. (Petition, pgs. 91-110)

The Petition describes a description of how exit outcomes align with the mission and
instructional design of the program. (Petition, pgs. 90-110)

The Petition describes a description or affirmation that benchmark skills and specific
classroom-level skills will be developed. (Petition, pgs. 89-91)
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The Petition discusses school wide student performance goals students will achieve over
a given period of time, including attendance levels, dropout rates, and graduation rate
goals. (Petition, pgs. 91-109)

Element C: Student Progress Measurement

Every charter petition must identify annual goals, specific annual actions to achieve
those goals, measurable pupil outcomes and methods of measuring progress in meeting
pupil outcomes. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(B-C).

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary

The Petition describes assessment tools that include required state and federal
assessments (e.g., SBAC, ELPAC) for purposes of accountability. (Petition, pgs. 89, 111-
114)

The Petition describes at least one assessment method or tool listed for each of the exit
assessments. (Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition describes a variety of alternative assessment tools, including tools that use
objective means of assessment consistent with the measurable pupil outcomes.
(Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition generally describes how chosen assessments are appropriate for standards
and skills the charter school seeks to measure. (Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition describes a plan for collecting, analyzing, using and reporting student and

school performance to charter school staff and to students’ parents and guardians, and
for using the data continually to monitor and improve the charter school’s educational

program. (Petition, pgs. 87-91 and 111-114)

Element D: Governance Structure

A Petition must provide a reasonably comprehensive description of the Charter School’s
governance structure, including the process for parental involvement. (Ed. Code, §
47605 (c)(5)(D))

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition indicates that “New Pacific School will operate autonomously from the
District with the exception of the supervisory oversight as required by statute and other
contracted services as negotiated between the District and PCl,” and “the PCl Board is
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the governing body that will oversee the Charter School, with a Director at the Charter
School overseeing day-to-day operations.” (Petition, p. 115).

The Petition describes evidence of PCl’s incorporation as a nonprofit benefit
corporation. (Petition, p. 115, 176)

The Petition provides the names and relevant qualifications of all persons whom the
Petitioner nominates to serve on the governing body of the charter school. (Petition, p.
116-117)

The Petition references a set of bylaws and basic policies. (Petition, p. 7, 75, 117-118,
122, 176 and Appendix 4: PCl Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws)

The Petition describes evidence that the organization and design of the governance
structure reflect the following:
e Aseriousness of purpose to ensure that the charter will become and remain a
viable enterprise.
e An understanding and assurance of compliance with open meeting
requirements.
(Petition, pgs. 8-10 and 115-118)

The Petition generally describes the key features of governing structure including, but
not limited to, the following:

e The Petition generally describes a delineation of roles and responsibilities of the
governing board and staff. (Petition, pgs. 117-125)

e The Petition generally describes the interaction between the Charter School and
the charter management organization with regard to budget, expenditures,
personnel, and daily operations. (Petition, p.118-121 and 172-175)

e The Petition generally describes the purpose and composition of board, board
committees and/or advisory councils. (Petition, pgs. 116-118 and 125-127)

e The Petition describes the method for selection of replacement board members.
(Petition, p. 119)

The Petition generally describes a process for involvement or input of parents and
guardians in the governance of the charter school, including the following:
e Adelineation of roles and responsibilities of parent councils, advisory committee
and other supporting groups. (Petition, p. 125-127)
e A description that it shall notify the parents and guardians of applicant pupils
and currently enrolled pupils that parental involvement is not a requirement for
acceptance to or continuation at the charter school. (Petition, p. 9)

The Petition generally references specific policies and internal controls that are meant
to prevent fraud, embezzlement and conflict of interest, and that ensure the

10

281



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 179 of 777

implementation and monitoring of those policies. (Petition, p. 118, 174, 175 and
Appendix 5: Conflict of Interest Code)

During the Capacity Interview, Petitioners communicated specific trainings and
professional development that the board takes advantage of. (Petition, p. 118)

The Petition generally describes other important legal or operational relationships
between the charter school and granting agency. (Petition, p. 168, 172, 176-177)

Element E: Employee Qualifications
The Petition should identify the qualifications required of individuals who will work at
the Charter School. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(E).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes core and college preparatory teachers, and affirms all teachers
will hold appropriate Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificates, per Education
Code 47605.4. (Petition, p. 9, 130)

The Petition describes those positions that the charter school regards as key and for
which it specifies additional qualifications, responsibilities and accountability. (Petition,
pgs. 129-133)

The Petition describes general qualifications for the various categories of employees
(e.g., other administrative, instructional support, non-instructional support). These
qualifications appear sufficient to ensure the health and safety of the charter school’s
faculty, staff and students; however, it is unclear whether an administrative credential
will be required for the school principal or other administrators with responsibility for
evaluating certificated employees and expelling students, even if such a credential is
not strictly required by law. (Petition, pgs. 129-133)

The Petition describes a plan for recruitment, selection, development and evaluation of
staff and charter school leaders. (Petition, p. 133-135)

The Petition describes roles and lines of authority for board and management positions.
(Petition, pgs. 120- 125 and Appendix 4: PCI Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws)

The Petition does not specify the teacher to student ratio, stating “student to staff
ratios will be low” (Petition, p. 27). The budget provides for 3 teachers and 4 teacher
assistants to 100 students (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents).

Element F: Health and Safety Procedures

Pursuant to Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(F), the Petition must include the
procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of students and
staff.

11
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Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition discusses a comprehensive charter school safety plan, provides a safety
plan, and gives assurance that the plan will be updated annually and staff shall receive
training in emergency response, including appropriate first responder training or its
equivalent. (Petition, p. 136-140 and Appendix 8: Safety Plan)

The Petition makes assurances that the charter school will require a criminal
background clearance report and proof of tuberculosis examination prior to
employment. (Petition, p. 136)

The Petition makes assurances that the charter school will adopt procedures to prevent
acts of bullying and cyberbullying, and make the California Department of Education
(CDE) online training module available to all employees who interact with students.
(Petition, p. 140)

The Petition discusses that charter schools with grades 7-12 will adopt a suicide
prevention policy. (Petition, p. 137)

The Petition sufficiently describes health and safety practices for students and staff.
(Petition, pgs. 85, 136-140)

The Petition describes assurances regarding compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA). (Petition, p. 8)

Element G: Racial and Ethnic Balance

Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(G) requires that a charter petition include a
reasonably comprehensive description of the means by which the school will achieve a
racial and ethnic balance among its students that is reflective of the general population
residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the charter authorizer to which the charter
petition is submitted.

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition generally describes practices and policies the charter school will design and
implement to attract a diverse applicant pool and enroliment that reflects the general
population, including special populations that reside within the district’s territorial
jurisdiction. (Petition, pgs. 141-145)
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The Petition describes practices and policies that appear tailored to achieve racial and
ethnic balance. (Petition, p. 141-145)

The Petition describes outreach strategies, which identify the targeted groups for
achieving balance. (Petition, p. 141)

The Petition indicated recruitment materials would be published in Spanish, but there
was no mention of printing recruitment materials in Punjabi even though a significant
portion of the population in the surrounding geographic area speaks Punjabi. (Petition,
P. 141). If the Petition is approved, a memorandum of understanding with the Charter
School should include the Charter School’s assurance it will print student recruitment
and other materials in the languages of all significant sub populations (15% and greater).

Element H: Admissions Policies and Procedures
The Petition must describe its admissions requirements, if applicable, pursuant to
Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(H).

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes the following assurances: The charter school shall be
nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other
operations, shall not charge tuition, and shall not discriminate against a pupil on the
basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or
ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including
immigration status, equal rights, and opportunities in the educational institutions of the
state. (Petition p. 8, 129, 142)

The Petition describes a clear description of admission policies that satisfy legal
requirements in the staff’s assessment. (Petition, p. 142-145)

The Petition provides a description of how students in the community will be informed
and given an equal opportunity to attend the charter school. (Petition, p. 141)

The Petition describes proposed admissions and enrollment requirements, process and
timeline, which include the following:
e Information to be collected through the interest form, application form, and/or
enrollment form. (Petition, pgs. 143)
e Assurances that enrollment preferences will not require mandatory parent
volunteer hours as a criteria for admission. (Petition, pg. 9, 142)

The Petition describes the public random drawing processes that comply with state and
federal laws. (Petition, pgs. 143-145)
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The Petition does not give any indication that preferences, if given, will negatively
impact the racial, ethnic and unduplicated pupil balance the charter school strives to
reflect. (Petition, pgs. 8-9, 143-144)

Element I: Annual Independent Financial Audits

The Petition must describe the manner in which annual, independent, financial audits
will be conducted, which will employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the
manner in which audit exceptions and deficiencies will be resolved to the satisfaction of
the chartering authority. (Ed. Code, § 47605 (c)(5)(l).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes the manner in which the audit will be conducted.
(Petition, p. 146)

The Petition describes procedures to select and retain an independent auditor,
including:
e Qualifications that will be used for the selection of an independent auditor,

e Assurance that the auditor will have experience in education finance.
(Petition, p. 146)

The Petition describes assurance that the annual audit will employ generally
accepted accounting principles. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition describes scope and timing of audit, as well as distribution of completed
audit to authorizer, county office, State Controller, California Department of
Education, and/or other agencies required by law. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition describes a process and timeline that the charter school will follow to
address any audit findings and/or resolve audit exceptions. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition indicates that “the Charter School will inform the District of any
outstanding exceptions or deficiencies at the time of audit submission and how they
are resolved to the satisfaction of the District”. The Petition further adds that “any
disputes regarding the resolution of audit exceptions and deficiencies will be
referred to the dispute resolution process referenced in Element N of the petition,
or if applicable, referred to the Education Audit Appeals Panel process in compliance
with Education Code Section 41344.(Petition, p. 146) However, the Petition states in
Element N that “New Pacific School recognizes that it cannot bind the District to a
dispute resolution procedure to which the District does not agree. (Petition, p. 168).
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Such a proposed resolution does not necessarily ensure the authorizer’s satisfaction.
(Petition, pg. 146.)

The Petition describes who is responsible for contracting with and overseeing the
independent audit. (Petition, pg. 146)

Element J: Suspension/Expulsion Policies and Procedures

Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(J) requires that the petition contain a reasonably
comprehensive description of the procedures by which pupils can be suspended or
expelled from the charter school for disciplinary reasons, or otherwise involuntarily
removed from the charter school for any reason. “Involuntarily removal” includes
disenrollment, dismissal, and transfer. Petitions must also describe, at a minimum, “how
the charter school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and
substantive due process requirements.”

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes a process for suspensions of fewer than 10 days, including the
following:

e Oral or written notice of the charges against the pupil.

e If the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence that supports the
charges.

e How an opportunity will be provided for the pupil to present a rebuttal to the
charges.

(Petition, p. 155-156)
The Petition describes a process for suspensions of 10 days or more and all other
expulsions for disciplinary reasons, including the following:

e Timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of the
pupil’s basic rights.

e A process of hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number
of days, and to which the pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an
advocate.

(Petition, p.157-158)
The Petition describes a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by
the charter school for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been
provided with written notice, and that ensures the written notice shall be in the native
language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian. (Petition, p. 149)

The Petition describes an understanding of relevant laws protecting constitutional rights
of students.
e Provides for due process for all students and demonstrates understanding of the
rights of students with disabilities, in regard to suspension, expulsion and
involuntary dismissal. (Petition, pgs. 148-149)
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Explanation of how authorizer may be notified of disciplinary matters. (Petition, p. 160)

Element K: Staff Retirement System

The Petition must describe the manner in which staff members of the Charter School
will be covered by the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’
Retirement System, or federal social security. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(K).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes a statement of what retirement options will be offered to
employees: State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) (if STRS, then all teachers must
participate); Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS); and Social Security.
(Petition, pg. 165)

The Petition describes whether and how retirement will be offered.
(Petition, pg. 134, 165)

The Petition describes who is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate
arrangements for coverage have been made. (Petition, pg. 165)

Element L: Public School Attendance Alternatives

The Petition must describe the public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing
within the attendance area who choose not to attend the Charter School. (Ed. Code, §
47605 (c)(5)(L).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition discusses attendance alternatives for students who reside within the county
and choose not to attend the charter school. (Petition, pg. 166)

Element M: Post-employment Rights of Employees

The Petition must include the rights of the charter authorizer’s employee upon leaving
charter authorizer employment to work in the Charter School and any rights of return to
the charter authorizer after employment at the Charter School. (Ed. Code, §
47605(c)(5)(M).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes school district employees’ return to employment rights, including
the following:
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e Whether, and how staff may resume employment within the district or
authorizer. (Petition, pg. 167)
The potential ability to transfer sick and/or vacation leave to and from the charter
school and another LEA was referenced in the Petition. Staff was uncertain of
employees’ ability to transfer leave. Petitioners clarified in the capacity interview that
employees are able to transfer sick leave. (Petition, pg. 167)

Element N: Dispute Resolution Procedures

The Petition must include the procedures to be followed by the Charter School and the
SCOE to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. (Ed. Code, §
47605(c)(5)(N).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes a process for the charter and the authorizer to settle disputes
related to the provisions of the charter. (Petition, pg. 168-169)

The Petition references that PCl policies and procedures will be used by the Charter to
resolve internal complaints and disputes (Petition, pgs. 139, 168).
e Includes a reference to the Uniform Complaint procedures and a description of
how this process is communicated to parents, staff and the community.
(Petition, pg. 168)

The Petition describes an acknowledgement that, except for disputes between the
chartering authority and the charter school, all disputes involving the charter school
shall be resolved by the charter school according to the charter school’s own internal
policies. (Petition, pg. 168). However, nowhere are the policies/procedures included
with the Petition.

The Petition describes a statement that if any such dispute concerns facts or
circumstances that may be cause for revocation of the charter, the authorizer shall not
be obligated by the terms of the dispute resolution process as a precondition to
revocation. (Petition, pg. 169)

Element O: Closure Procedures
The Petition must include the procedures to be used if the Charter School closes. (Ed.
Code, § 47605(c)(5)(0))

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes procedures to be used if the charter school closes, including the
following:
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e Who is the responsible entity or person that will conduct closure-related
activities?

e How the charter will communicate the closure to students, parents and
guardians, the authorizing entity, the county office of education, the charter’s
special education local plan area, the retirement systems in which the school’s
employees participate, and the California Department of Education.

e Who will conduct the process for the completion and submission of final
financial reports, expenditure reports for entitlement grants, and the filing of
any required final expenditure and performance reports?

(Petition, pp. 170-171)

The Petition describes the maintenance plan for pupil records and the manner in
which parents and guardians may obtain copies of pupil records if the charter school
closes, including how information will be preserved and transferred. (Petition, pp.
170-171)

The Petition describes a process for how the charter will ensure a final audit of the
charter school.

e An assurance the audit will be conducted within six months of closure.

e The disposition of the charter school’s assets.

e Plans for disposing net assets including at least the following:

The disposition of all assets of the charter, including cash and accounts
receivable and an inventory of property, equipment and other items of
material value.

An accounting of all liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction
in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans,
and unpaid staff compensation.

An assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due
to the charter.

Process for the return of any donated materials and property in accordance
with any conditions established when the donation of such materials or
property was accepted.

(Petition, pp. 170 -171)

The Petition describes he transfer and maintenance of personnel records in
accordance with applicable law. (Petition, pp. 170 -171)

Required Supplemental Criteria

Financial and Administrative Plan

Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
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The Petition describes a first year operational budget, including:
e Annual revenues and expenditures clearly identified by source. Appendix 7: Budget
and Financial Documents)

Petitioner has LCAP goals and actions that seem to be aligned with their budget;
ideally, the Petition would reflect further assumptions to strengthen the alignment
verification. (Petition, pgs. 91-109 and Appendix 7: Budget and Financial
Documentation). During the Capacity interview, petitioners described their
alignment of goals with the budget. However, Petitioners should provide a clear
written description of the alignment of LCAP expenditures with their budget.

The Petition describes financial projections that include a clear description of
planning assumptions. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents -)

The Petition describes start-up costs with a reasonable allocation for most major
start-up costs. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The Petition describes cash flow projections for first three years with a monthly
projection of revenue receipts in line with local, state and federal funding
disbursements. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The Petition describes structure for administrative services and operations (Petition,
p. 175-176)

Back Office Providers
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes the name of the back office provider and a description of support
used by the charter. (Petition, p. 175)

Charter Management Organization
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes the name and relationship of PCl to charter school, along with
other relevant details. (Petition, pgs. 173-175)

Facilities: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(h)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition generally describes the type and the location of the charter school facility
or facilities that the Petitioner proposes to operate, even though it does not identify the
precise location it will operate. (Petition, pgs. 29, 175)

19

290



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 188 of 777
The Petition generally describes current and projected availability of facilities but does
not presently specify where the Charter School proposes to locate, or specifically what
facilities will be used as that process remains underway with the Charter School’s
realtor. (Petition, p. 175) The Petition includes
e Assurances of legal compliance with all health and safety, ADA, and applicable
building codes. (Petition, p. 140, 176)
e Adequate budget for anticipated costs, including renovation, rent, maintenance
and utilities. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)
e Assurance that the facilities shall be accessible for all students with disabilities
(Petition, p. 79)

The Petition described that the Charter School may apply for Proposition 39 facilities
(Petition, p. 176)

Impact Statement: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(h)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition discusses an anticipated operational memorandum of understanding
between the authorizer and charter school, and further discusses potential civil liability
effects, upon the school and the authorizer. (Petition, p. 172, 176)

Community Impact: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(c)(7)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

The Petition adequately described a program that Staff has determined does not reflect
that it will duplicate a program currently offered by the District, within the meaning of
Education Code section 47605(c)(7), nor is there evidence it will it substantially
undermine existing school district services, academic offerings, or program offerings.
(Petition, pgs. 26-114)

Special Education: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47641(a) and Education Code §
47646
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition sufficiently describes the school’s special education structure in detail,
including discussion of provision of services under the IDEA, Section 504, special
education staffing, responses to requests for assessments, identification and referral,
the IEP process, student placement, addressing due process and parent concerns, and
more. (Petition, p. 74, 79-85)
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The Charter Petition includes evidence that the school has consulted with, and will
become a member of, the El Dorado Charter SELPA. (Appendix 9: Letter from EDCOE
SELPA)

The Petition includes the following assurances:
e The charter will comply with all provisions of IDEA. (Petition, p.79)
e Discusses admission based on disability or lack of available services. (Petition, pgs.
82,142-143)
e Student study team process will be implemented. (Petition, p.73-74)

e Students qualifying for Section 504 services will receive such services. (Petition, p
84-85.)

Required Declaration
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be
deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school. (Petition,
p. 8)

Affirmations: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(e)
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes affirmations that:

e The school will be nonsectarian in its:

- Programs

- Admission policies

- Employment practices

- All other operations
(Petition, p. 8, 129, 142)

e The school shall not charge tuition. (Petition, p. 8, 142)

e The school shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of disability, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate
crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the California Penal Code. (Petition, p. 8, 129,
142)

e Admission to a charter school shall not be determined according to the place of
residence of the pupil, or of the pupil’s parent or legal guardian, within this state,
except that an existing public school converting partially or entirely to a charter
school under this part shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference
to pupils who reside within the former attendance area of that public school.
(Petition, p.8, 142)
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e The charter school shall admit all pupils who wish to attend the charter school.
(Petition, p. 8, 143)
e The school will comply with federal, state and local laws as required for charter
schools. (Petition, p. 8-10)

Alternative Education Criteria: Education Code § 58500 — 58512

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is not applicable.

Independent Study Criteria: (5 Year Moratorium)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is not applicable.

6. Does the Petition contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall
be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school
for purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title
1 of the Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))?

- Yes. Staff have determined that the Petition contains the required
declaration.

In Summary:

The declaration is found on page 8 of the Petition.

7. Is the charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate?

- No. Staff have determined the Charter School is not demonstrably unlikely
to serve the interests of the entire community in which it is proposing to
operate.

In summary:

e The Petition and associated documents do not support a finding that the
proposed Charter School would substantially undermine existing services,
academic offerings, or programmatic offerings of the school district in which
it is proposing to locate.

e The Petition and associated documents do not support a finding that the
proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered within
the local school district, within the meaning of Education Code §
47605(c)(7).

8. Whether the school district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the
proposed charter school?
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None of the statutory criteria are present indicating the school district is
not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school,
within the meaning of Education Code § 47605(c)(8).

In summary:

The District does not have a qualified interim certification pursuant to
Section 42131 and the county superintendent of schools, in consultation with
the County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, has not
certified that approving the charter school would result in the school district
having a negative interim certification pursuant to Section 42131;

The District does not have a negative interim certification pursuant to
Section 42131; and

The District is not under state receivership.

Evidence for denying the Petition.

From Staff’s analysis, no findings specific to the particular Petition were identified
that rose to the level of justifying denial of the Petition. However, several deficient

items are noted in this staff report and should be resolved through an operational

Memorandum of Understanding and other oversight measures. These items

include:

a.
b.

Lack of more precise facilities information, including specific address;

Lack of inclusion of dispute resolution policy/procedures for internal conflict
referenced in the petition;

Ambiguity in language following assurance that Charter School will resolve
any audit deficiencies to the satisfaction of the authorizer;

While goals and actions of the Charter School’s LCAP are present in the
petition, as well as budget expenditures that could achieve their stated goals
and actions, Petitioners lack a clear description of the correlation between
their goals and budget.

Lack of assurance that recruitment materials will be printed in all languages
that are identified as the primary language spoken by 15% or more of
families within the District’s boundaries in order to achieve a racial and
ethnic balance.

Staff Recommendation

Based on Staff’s careful review of the Petition, it is recommended that the County Board
adopt the above findings as its own, and:

1. Approve the Petition submitted by the Charter School, as Staff have concluded that
the Petition meets the requirements for approval pursuant to Education Code
section 47605; and

As a condition of approval, require the Charter School, within 45 days of approval,

to:
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a. Execute a Memorandum of Understanding addressing the items noted in
Section 9 (a)-(e) of this staff report; and
b. Provide documentation verifying purchase or lease of Charter School
facilities, including the precise location for said facilities.
c. Make changes throughout the Petition as needed to reflect the County
Board as authorizer.
3. Approve any admissions preferences set forth in the Petition.
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Ifémflc
CSchool

DECEMBER 6, 2022
Via Email
tomr@sutter.k12.ca.us
Tom Reusser, Superintendent
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
970 Klamath Lane
Yuba City, California 95993

RE: Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding New Pacific School - Yuba City Petition
Dear Superintendent Reusser,

Pacific Charter Institute ("PCI"), which proposed to operate New Pacific School - Yuba City (“New
Pacific School” or “NPS"), is in receipt of the Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding
New Pacific School - Yuba City Petition. New Pacific School greatly appreciates the diligence
demonstrated by the Sutter County Office of Education ("County”) in its detailed staff report. We
concur that the charter merits approval.

New Pacific School writes to address the items identified by the County for inclusion in a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the parties. Below please find responses to each of
the identified items, in the order presented.

a. Lack of more precise facilities information, including specific address;

Due to negotiations and fiduciary responsibility with public funds, the NPS team / PCI negotiates in
closed session in accordance with the Brown Act. NPS is actively engaged in locating a facility and
will notify the County of the address as soon as it can be determined. We request flexibility from the
County on the timeline for finalizing a lease.

b. Lack of inclusion of dispute resolution policy/procedures for internal conflict referenced in
the petition;

Conflict resolution at New Pacific School Yuba City begins at the most local level between staff
members, If staff members and the supervisor are unable to resolve the conflict PCl human resources
engages with the parties for resolution. If human resources is unable to resolve the dispute the
executive director will evaluate the dispute and seek to resolve it. All staff members may go directly
to the executive director for resolution, but that person (s) may be referred to human resources. ALL

Page 1 of 6
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employees may address the PCI Board of Directors if they continue to seek resolution within PCI. The
PCI Board of Directors may resolve the issue and if it is unable to resolve the conflict it may contract
with an outside agency to seek resolution. NPS does not object to memorializing this process in an
MOU, however, we note that Education Code Section 47605(c){5)(N) does not require a description
of internal dispute resolution procedures in the charter petition.

<. Ambiguity in language following assurance that Charter School will resolve any audit
deficiencies to the satisfaction of the authorizer;

New Pacific School Yuba City will resolve all audit exceptions according to GAAP and state audit
guidelines. The state audit guidelines are consistent between charter schools and school districts.
This norm should satisfy Sutter County Office of Education as the regulations apply to all LEA's.
Education Code Section 47605 (c)(5)(I) mandates that any concerns around deficiencies in the annual
financial audit are resolved to the satisfaction of the charter authority. We do not have the unilateral
prerogative to determine what resolution would be to the satisfaction of the County, and we are open
to the County’s preference.

d. While goals and actions of the Charter School’s LCAP are present in the petition, as well as
budget expenditures that could achieve their stated goals and actions, Petitioners lack a clear
description of the correlation between their goals and budget.

Page 2 of 6

297



Documentary Record from
Sutter County Board of Education

accs-jun23item03
Attachment 4
Page 195 of 777

State Priority Goal LCFF / LCAP amount
. . . All students will receive instruction from NOTES: Salaries, benefits
State P #1 - Basic Services ’
e Priority ] . teachers fully credentialed in the subject areas, teaching staff/para’s
The degree to which teachers are appropria tely will have sufficient access to standards-aligned | Payroll series
assigned (E.C. §44258.9) and fully credentialed, and | jpstructional materials, and will learn in a well- | $554,051
EVED maintained school environment.
pupil has sufficient access to standards-aligned
instructional materials (E.C. § 60119), and school
facilities are maintained in good repair (E.C.
§17002(d}}
State Priority #2— Implementation of Common | New Pacific School provides CCSS-based PD/ C‘_lm‘fum“; grogramds
Core State Standards instruction to all students, gg:)“(}’:;i_t::‘ LESUUETS
Implementation of State Standards (including CCSS New Pacific School provides differentiated Portions of 'i‘ravel &

and ELD} including how EL students will be enabled to
gain academic content knowledge and English
language proficiency

professional development focused on effective
instructional practices aligned to CCSS and

Conference, Instructional
Services

ELD. $10,000 plus 1% of 7000
New Pacific School uses interim and summative | gerjes
assessments aligned with CCSS.
State Priority #3— Parental Involvement and New Pacific School will provide opportunities for | Powerschool & social
Family Engagement parental involvement. Parents access all media )
A. Parental involvement and family engagement, information and data abgut their student Combinatu.m of 7000 and
including efforts the Charter School makes to seek ,ﬂ“"“g,h PowerSch(.)ol‘ suite of programs Payrfall. Serles: .
parent input in making decisions for the Charter including, but not I!mlted to, coursework, grades, Admlmst‘ra‘twe services
state and school-wide assessment results, & Advertising

School, and including how the Charter School will
promote parental participation in programs for
unduplicated pupils and individuals with exceptional

teacher communication, portfelio completion
and school updates. NPS will have staff that

1% of $12,287

needs. speaks Punjabi, Spanish, and other concentration | Principal Salary
languages in the Yuba City community. $165,377
- . Schoolwide intervention in language arts and 4000 series
State Priority #4— Student Achievement
v cmev mathematics with assigned appropriate CCSS- Portion of the $190,000

Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the
following, as applicable:

aligned instructional materials and practice
testing for familiarity with format and content,
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i Parents will be communicated in their home
language including Punjabi and Spanish
regarding their student plan and updates.
State Priority #5— Student Engagement New Pacific School will provide a safe, g:;::;ess & Admin
. rturing and engaging learning environment .
Pupil engagement, as measured by ali | TUTUT rning | 5000 series
of the following, as applicable: for all its §tudents and families, including those $171,618
of the various subgroups enrolled. ’
Support Staff
Payroll series included in
other priorities

State Priority #6— School Climate

School climate, as measured by all of
the following, as applicable:

A. Pupil suspension rates
B. Pupil expulsion rates

Other local measures, including surveys of pupils,
parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and
school connectedness

Students, parents, and teachers will be trained
and implement best practices. All counselors will
be promoting Leader in Me mental health
strategies for students. Charter School leadership
will work with teachers and families to manage
student behavior issues and concerns. Parents
will be communicated in their home language
including Punjabi and Spanish to support the
development of school climate and promote
Leader in Me principals.

Leader in Me training,
counseling, office staff,
Combination of 5000
Travel & Conference
$10,000 and 7000 PCI
Admin Travel &
Conference, PCI
Instructional Salaries &
Benefits

1% of $49,193.

Some overlap with other
priorities

State Priority #7— Course Access

The extent to which pupils have access to,
and are enrolled in, a broad course of
study, including programs and services
developed and provided te unduplicated
students (classified as EL, FRPM- eligible,
or foster youth; E.C. §42238.02) and
students with exceptional needs.

“Broad course of study” includes the following,
as applicable:
Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social
sciences, science, visual and performing arts,

Students, including all student subgroups and
students with exceptional needs, will have access
to and enroll in our academic and educational
program as outlined in the New Pacific School
charter document.

Combination of 4000 and
5000 series for
Instructional:

Portion of the $200,000
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health, physical education, and other as
prescribed by the governing board. (E.C.
§51210)

Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign
language(s), physical education, science,
mathematics, visual and performing arts, applied
arts, and career technical education. (E.C.

§51220(a)-(i))

State Priority #8—Other Student Outcomes
Pupil outcomes, if available, in the subject areas
described above in #7, as applicable.

All students will have access to CCSS language
arts programs, K-12.

All students will have access to small group,
one-on-one, and online intervention
programs.

All K-2 students will be assessed for literacy
and appropriate interventions will be
implemented for students not reading at
grade level.
Qualifying high school students will have access
to dual enrollment.

Combination of Payroli for
teachers/paras and 7000
series. Overlapped with
other state priorities.
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e. Lack of assurance that recruitment materials will be printed in all languages that are
identified as the primary language spoken by 15% or more of families within the district’s
boundaries in order to achieve a racial and ethnic balance.

New Pacific School Yuba City will hire staff or contract with experts to ensure populations greater
than 15% will be communicated with in their home language through written materials and direct
verbal communication. The languages will include Punjabi and Spanish. Further, a staff member will
be hired that will speak languages utilized by greater than 15% of NPS families. All recruitment
materials will be printed in English, Punjabi, Spanish, and any other language spoken by 15% or more
of NPS families within the district boundaries.

* * *

New Pacific School - Yuba City looks forward to its apportunity to meet with the County Board on
December 14%, We stand ready to negotiate a Memorandum of Understanding with County staff.
Please feel free to contact me at paul keefer@pacificcharters.org or 916-616-3958 if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

flarr—

Paul Keefer
Lead Petitioner

Page 6 of 6
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Agenda Item No. _9.0

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Adopt or Deny the New Pacific School Yuba City Petition

BOARD MEETING DATE: January 18, 2023

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY:

v Action Joe Hendrix

_ Reports/Presentation SUBMITTED BY:

_____ Information Joe Hendrix

__ Public Hearing PRESENTING TO BOARD:
__ Other (specity) Joe Hendrix

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

The Sutter County Board of Education has two options for action with regard to the New Pacific
School Yuba City Petition:

1. Approve the Petition — Resolution No. 22-23-1V — Resolution to Approve the Petition to
Establish the New Pacific School — Yuba City Charter School

2. Deny the petition - Resolution No. 22-23-V — Resolution to Deny the Petition to Establish the
New Pacific School — Yuba City Charter School and Written Findings in Support Thereof
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RESOLUTION OF THE SUTTER COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

RESOLUTION NO. 22-23-1V

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE PETITION TO ESTABLISH THE
NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL - YUBA CITY CHARTER SCHOOL

WHEREAS, the approval of charter schools is governed by the Charter Schools Act of
1992, as subsequently amended, codified in Education Code sections 47600 et seq., and
the implementing regulations of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (5 C.C.R.
§§11960 et seq.); and

WHEREAS, Education Code section 47605(b) charges school district governing boards
with the responsibility of reviewing charter petitions to determine whether they meet the
legal requirements for a successful charter petition; and

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 47605(j)(1) provides that if the governing board of
a school district denies a petition, the petitioner may elect to submit the petition for the
establishment of a charter school to the county board of education; and

WHEREAS, a successful charter petition must contain reasonably comprehensive
descriptions of the criteria set forth in Education Code section 47605(b)(5)(A)-(Q), as well
as the affirmations and other requirements set forth in Education Code section 47605;and

WHEREAS, the county board of education shall not deny a petition unless it makes
written factual findings specific to the particular petition, setting forth specific facts to
support any of the following findings:

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the students to be
enrolled in the charter school;

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
set forth in the petition;

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by subdivision (a)
of Education Code section 47605;

4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the required conditions
described in subdivision (e) of section 47605;

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all required
elements set forth in subdivision (b)(5) of section 47605;

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall
be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the charter
school for purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act;

1
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7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate;

8. The school district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed
charter school; and

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2022, the Sutter County Board of Education (“Board”)
received a petition to establish the New Pacific School- Yuba City charter school
("Petition") ; and

WHEREAS, the Board, consistent with Education Code section 47605(b), is
obligated to take action to grant or deny the Petition within 90 days of submission;
and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the Petition was accordingly held on October 12,
2022, at which time the Board considered the level of support for the Petition by
teachers employed by the District, other employees of the District, and
parents/guardians; and

WHEREAS, the County staff has conducted an extensive review and analysis of the
Petition, as well as the legal grounds articulated in the Education Code for purposes
of determining whether the Petition meets the minimum standards for approval; and

WHEREAS, the Board published the County Office of Education’s Staff Report and
Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding New Pacific School — Yuba City Petition,
including staff’s recommendations regarding the Petition on November 28, 2022,
("Staff Report"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated
herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the Board has accordingly convened at a public hearing on January 18,
2023, to consider the admissions preferences described in the Petition and to decide
whether to grant or deny the Petition; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sutter County Board of
Education does resolve, determine, and order the following:

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct.

2. The Board has considered the Petition, including the findings of fact and noted
deficiencies, as detailed in the Staff Report posted on November 28, 2022, and
attached as Exhibit A.

3. The Board has considered, and approves of, the admissions preferences
described in the Petition.
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4. The Board hereby adopts the attached staff findings in Exhibit A as its own, and
approves the Petition to establish the New Pacific School — Yuba City for an
initial five-year term, beginning on July 1, 2023, and ending on June 30, 2028,
contingent upon the following:

* The execution of a Memorandum of Understanding addressing the
items noted in section 9 (a)-(e) of the Staff Report (Exhibit A);

 The provision by Petitioner(s) of documentation verifying the
purchase or lease of Charter School facilities, including the address of
said facilities; and

» That the Petitioner(s) make changes throughout the Petition as needed
to reflect the County Board as authorizer

5. The Superintendent or his designee is authorized and directed to take such
action as may be reasonably necessary to effectuate the purpose and intent of
this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools Office, Yuba City, California, on the 18" day of January 2023, at a regular
meeting by the following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:
Abstentions:
Absent:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SUTTER

[, Tom Reusser, Ex-Officio to the Governing Board of the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools of Yuba City, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and
correct copy of a resolution adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at
its regular place or meeting at the time and by the vote above stated, which resolution is on
file in the office of said Board.

June McJunkin, President Tom Reusser, Ex-Officio
Sutter County Board of Education Sutter County Board of Education
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EXHIBIT A

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION STAFF REPORT AND
PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT REGARDING NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL -
YUBA CITY PETITION

ATTACHED
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Exhibit A

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STAFF REPORT AND PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
REGARDING NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL - YUBA CITY PETITION

l. Introduction

On September 21, 2022, New Pacific School—Yuba City (the “Charter,” or “Charter
School”) timely submitted a charter school petition (“Petition”) to the Sutter County
Board of Education (the “County Board”), pursuant to Education Code section
47605(k)(1)(A), following denial by the Yuba City Unified School District of said Petition
on or about August 23, 2022. The Charter School would be located within the
boundaries of Yuba City Unified School District and would initially serve 100 students in
grades TK-5. The Petition seeks an initial charter term that would begin on July 1, 2023
and end on June 30, 2028.

On October 12, 2022, the County Board held a public hearing to consider the level of
public support for the Petition. On November 1, 2022 county staff conducted a capacity
interview with Petitioners. On December 14, 2022, the County Board will hold a public
hearing to take action to approve or deny the Petition, and to consider the admissions
preferences in the Petition.

Il Summary of Charter School’s Proposed Mission and Program
The Mission, Vision, and Goals articulated through the charter petition include a

commitment to being leaders in whole child education, inquiry driven learning, and
family partnerships. This commitment is supported by:

J A small school environment with individualized educational programs,
responsive school resources, and well supported school personnel.
J A student-centered approach designed to ensure students are challenged,

engaged, supported, and safe.
Programmatically, the petition describes multi-grade classrooms organized and
facilitated by “Learning Growth Plans,” Project Based Learning, and embedded Social

Emotional Learning.

The stated goal is to produce graduates who will be lifelong, purpose-driven learners
who author their own futures and thrive in a rapidly changing world.

. Criteria for Reviewing a Charter Petition

A county authorizer reviewing a petition that is appealed from a school district denial
must approve or deny petitions in the same manner as a petition to a district. (Ed.
Code, § 47605(k)(1)(A).) Education Code section 47605 subd. (c) states that “[t]he
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governing board of the school district shall grant a charter for the operation of a school
under this part if it is satisfied that granting the charter is consistent with sound
educational practice and with the interests of the community in which the school is
proposing to locate.” The authorizer also must consider “the academic needs of the
pupils the school proposes to serve.”

A school district board or county authorizer shall not deny such a petition for the
establishment of a charter school unless it makes written factual findings, specific to the
particular petition, setting forth specific facts to support one or more of the following
findings:

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be
enrolled in the charter school.

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the petition.

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by subdivision (a)
[of section 47605].

4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
subdivision (e) [of section 47605].

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the 15
elements set forth in [section 47605, subdivision (b)(5)].

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school
shall be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter
school for purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of
Title 1 of the Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))

I_ “

7. AB 1505 also introduced two new bases for denial: “community interests” under
Education Code Section 47605 (c)(7) and “fiscal impact” under Education Code
section 47605 (c)(8). While the proposed school’s potential fiscal impact is a part of
the consideration under section 47605 (c)(7), there is a separate basis to deny under
(c)(8) if the school district meets the statutory criteria showing inability to absorb
the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. In order to deny based on section
47605 (c)(7), the district must make the following findings:

The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate. This finding must include
analysis and consideration of the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school.
The district must also describe the specific facts and circumstances that analyze
and consider the following factors:
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- The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially
undermine existing services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings.

- Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently
offered within the school district and the existing program has sufficient
capacity for the pupils proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to
where the charter school intends to locate.

8. To deny a petition based on fiscal impact under section 47605 (c)(8), the school
district must demonstrate it is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the
proposed charter school. Charter schools proposed in a school district satisfying one
of these conditions shall be subject to a rebuttable presumption of denial. A school
district meets the statutory criteria if:

- it has a qualified interim certification pursuant to Section 42131 and the
county superintendent of schools, in consultation with the county office
Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, certifies that approving the
charter school would result in the school district having a negative interim
certification pursuant to Section 42131;

- it has a negative interim certification pursuant to Section 42131; or

- itis under state receivership.

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT!?

County staff conducted a thorough analysis of the Petition and its supporting
documents, and provide the County Board with the following proposed findings of fact
and recommendation regarding the Petition.

1. Does the Charter present an unsound educational program?

No. Staff have concluded that the Charter does not present an unsound educational
program for the students it proposes to educate.

In Summary:

e The small school environment, Leader in Me, and project based learning
described in the Petition are research-based and provide valid bases for the
Charter School’s proposed educational program. (Petition, pgs. 27, 35-36)

e Alow student to staff ratio supports the educational program. (Petition, p.
27)

! Staff note that some of the data tables referenced and relied upon in the Petition are inaccurate, at least
in part. These inaccuracies have been considered by staff, but do not ultimately change the conclusions in
this analysis.
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e There is no legal requirement that charter schools utilize state adopted
curriculum. That being said, curriculum referenced in the Petition, and
further discussed in the capacity interview, are appropriate for the
educational program. As noted by the Special Education staff’s review, the
curriculum is effective for targeted instruction and used for students with
disabilities. (Petition, pgs. 47-66)

e The Petition provides for supports such as tutoring, targeted one-on-one
assistance, strategic interventions, intensive interventions, and online
support programs to support student success. (Petition, pgs 18, 100, 105,
113)

Are the Petitioners demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
set forth in the Petition?

No. Staff have concluded that the Petitioners are not demonstrably unlikely to

successfully implement the program set forth in the Petition.

In summary:

The Charter School will be operated by Pacific Charter Institute (“PCI”), which
has a record of successfully operating and implementing charter school academic
programs in the region. (Petition, pgs. 13, 17-18)

The Governance, organizational structure, and Board of Directors’ experience
support successful implementation. (Petition, pgs. 115-127)

PCl staff’s managerial experience and required employee qualifications support
successful implementation. (Petition, pgs. 120-125 and 129-135)

Administrative, educational, Human Resources, Legal, and Special Education

services provided by PCI, as described, are sufficient, and there is a history of
success at other schools, supporting successful implementation. (Petition, p.

175)

The financial position of PCl, as analyzed by staff, supports successful
implementation. (Appendix 6: 2021 Financial Audit for Pacific Charter Institute &
Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The proposed educational program describes its curriculum, methodology, and
structure in detail, along with how it will educate its student population,
including high and low achievers and special education students, supporting
successful implementation. (Petition, p. 43-85)

The Charter School has represented that it will be approved for membership in
the El Dorado Charter SELPA. (Appendix 9: Letter from EDCOE SELPA)
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3. Does the Petition contain the number of signatures required by Education Code
47605(a)?

Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains the number of signatures
required by Education Code 47605(a).

In Summary:

EC 47605(a) states that “the petition may be submitted to the governing board of
the school district for review after either of the following conditions is met:

(A) The petition is signed by a number of parents or legal guardians of pupils that is
equivalent to at least one-half of the number of pupils that the charter school
estimates will enroll in the charter school for its first year of operation.

(B) The petition is signed by a number of teachers that is equivalent to at least one-
half of the number of teachers that the charter school estimates will be employed at
the charter school during its first year of operation.”

The Petition budget assumptions project staffing three (3) teachers at the Charter
School during its first year of operation (Appendix 7: Budget and financial
Documents), and the Petition was signed by three (3) teachers, which exceeded one-
half of the number of teachers that the Charter School estimates will be employed at
the Charter School during its first year of operation (Appendix 7: Budget and
financial Documents). Therefore, this requirement is met.

4. Does the Petition contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
subdivision (e) [of section 47605]?

Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains affirmations of each condition
described in Edcuation Code 47605(e).

In Summary:

Formal affirmations are found on Petition pages 8-10, and meet the legal
requirements for a charter Petition.

5. Does the Petition contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the [15
elements set forth in section 47605, subdivision (c)(5)]?
Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains reasonably comprehensive
descriptions of all of the elements set forth in Education Code 47605(c)(5).

Below is a summary by element.

Element A: Vision, Mission, and Educational Program
A petition should provide a reasonably comprehensive description of the educational
program of the charter that includes a description of “whom the charter school is

5
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attempting to educate,” what it means to be an “educated person in the 21st
century, and how learning best occurs.” (Ed. Code, § 47605, subd. (c)(5)(A)(i).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
e The Petition describes the targeted student populations and community need,
including:

0 The students the charter school will try to educate and a
demonstration of need for the proposed educational program
(Petition, p. 26-37);

0 Grade levels and number of students the charter school plans to serve
(Petition, p. 26-27, 36);

0 A clear, concise school mission and vision statement that aligns with
the target population (Petition, p. 27); and

0 The needs and challenges of the student groups to be served (Petition,
p. 28-34).

e The Petition describes attendance, including:

O The school year/academic calendar, number of school days and
instructional minutes (Petition, p. 43-47);

0 Attendance expectations and requirements, including enrollment
projections (Petition, p. 36);

O The master/daily schedule and proposed bell schedule (Petition, p. 43-
47 and Appendix 7: Budget and financial Documents)

e The Petition describes what it means to be an educated person in the 215t
Century, including:

O Goals that are consistent with enabling all pupils to become or remain
self-motivated, competent, lifelong learners (Petition, pgs. 26, 38-40);

0 Lists of academic skills and qualities important for an educated person
(Petition, pgs. 28, 38); and

0 Lists of general nonacademic skills and qualities important for an
educated person (Petition, p. 38-40).

e The Petition describes how learning best occurs and instructional design,
including:

0 A framework for instructional design that is aligned with the needs of
the students that the charter has identified as its target student
population (Petition, pgs. 38-43);

0 A description of the learning setting (e.g., site-based matriculation,
independent study, tech-based) (Petition p. 11, 39-40);

0 Instructional approaches and strategies the school will use that will
enable the school’s students, including subgroup populations such as
English language learners (ELL), to master the content standards for

312



(0]

accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 210 of 777
the core curriculum areas adopted by the State Board of Education
(Petition, pgs. 33-36, 47-65);
A process for developing or adopting curriculum and teaching methods
(Petition, pgs. 47-65);
How the charter school will identify and meet the needs of students
with disabilities, ELL students, students who are achieving substantially
above or below grade level expectations, and other special student
populations (note: The description demonstrates understanding of the
likely ELL population and includes a sound approach to identify and
meet the needs of subgroup populations) (Petition, pgs. 70-85);
A special education plan including, but not limited to, the means by
which the charter school will comply with the provisions of Education
Code section 47641 (Petition, pgs. 79-85); and
A plan for professional development that aligns with the charter
school’s proposed program (Petition, pgs. 66-68).

e The Petition describes its materials and technology, including:

(0]

o

How staff’s and students’ technology resources are aligned with the
instructional program and meet state assessment requirements
(Petition, p. 70-71);

What materials are available to students (Petition, pgs. 39, 70-71);
student-to-computer ratio appears reasonable (Petition, p. 70-71);
A description or plan for providing adaptive technology for special
education students (Petition, pgs. 70, 79-83); and

Common Core technology standards, digital assessments, and
professional learning (Petition, p. 66-68, 70-71).

o The Petition describes annual goals, including:

(0]

(0]

Annual goals for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified
pursuant to Education Code Section 52052 that apply to the grade
levels served (Petition, pgs. 91-110);

Goals tied to state priorities listed in Education Code Section 52060(d)
and LCAP, as appropriate (additional priorities related to unique
aspects of the proposed charter school program include goals and
specific annual actions) (Petition, pgs. 91-110); and

Specific annual actions designed to achieve the stated goals (Petition,
pgs. 99-110).

e The Petition describes requirements for Charter Schools serving high school
students, including:

o

(0}

How parents will be informed about the transferability of courses to
other public high schools (Petition, p. 47);

How parents will be informed about the eligibility of courses to meet
college entrance requirements (Petition, pgs. 68-69);
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0 How each student will receive information on how to complete and
submit the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) (Petition,
p.71);

0 How the exit outcomes will align with mission, curriculum and
assessments (Petition, pgs. 86, 90, 91);

0 Information indicating that all students will have the opportunity to
take courses that meet the University of California’s A-G requirements
(Petition, pgs. 22-23, 47); and

0 Planned graduation requirements and Western Association of Schools
and Colleges accreditations (Petition, pgs. 17, 47-68).

Element B: Measurable Student Outcomes

Every charter petition must identify annual goals, specific annual actions to achieve
those goals, measurable pupil outcomes and methods of measuring progress in meeting
pupil outcomes. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(B-C).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes measurable pupil outcomes for all groups, i.e., specific
assessment methods or tools listed for each exit outcome. (Petition, pgs. 89-110)

The Petition describes a description of how pupil outcomes align with the state priorities
consistent with the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), as described in
Education Code section 52060(d), that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of
the program. (Petition, pgs. 89-110)

The Petition describes specific annual actions designed to achieve the stated goals.
(Petition, pgs. 91-109)

The Petition describes additional school priorities related to unique aspects of the
proposed charter school program, with goals and specific annual actions. (Petition, pgs.

109-110)

The Petition describes a description of how pupil outcomes will address state content
and performance standards in core academic areas. (Petition, pgs. 91-110)

The Petition describes a description of how exit outcomes align with the mission and
instructional design of the program. (Petition, pgs. 90-110)

The Petition describes a description or affirmation that benchmark skills and specific
classroom-level skills will be developed. (Petition, pgs. 89-91)
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The Petition discusses school wide student performance goals students will achieve over
a given period of time, including attendance levels, dropout rates, and graduation rate
goals. (Petition, pgs. 91-109)

Element C: Student Progress Measurement

Every charter petition must identify annual goals, specific annual actions to achieve
those goals, measurable pupil outcomes and methods of measuring progress in meeting
pupil outcomes. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(B-C).

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary

The Petition describes assessment tools that include required state and federal
assessments (e.g., SBAC, ELPAC) for purposes of accountability. (Petition, pgs. 89, 111-
114)

The Petition describes at least one assessment method or tool listed for each of the exit
assessments. (Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition describes a variety of alternative assessment tools, including tools that use
objective means of assessment consistent with the measurable pupil outcomes.
(Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition generally describes how chosen assessments are appropriate for standards
and skills the charter school seeks to measure. (Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition describes a plan for collecting, analyzing, using and reporting student and

school performance to charter school staff and to students’ parents and guardians, and
for using the data continually to monitor and improve the charter school’s educational

program. (Petition, pgs. 87-91 and 111-114)

Element D: Governance Structure

A Petition must provide a reasonably comprehensive description of the Charter School’s
governance structure, including the process for parental involvement. (Ed. Code, §
47605 (c)(5)(D))

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition indicates that “New Pacific School will operate autonomously from the
District with the exception of the supervisory oversight as required by statute and other
contracted services as negotiated between the District and PCl,” and “the PCl Board is
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the governing body that will oversee the Charter School, with a Director at the Charter
School overseeing day-to-day operations.” (Petition, p. 115).

The Petition describes evidence of PCl’s incorporation as a nonprofit benefit
corporation. (Petition, p. 115, 176)

The Petition provides the names and relevant qualifications of all persons whom the
Petitioner nominates to serve on the governing body of the charter school. (Petition, p.
116-117)

The Petition references a set of bylaws and basic policies. (Petition, p. 7, 75, 117-118,
122, 176 and Appendix 4: PCl Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws)

The Petition describes evidence that the organization and design of the governance
structure reflect the following:
e Aseriousness of purpose to ensure that the charter will become and remain a
viable enterprise.
e An understanding and assurance of compliance with open meeting
requirements.
(Petition, pgs. 8-10 and 115-118)

The Petition generally describes the key features of governing structure including, but
not limited to, the following:

e The Petition generally describes a delineation of roles and responsibilities of the
governing board and staff. (Petition, pgs. 117-125)

e The Petition generally describes the interaction between the Charter School and
the charter management organization with regard to budget, expenditures,
personnel, and daily operations. (Petition, p.118-121 and 172-175)

e The Petition generally describes the purpose and composition of board, board
committees and/or advisory councils. (Petition, pgs. 116-118 and 125-127)

e The Petition describes the method for selection of replacement board members.
(Petition, p. 119)

The Petition generally describes a process for involvement or input of parents and
guardians in the governance of the charter school, including the following:
e Adelineation of roles and responsibilities of parent councils, advisory committee
and other supporting groups. (Petition, p. 125-127)
e A description that it shall notify the parents and guardians of applicant pupils
and currently enrolled pupils that parental involvement is not a requirement for
acceptance to or continuation at the charter school. (Petition, p. 9)

The Petition generally references specific policies and internal controls that are meant
to prevent fraud, embezzlement and conflict of interest, and that ensure the
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implementation and monitoring of those policies. (Petition, p. 118, 174, 175 and
Appendix 5: Conflict of Interest Code)

During the Capacity Interview, Petitioners communicated specific trainings and
professional development that the board takes advantage of. (Petition, p. 118)

The Petition generally describes other important legal or operational relationships
between the charter school and granting agency. (Petition, p. 168, 172, 176-177)

Element E: Employee Qualifications
The Petition should identify the qualifications required of individuals who will work at
the Charter School. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(E).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes core and college preparatory teachers, and affirms all teachers
will hold appropriate Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificates, per Education
Code 47605.4. (Petition, p. 9, 130)

The Petition describes those positions that the charter school regards as key and for
which it specifies additional qualifications, responsibilities and accountability. (Petition,
pgs. 129-133)

The Petition describes general qualifications for the various categories of employees
(e.g., other administrative, instructional support, non-instructional support). These
qualifications appear sufficient to ensure the health and safety of the charter school’s
faculty, staff and students; however, it is unclear whether an administrative credential
will be required for the school principal or other administrators with responsibility for
evaluating certificated employees and expelling students, even if such a credential is
not strictly required by law. (Petition, pgs. 129-133)

The Petition describes a plan for recruitment, selection, development and evaluation of
staff and charter school leaders. (Petition, p. 133-135)

The Petition describes roles and lines of authority for board and management positions.
(Petition, pgs. 120- 125 and Appendix 4: PCI Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws)

The Petition does not specify the teacher to student ratio, stating “student to staff
ratios will be low” (Petition, p. 27). The budget provides for 3 teachers and 4 teacher
assistants to 100 students (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents).

Element F: Health and Safety Procedures

Pursuant to Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(F), the Petition must include the
procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of students and
staff.
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Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition discusses a comprehensive charter school safety plan, provides a safety
plan, and gives assurance that the plan will be updated annually and staff shall receive
training in emergency response, including appropriate first responder training or its
equivalent. (Petition, p. 136-140 and Appendix 8: Safety Plan)

The Petition makes assurances that the charter school will require a criminal
background clearance report and proof of tuberculosis examination prior to
employment. (Petition, p. 136)

The Petition makes assurances that the charter school will adopt procedures to prevent
acts of bullying and cyberbullying, and make the California Department of Education
(CDE) online training module available to all employees who interact with students.
(Petition, p. 140)

The Petition discusses that charter schools with grades 7-12 will adopt a suicide
prevention policy. (Petition, p. 137)

The Petition sufficiently describes health and safety practices for students and staff.
(Petition, pgs. 85, 136-140)

The Petition describes assurances regarding compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA). (Petition, p. 8)

Element G: Racial and Ethnic Balance

Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(G) requires that a charter petition include a
reasonably comprehensive description of the means by which the school will achieve a
racial and ethnic balance among its students that is reflective of the general population
residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the charter authorizer to which the charter
petition is submitted.

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition generally describes practices and policies the charter school will design and
implement to attract a diverse applicant pool and enroliment that reflects the general
population, including special populations that reside within the district’s territorial
jurisdiction. (Petition, pgs. 141-145)
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The Petition describes practices and policies that appear tailored to achieve racial and
ethnic balance. (Petition, p. 141-145)

The Petition describes outreach strategies, which identify the targeted groups for
achieving balance. (Petition, p. 141)

The Petition indicated recruitment materials would be published in Spanish, but there
was no mention of printing recruitment materials in Punjabi even though a significant
portion of the population in the surrounding geographic area speaks Punjabi. (Petition,
P. 141). If the Petition is approved, a memorandum of understanding with the Charter
School should include the Charter School’s assurance it will print student recruitment
and other materials in the languages of all significant sub populations (15% and greater).

Element H: Admissions Policies and Procedures
The Petition must describe its admissions requirements, if applicable, pursuant to
Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(H).

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes the following assurances: The charter school shall be
nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other
operations, shall not charge tuition, and shall not discriminate against a pupil on the
basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or
ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including
immigration status, equal rights, and opportunities in the educational institutions of the
state. (Petition p. 8, 129, 142)

The Petition describes a clear description of admission policies that satisfy legal
requirements in the staff’s assessment. (Petition, p. 142-145)

The Petition provides a description of how students in the community will be informed
and given an equal opportunity to attend the charter school. (Petition, p. 141)

The Petition describes proposed admissions and enrollment requirements, process and
timeline, which include the following:
e Information to be collected through the interest form, application form, and/or
enrollment form. (Petition, pgs. 143)
e Assurances that enrollment preferences will not require mandatory parent
volunteer hours as a criteria for admission. (Petition, pg. 9, 142)

The Petition describes the public random drawing processes that comply with state and
federal laws. (Petition, pgs. 143-145)
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The Petition does not give any indication that preferences, if given, will negatively
impact the racial, ethnic and unduplicated pupil balance the charter school strives to
reflect. (Petition, pgs. 8-9, 143-144)

Element I: Annual Independent Financial Audits

The Petition must describe the manner in which annual, independent, financial audits
will be conducted, which will employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the
manner in which audit exceptions and deficiencies will be resolved to the satisfaction of
the chartering authority. (Ed. Code, § 47605 (c)(5)(l).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes the manner in which the audit will be conducted.
(Petition, p. 146)

The Petition describes procedures to select and retain an independent auditor,
including:
e Qualifications that will be used for the selection of an independent auditor,

e Assurance that the auditor will have experience in education finance.
(Petition, p. 146)

The Petition describes assurance that the annual audit will employ generally
accepted accounting principles. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition describes scope and timing of audit, as well as distribution of completed
audit to authorizer, county office, State Controller, California Department of
Education, and/or other agencies required by law. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition describes a process and timeline that the charter school will follow to
address any audit findings and/or resolve audit exceptions. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition indicates that “the Charter School will inform the District of any
outstanding exceptions or deficiencies at the time of audit submission and how they
are resolved to the satisfaction of the District”. The Petition further adds that “any
disputes regarding the resolution of audit exceptions and deficiencies will be
referred to the dispute resolution process referenced in Element N of the petition,
or if applicable, referred to the Education Audit Appeals Panel process in compliance
with Education Code Section 41344.(Petition, p. 146) However, the Petition states in
Element N that “New Pacific School recognizes that it cannot bind the District to a
dispute resolution procedure to which the District does not agree. (Petition, p. 168).
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Such a proposed resolution does not necessarily ensure the authorizer’s satisfaction.
(Petition, pg. 146.)

The Petition describes who is responsible for contracting with and overseeing the
independent audit. (Petition, pg. 146)

Element J: Suspension/Expulsion Policies and Procedures

Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(J) requires that the petition contain a reasonably
comprehensive description of the procedures by which pupils can be suspended or
expelled from the charter school for disciplinary reasons, or otherwise involuntarily
removed from the charter school for any reason. “Involuntarily removal” includes
disenrollment, dismissal, and transfer. Petitions must also describe, at a minimum, “how
the charter school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and
substantive due process requirements.”

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes a process for suspensions of fewer than 10 days, including the
following:

e Oral or written notice of the charges against the pupil.

e If the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence that supports the
charges.

e How an opportunity will be provided for the pupil to present a rebuttal to the
charges.

(Petition, p. 155-156)
The Petition describes a process for suspensions of 10 days or more and all other
expulsions for disciplinary reasons, including the following:

e Timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of the
pupil’s basic rights.

e A process of hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number
of days, and to which the pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an
advocate.

(Petition, p.157-158)
The Petition describes a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by
the charter school for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been
provided with written notice, and that ensures the written notice shall be in the native
language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian. (Petition, p. 149)

The Petition describes an understanding of relevant laws protecting constitutional rights
of students.
e Provides for due process for all students and demonstrates understanding of the
rights of students with disabilities, in regard to suspension, expulsion and
involuntary dismissal. (Petition, pgs. 148-149)
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Explanation of how authorizer may be notified of disciplinary matters. (Petition, p. 160)

Element K: Staff Retirement System

The Petition must describe the manner in which staff members of the Charter School
will be covered by the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’
Retirement System, or federal social security. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(K).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes a statement of what retirement options will be offered to
employees: State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) (if STRS, then all teachers must
participate); Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS); and Social Security.
(Petition, pg. 165)

The Petition describes whether and how retirement will be offered.
(Petition, pg. 134, 165)

The Petition describes who is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate
arrangements for coverage have been made. (Petition, pg. 165)

Element L: Public School Attendance Alternatives

The Petition must describe the public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing
within the attendance area who choose not to attend the Charter School. (Ed. Code, §
47605 (c)(5)(L).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition discusses attendance alternatives for students who reside within the county
and choose not to attend the charter school. (Petition, pg. 166)

Element M: Post-employment Rights of Employees

The Petition must include the rights of the charter authorizer’s employee upon leaving
charter authorizer employment to work in the Charter School and any rights of return to
the charter authorizer after employment at the Charter School. (Ed. Code, §
47605(c)(5)(M).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes school district employees’ return to employment rights, including
the following:
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e Whether, and how staff may resume employment within the district or
authorizer. (Petition, pg. 167)
The potential ability to transfer sick and/or vacation leave to and from the charter
school and another LEA was referenced in the Petition. Staff was uncertain of
employees’ ability to transfer leave. Petitioners clarified in the capacity interview that
employees are able to transfer sick leave. (Petition, pg. 167)

Element N: Dispute Resolution Procedures

The Petition must include the procedures to be followed by the Charter School and the
SCOE to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. (Ed. Code, §
47605(c)(5)(N).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes a process for the charter and the authorizer to settle disputes
related to the provisions of the charter. (Petition, pg. 168-169)

The Petition references that PCl policies and procedures will be used by the Charter to
resolve internal complaints and disputes (Petition, pgs. 139, 168).
e Includes a reference to the Uniform Complaint procedures and a description of
how this process is communicated to parents, staff and the community.
(Petition, pg. 168)

The Petition describes an acknowledgement that, except for disputes between the
chartering authority and the charter school, all disputes involving the charter school
shall be resolved by the charter school according to the charter school’s own internal
policies. (Petition, pg. 168). However, nowhere are the policies/procedures included
with the Petition.

The Petition describes a statement that if any such dispute concerns facts or
circumstances that may be cause for revocation of the charter, the authorizer shall not
be obligated by the terms of the dispute resolution process as a precondition to
revocation. (Petition, pg. 169)

Element O: Closure Procedures
The Petition must include the procedures to be used if the Charter School closes. (Ed.
Code, § 47605(c)(5)(0))

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes procedures to be used if the charter school closes, including the
following:
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e Who is the responsible entity or person that will conduct closure-related
activities?

e How the charter will communicate the closure to students, parents and
guardians, the authorizing entity, the county office of education, the charter’s
special education local plan area, the retirement systems in which the school’s
employees participate, and the California Department of Education.

e Who will conduct the process for the completion and submission of final
financial reports, expenditure reports for entitlement grants, and the filing of
any required final expenditure and performance reports?

(Petition, pp. 170-171)

The Petition describes the maintenance plan for pupil records and the manner in
which parents and guardians may obtain copies of pupil records if the charter school
closes, including how information will be preserved and transferred. (Petition, pp.
170-171)

The Petition describes a process for how the charter will ensure a final audit of the
charter school.

e An assurance the audit will be conducted within six months of closure.

e The disposition of the charter school’s assets.

e Plans for disposing net assets including at least the following:

The disposition of all assets of the charter, including cash and accounts
receivable and an inventory of property, equipment and other items of
material value.

An accounting of all liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction
in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans,
and unpaid staff compensation.

An assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due
to the charter.

Process for the return of any donated materials and property in accordance
with any conditions established when the donation of such materials or
property was accepted.

(Petition, pp. 170 -171)

The Petition describes he transfer and maintenance of personnel records in
accordance with applicable law. (Petition, pp. 170 -171)

Required Supplemental Criteria

Financial and Administrative Plan

Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
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The Petition describes a first year operational budget, including:
e Annual revenues and expenditures clearly identified by source. Appendix 7: Budget
and Financial Documents)

Petitioner has LCAP goals and actions that seem to be aligned with their budget;
ideally, the Petition would reflect further assumptions to strengthen the alignment
verification. (Petition, pgs. 91-109 and Appendix 7: Budget and Financial
Documentation). During the Capacity interview, petitioners described their
alignment of goals with the budget. However, Petitioners should provide a clear
written description of the alignment of LCAP expenditures with their budget.

The Petition describes financial projections that include a clear description of
planning assumptions. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents -)

The Petition describes start-up costs with a reasonable allocation for most major
start-up costs. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The Petition describes cash flow projections for first three years with a monthly
projection of revenue receipts in line with local, state and federal funding
disbursements. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The Petition describes structure for administrative services and operations (Petition,
p. 175-176)

Back Office Providers
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes the name of the back office provider and a description of support
used by the charter. (Petition, p. 175)

Charter Management Organization
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes the name and relationship of PCl to charter school, along with
other relevant details. (Petition, pgs. 173-175)

Facilities: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(h)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition generally describes the type and the location of the charter school facility
or facilities that the Petitioner proposes to operate, even though it does not identify the
precise location it will operate. (Petition, pgs. 29, 175)
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The Petition generally describes current and projected availability of facilities but does
not presently specify where the Charter School proposes to locate, or specifically what
facilities will be used as that process remains underway with the Charter School’s
realtor. (Petition, p. 175) The Petition includes
e Assurances of legal compliance with all health and safety, ADA, and applicable
building codes. (Petition, p. 140, 176)
e Adequate budget for anticipated costs, including renovation, rent, maintenance
and utilities. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)
e Assurance that the facilities shall be accessible for all students with disabilities
(Petition, p. 79)

The Petition described that the Charter School may apply for Proposition 39 facilities
(Petition, p. 176)

Impact Statement: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(h)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition discusses an anticipated operational memorandum of understanding
between the authorizer and charter school, and further discusses potential civil liability
effects, upon the school and the authorizer. (Petition, p. 172, 176)

Community Impact: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(c)(7)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

The Petition adequately described a program that Staff has determined does not reflect
that it will duplicate a program currently offered by the District, within the meaning of
Education Code section 47605(c)(7), nor is there evidence it will it substantially
undermine existing school district services, academic offerings, or program offerings.
(Petition, pgs. 26-114)

Special Education: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47641(a) and Education Code §
47646
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition sufficiently describes the school’s special education structure in detail,
including discussion of provision of services under the IDEA, Section 504, special
education staffing, responses to requests for assessments, identification and referral,
the IEP process, student placement, addressing due process and parent concerns, and
more. (Petition, p. 74, 79-85)

20

326



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 224 of 777
The Charter Petition includes evidence that the school has consulted with, and will
become a member of, the El Dorado Charter SELPA. (Appendix 9: Letter from EDCOE
SELPA)

The Petition includes the following assurances:
e The charter will comply with all provisions of IDEA. (Petition, p.79)
e Discusses admission based on disability or lack of available services. (Petition, pgs.
82,142-143)
e Student study team process will be implemented. (Petition, p.73-74)

e Students qualifying for Section 504 services will receive such services. (Petition, p
84-85.)

Required Declaration
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be
deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school. (Petition,
p. 8)

Affirmations: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(e)
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes affirmations that:

e The school will be nonsectarian in its:

- Programs

- Admission policies

- Employment practices

- All other operations
(Petition, p. 8, 129, 142)

e The school shall not charge tuition. (Petition, p. 8, 142)

e The school shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of disability, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate
crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the California Penal Code. (Petition, p. 8, 129,
142)

e Admission to a charter school shall not be determined according to the place of
residence of the pupil, or of the pupil’s parent or legal guardian, within this state,
except that an existing public school converting partially or entirely to a charter
school under this part shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference
to pupils who reside within the former attendance area of that public school.
(Petition, p.8, 142)
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e The charter school shall admit all pupils who wish to attend the charter school.
(Petition, p. 8, 143)
e The school will comply with federal, state and local laws as required for charter
schools. (Petition, p. 8-10)

Alternative Education Criteria: Education Code § 58500 — 58512

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is not applicable.

Independent Study Criteria: (5 Year Moratorium)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is not applicable.

6. Does the Petition contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall
be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school
for purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title
1 of the Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))?

- Yes. Staff have determined that the Petition contains the required
declaration.

In Summary:

The declaration is found on page 8 of the Petition.

7. Is the charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate?

- No. Staff have determined the Charter School is not demonstrably unlikely
to serve the interests of the entire community in which it is proposing to
operate.

In summary:

e The Petition and associated documents do not support a finding that the
proposed Charter School would substantially undermine existing services,
academic offerings, or programmatic offerings of the school district in which
it is proposing to locate.

e The Petition and associated documents do not support a finding that the
proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered within
the local school district, within the meaning of Education Code §
47605(c)(7).

8. Whether the school district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the
proposed charter school?
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None of the statutory criteria are present indicating the school district is
not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school,
within the meaning of Education Code § 47605(c)(8).

In summary:

The District does not have a qualified interim certification pursuant to
Section 42131 and the county superintendent of schools, in consultation with
the County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, has not
certified that approving the charter school would result in the school district
having a negative interim certification pursuant to Section 42131;

The District does not have a negative interim certification pursuant to
Section 42131; and

The District is not under state receivership.

Evidence for denying the Petition.

From Staff’s analysis, no findings specific to the particular Petition were identified
that rose to the level of justifying denial of the Petition. However, several deficient

items are noted in this staff report and should be resolved through an operational

Memorandum of Understanding and other oversight measures. These items

include:

a.
b.

Lack of more precise facilities information, including specific address;

Lack of inclusion of dispute resolution policy/procedures for internal conflict
referenced in the petition;

Ambiguity in language following assurance that Charter School will resolve
any audit deficiencies to the satisfaction of the authorizer;

While goals and actions of the Charter School’s LCAP are present in the
petition, as well as budget expenditures that could achieve their stated goals
and actions, Petitioners lack a clear description of the correlation between
their goals and budget.

Lack of assurance that recruitment materials will be printed in all languages
that are identified as the primary language spoken by 15% or more of
families within the District’s boundaries in order to achieve a racial and
ethnic balance.

Staff Recommendation

Based on Staff’s careful review of the Petition, it is recommended that the County Board
adopt the above findings as its own, and:

1. Approve the Petition submitted by the Charter School, as Staff have concluded that
the Petition meets the requirements for approval pursuant to Education Code
section 47605; and

As a condition of approval, require the Charter School, within 45 days of approval,

to:
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a. Execute a Memorandum of Understanding addressing the items noted in
Section 9 (a)-(e) of this staff report; and
b. Provide documentation verifying purchase or lease of Charter School
facilities, including the precise location for said facilities.
c. Make changes throughout the Petition as needed to reflect the County
Board as authorizer.
3. Approve any admissions preferences set forth in the Petition.
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Ifémflc
CSchool

DECEMBER 6, 2022
Via Email
tomr@sutter.k12.ca.us
Tom Reusser, Superintendent
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
970 Klamath Lane
Yuba City, California 95993

RE: Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding New Pacific School - Yuba City Petition
Dear Superintendent Reusser,

Pacific Charter Institute ("PCI"), which proposed to operate New Pacific School - Yuba City (“New
Pacific School” or “NPS"), is in receipt of the Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding
New Pacific School - Yuba City Petition. New Pacific School greatly appreciates the diligence
demonstrated by the Sutter County Office of Education ("County”) in its detailed staff report. We
concur that the charter merits approval.

New Pacific School writes to address the items identified by the County for inclusion in a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the parties. Below please find responses to each of
the identified items, in the order presented.

a. Lack of more precise facilities information, including specific address;

Due to negotiations and fiduciary responsibility with public funds, the NPS team / PCI negotiates in
closed session in accordance with the Brown Act. NPS is actively engaged in locating a facility and
will notify the County of the address as soon as it can be determined. We request flexibility from the
County on the timeline for finalizing a lease.

b. Lack of inclusion of dispute resolution policy/procedures for internal conflict referenced in
the petition;

Conflict resolution at New Pacific School Yuba City begins at the most local level between staff
members, If staff members and the supervisor are unable to resolve the conflict PCl human resources
engages with the parties for resolution. If human resources is unable to resolve the dispute the
executive director will evaluate the dispute and seek to resolve it. All staff members may go directly
to the executive director for resolution, but that person (s) may be referred to human resources. ALL

Page 1 of 6
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employees may address the PCI Board of Directors if they continue to seek resolution within PCI. The
PCI Board of Directors may resolve the issue and if it is unable to resolve the conflict it may contract
with an outside agency to seek resolution. NPS does not object to memorializing this process in an
MOU, however, we note that Education Code Section 47605(c){5)(N) does not require a description
of internal dispute resolution procedures in the charter petition.

<. Ambiguity in language following assurance that Charter School will resolve any audit
deficiencies to the satisfaction of the authorizer;

New Pacific School Yuba City will resolve all audit exceptions according to GAAP and state audit
guidelines. The state audit guidelines are consistent between charter schools and school districts.
This norm should satisfy Sutter County Office of Education as the regulations apply to all LEA's.
Education Code Section 47605 (c)(5)(I) mandates that any concerns around deficiencies in the annual
financial audit are resolved to the satisfaction of the charter authority. We do not have the unilateral
prerogative to determine what resolution would be to the satisfaction of the County, and we are open
to the County’s preference.

d. While goals and actions of the Charter School’s LCAP are present in the petition, as well as
budget expenditures that could achieve their stated goals and actions, Petitioners lack a clear
description of the correlation between their goals and budget.

Page 2 of 6
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State Priority Goal LCFF / LCAP amount
. . . All students will receive instruction from NOTES: Salaries, benefits
State P #1 - Basic Services ’
e Priority ] . teachers fully credentialed in the subject areas, teaching staff/para’s
The degree to which teachers are appropria tely will have sufficient access to standards-aligned | Payroll series
assigned (E.C. §44258.9) and fully credentialed, and | jpstructional materials, and will learn in a well- | $554,051
EVED maintained school environment.
pupil has sufficient access to standards-aligned
instructional materials (E.C. § 60119), and school
facilities are maintained in good repair (E.C.
§17002(d}}
State Priority #2— Implementation of Common | New Pacific School provides CCSS-based PD/ C‘_lm‘fum“; grogramds
Core State Standards instruction to all students, gg:)“(}’:;i_t::‘ LESUUETS
Implementation of State Standards (including CCSS New Pacific School provides differentiated Portions of 'i‘ravel &

and ELD} including how EL students will be enabled to
gain academic content knowledge and English
language proficiency

professional development focused on effective
instructional practices aligned to CCSS and

Conference, Instructional
Services

ELD. $10,000 plus 1% of 7000
New Pacific School uses interim and summative | gerjes
assessments aligned with CCSS.
State Priority #3— Parental Involvement and New Pacific School will provide opportunities for | Powerschool & social
Family Engagement parental involvement. Parents access all media )
A. Parental involvement and family engagement, information and data abgut their student Combinatu.m of 7000 and
including efforts the Charter School makes to seek ,ﬂ“"“g,h PowerSch(.)ol‘ suite of programs Payrfall. Serles: .
parent input in making decisions for the Charter including, but not I!mlted to, coursework, grades, Admlmst‘ra‘twe services
state and school-wide assessment results, & Advertising

School, and including how the Charter School will
promote parental participation in programs for
unduplicated pupils and individuals with exceptional

teacher communication, portfelio completion
and school updates. NPS will have staff that

1% of $12,287

needs. speaks Punjabi, Spanish, and other concentration | Principal Salary
languages in the Yuba City community. $165,377
- . Schoolwide intervention in language arts and 4000 series
State Priority #4— Student Achievement
v cmev mathematics with assigned appropriate CCSS- Portion of the $190,000

Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the
following, as applicable:

aligned instructional materials and practice
testing for familiarity with format and content,
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i Parents will be communicated in their home
language including Punjabi and Spanish
regarding their student plan and updates.
State Priority #5— Student Engagement New Pacific School will provide a safe, g:;::;ess & Admin
. rturing and engaging learning environment .
Pupil engagement, as measured by ali | TUTUT rning | 5000 series
of the following, as applicable: for all its §tudents and families, including those $171,618
of the various subgroups enrolled. ’
Support Staff
Payroll series included in
other priorities

State Priority #6— School Climate

School climate, as measured by all of
the following, as applicable:

A. Pupil suspension rates
B. Pupil expulsion rates

Other local measures, including surveys of pupils,
parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and
school connectedness

Students, parents, and teachers will be trained
and implement best practices. All counselors will
be promoting Leader in Me mental health
strategies for students. Charter School leadership
will work with teachers and families to manage
student behavior issues and concerns. Parents
will be communicated in their home language
including Punjabi and Spanish to support the
development of school climate and promote
Leader in Me principals.

Leader in Me training,
counseling, office staff,
Combination of 5000
Travel & Conference
$10,000 and 7000 PCI
Admin Travel &
Conference, PCI
Instructional Salaries &
Benefits

1% of $49,193.

Some overlap with other
priorities

State Priority #7— Course Access

The extent to which pupils have access to,
and are enrolled in, a broad course of
study, including programs and services
developed and provided te unduplicated
students (classified as EL, FRPM- eligible,
or foster youth; E.C. §42238.02) and
students with exceptional needs.

“Broad course of study” includes the following,
as applicable:
Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social
sciences, science, visual and performing arts,

Students, including all student subgroups and
students with exceptional needs, will have access
to and enroll in our academic and educational
program as outlined in the New Pacific School
charter document.

Combination of 4000 and
5000 series for
Instructional:

Portion of the $200,000
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health, physical education, and other as
prescribed by the governing board. (E.C.
§51210)

Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign
language(s), physical education, science,
mathematics, visual and performing arts, applied
arts, and career technical education. (E.C.

§51220(a)-(i))

State Priority #8—Other Student Outcomes
Pupil outcomes, if available, in the subject areas
described above in #7, as applicable.

All students will have access to CCSS language
arts programs, K-12.

All students will have access to small group,
one-on-one, and online intervention
programs.

All K-2 students will be assessed for literacy
and appropriate interventions will be
implemented for students not reading at
grade level.
Qualifying high school students will have access
to dual enrollment.

Combination of Payroli for
teachers/paras and 7000
series. Overlapped with
other state priorities.
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e. Lack of assurance that recruitment materials will be printed in all languages that are
identified as the primary language spoken by 15% or more of families within the district’s
boundaries in order to achieve a racial and ethnic balance.

New Pacific School Yuba City will hire staff or contract with experts to ensure populations greater
than 15% will be communicated with in their home language through written materials and direct
verbal communication. The languages will include Punjabi and Spanish. Further, a staff member will
be hired that will speak languages utilized by greater than 15% of NPS families. All recruitment
materials will be printed in English, Punjabi, Spanish, and any other language spoken by 15% or more
of NPS families within the district boundaries.

* * *

New Pacific School - Yuba City looks forward to its apportunity to meet with the County Board on
December 14%, We stand ready to negotiate a Memorandum of Understanding with County staff.
Please feel free to contact me at paul keefer@pacificcharters.org or 916-616-3958 if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

flarr—

Paul Keefer
Lead Petitioner

Page 6 of 6
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RESOLUTION OF THE SUTTER COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

RESOLUTION NO. 22-23-V

RESOLUTION TO DENY THE PETITION TO ESTABLISH THE
NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL - YUBA CITY CHARTER SCHOOL
AND WRITTEN FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF

WHEREAS, the approval of charter schools is governed by the Charter Schools Act of
1992, as subsequently amended, codified in Education Code sections 47600 et seq.,
and the implementing regulations of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (5
C.C.R. §§11960 et seq. ); and

WHEREAS, Education Code section 47605(b) charges school district governing
boards with the responsibility of reviewing charter petitions to determine whether
they meet the legal requirements for a successful charter petition; and

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 47605(j)(1) provides that if the governing board of a
school district denies a petition, the petitioner may elect to submit the petition for the
establishment of a charter school to the county board of education; and

WHEREAS, a successful charter petition must contain reasonably comprehensive
descriptions of the criteria set forth in Education Code section 47605(b)(5)(A)-(Q), as
well as the affirmations and other requirements set forth in Education Code section

47605; and

WHEREAS, the county board of education shall not deny a petition unless it makes
written factual findings specific to the particular petition, setting forth specific facts to
support any of the following findings:

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the students to be
enrolled in the charter school,

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the
program set forth in the petition;

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by subdivision
(a) of Education Code section 47605;

4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the required conditions
described in subdivision (e) of section 57605;

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all required
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elements set forth in subdivision (b)(5) of section 47605;

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school
shall be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the
charter school for purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act;

7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate;

8. The school district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed
charter school; and

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2022, the Sutter County Board of Education
("Board") received a charter petition to establish the New Pacific School - Yuba City
("Petition") ; and

WHEREAS, the Board, consistent with Education Code section 47605(b), is
obligated to take action to grant or deny the Petition within 90 days of submission;
and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the Petition was accordingly held on October 12,
2022, at which time the Board considered the level of support for the Petition by
teachers employed by the District, other employees of the District, and
parents/guardians; and

WHEREAS, the County staff has conducted an extensive review and analysis of the
Petition, as well as the legal grounds articulated in the Education Code for purposes
of determining whether the Petition meets the minimum standards for approval; and

WHEREAS, the Board published the County Office of Education’s Staff Report and
Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding New Pacific School — Yuba City Petition,
including staff’s recommendations regarding the Petition on November 28, 2022,
("Staff Report"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated
herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the Board has accordingly convened at a public hearing on January 18,
2023, to consider the admissions preferences described in the Petition and to decide
whether to grant or deny the Petition; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sutter County Board of Education
does resolve, determine, and order the following:

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct.

2. The Board has considered the Petition, including the findings of fact, as
detailed in the Staff Report posted on November 28, 2022, and attached as

2
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Exhibit A.

3. The Board hereby denies the Petition to establish the New Pacific School -
Yuba City pursuant to Education Code section 47605 for the following
reason(s):

4. The Superintendent or his designee is authorized and directed to take such
action as may be reasonably necessary to effectuate the purpose and intent of
this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools Office, Yuba City, California, on the 18" day of January 2023, at a regular meeting
by the following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:
Abstentions:
Absent:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SUTTER

I, Tom Reusser, Ex-Officio to the Governing Board of the Sutter County Superintendent of
Schools of Yuba City, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and
correct copy of a resolution adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at its
regular place or meeting at the time and by the vote above stated, which resolution is on file
in the office of said Board.

June McJunkin, President Tom Reusser, Ex-Officio
Sutter County Board of Education Sutter County Board of Education
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EXHIBIT A

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION STAFF REPORT AND
PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT REGARDING NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL -
YUBA CITY PETITION

ATTACHED
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Exhibit A

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STAFF REPORT AND PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
REGARDING NEW PACIFIC SCHOOL - YUBA CITY PETITION

l. Introduction

On September 21, 2022, New Pacific School—Yuba City (the “Charter,” or “Charter
School”) timely submitted a charter school petition (“Petition”) to the Sutter County
Board of Education (the “County Board”), pursuant to Education Code section
47605(k)(1)(A), following denial by the Yuba City Unified School District of said Petition
on or about August 23, 2022. The Charter School would be located within the
boundaries of Yuba City Unified School District and would initially serve 100 students in
grades TK-5. The Petition seeks an initial charter term that would begin on July 1, 2023
and end on June 30, 2028.

On October 12, 2022, the County Board held a public hearing to consider the level of
public support for the Petition. On November 1, 2022 county staff conducted a capacity
interview with Petitioners. On December 14, 2022, the County Board will hold a public
hearing to take action to approve or deny the Petition, and to consider the admissions
preferences in the Petition.

Il Summary of Charter School’s Proposed Mission and Program
The Mission, Vision, and Goals articulated through the charter petition include a

commitment to being leaders in whole child education, inquiry driven learning, and
family partnerships. This commitment is supported by:

J A small school environment with individualized educational programs,
responsive school resources, and well supported school personnel.
J A student-centered approach designed to ensure students are challenged,

engaged, supported, and safe.
Programmatically, the petition describes multi-grade classrooms organized and
facilitated by “Learning Growth Plans,” Project Based Learning, and embedded Social

Emotional Learning.

The stated goal is to produce graduates who will be lifelong, purpose-driven learners
who author their own futures and thrive in a rapidly changing world.

. Criteria for Reviewing a Charter Petition

A county authorizer reviewing a petition that is appealed from a school district denial
must approve or deny petitions in the same manner as a petition to a district. (Ed.
Code, § 47605(k)(1)(A).) Education Code section 47605 subd. (c) states that “[t]he
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governing board of the school district shall grant a charter for the operation of a school
under this part if it is satisfied that granting the charter is consistent with sound
educational practice and with the interests of the community in which the school is
proposing to locate.” The authorizer also must consider “the academic needs of the
pupils the school proposes to serve.”

A school district board or county authorizer shall not deny such a petition for the
establishment of a charter school unless it makes written factual findings, specific to the
particular petition, setting forth specific facts to support one or more of the following
findings:

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be
enrolled in the charter school.

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the petition.

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by subdivision (a)
[of section 47605].

4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
subdivision (e) [of section 47605].

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the 15
elements set forth in [section 47605, subdivision (b)(5)].

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school
shall be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter
school for purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of
Title 1 of the Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))

I_ “

7. AB 1505 also introduced two new bases for denial: “community interests” under
Education Code Section 47605 (c)(7) and “fiscal impact” under Education Code
section 47605 (c)(8). While the proposed school’s potential fiscal impact is a part of
the consideration under section 47605 (c)(7), there is a separate basis to deny under
(c)(8) if the school district meets the statutory criteria showing inability to absorb
the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. In order to deny based on section
47605 (c)(7), the district must make the following findings:

The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate. This finding must include
analysis and consideration of the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school.
The district must also describe the specific facts and circumstances that analyze
and consider the following factors:
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- The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially
undermine existing services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings.

- Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently
offered within the school district and the existing program has sufficient
capacity for the pupils proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to
where the charter school intends to locate.

8. To deny a petition based on fiscal impact under section 47605 (c)(8), the school
district must demonstrate it is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the
proposed charter school. Charter schools proposed in a school district satisfying one
of these conditions shall be subject to a rebuttable presumption of denial. A school
district meets the statutory criteria if:

- it has a qualified interim certification pursuant to Section 42131 and the
county superintendent of schools, in consultation with the county office
Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, certifies that approving the
charter school would result in the school district having a negative interim
certification pursuant to Section 42131;

- it has a negative interim certification pursuant to Section 42131; or

- itis under state receivership.

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT!?

County staff conducted a thorough analysis of the Petition and its supporting
documents, and provide the County Board with the following proposed findings of fact
and recommendation regarding the Petition.

1. Does the Charter present an unsound educational program?

No. Staff have concluded that the Charter does not present an unsound educational
program for the students it proposes to educate.

In Summary:

e The small school environment, Leader in Me, and project based learning
described in the Petition are research-based and provide valid bases for the
Charter School’s proposed educational program. (Petition, pgs. 27, 35-36)

e Alow student to staff ratio supports the educational program. (Petition, p.
27)

! Staff note that some of the data tables referenced and relied upon in the Petition are inaccurate, at least
in part. These inaccuracies have been considered by staff, but do not ultimately change the conclusions in
this analysis.
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e There is no legal requirement that charter schools utilize state adopted
curriculum. That being said, curriculum referenced in the Petition, and
further discussed in the capacity interview, are appropriate for the
educational program. As noted by the Special Education staff’s review, the
curriculum is effective for targeted instruction and used for students with
disabilities. (Petition, pgs. 47-66)

e The Petition provides for supports such as tutoring, targeted one-on-one
assistance, strategic interventions, intensive interventions, and online
support programs to support student success. (Petition, pgs 18, 100, 105,
113)

Are the Petitioners demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
set forth in the Petition?

No. Staff have concluded that the Petitioners are not demonstrably unlikely to

successfully implement the program set forth in the Petition.

In summary:

The Charter School will be operated by Pacific Charter Institute (“PCI”), which
has a record of successfully operating and implementing charter school academic
programs in the region. (Petition, pgs. 13, 17-18)

The Governance, organizational structure, and Board of Directors’ experience
support successful implementation. (Petition, pgs. 115-127)

PCl staff’s managerial experience and required employee qualifications support
successful implementation. (Petition, pgs. 120-125 and 129-135)

Administrative, educational, Human Resources, Legal, and Special Education

services provided by PCI, as described, are sufficient, and there is a history of
success at other schools, supporting successful implementation. (Petition, p.

175)

The financial position of PCl, as analyzed by staff, supports successful
implementation. (Appendix 6: 2021 Financial Audit for Pacific Charter Institute &
Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The proposed educational program describes its curriculum, methodology, and
structure in detail, along with how it will educate its student population,
including high and low achievers and special education students, supporting
successful implementation. (Petition, p. 43-85)

The Charter School has represented that it will be approved for membership in
the El Dorado Charter SELPA. (Appendix 9: Letter from EDCOE SELPA)
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3. Does the Petition contain the number of signatures required by Education Code
47605(a)?

Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains the number of signatures
required by Education Code 47605(a).

In Summary:

EC 47605(a) states that “the petition may be submitted to the governing board of
the school district for review after either of the following conditions is met:

(A) The petition is signed by a number of parents or legal guardians of pupils that is
equivalent to at least one-half of the number of pupils that the charter school
estimates will enroll in the charter school for its first year of operation.

(B) The petition is signed by a number of teachers that is equivalent to at least one-
half of the number of teachers that the charter school estimates will be employed at
the charter school during its first year of operation.”

The Petition budget assumptions project staffing three (3) teachers at the Charter
School during its first year of operation (Appendix 7: Budget and financial
Documents), and the Petition was signed by three (3) teachers, which exceeded one-
half of the number of teachers that the Charter School estimates will be employed at
the Charter School during its first year of operation (Appendix 7: Budget and
financial Documents). Therefore, this requirement is met.

4. Does the Petition contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
subdivision (e) [of section 47605]?

Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains affirmations of each condition
described in Edcuation Code 47605(e).

In Summary:

Formal affirmations are found on Petition pages 8-10, and meet the legal
requirements for a charter Petition.

5. Does the Petition contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the [15
elements set forth in section 47605, subdivision (c)(5)]?
Yes. Staff have concluded that the Petition contains reasonably comprehensive
descriptions of all of the elements set forth in Education Code 47605(c)(5).

Below is a summary by element.

Element A: Vision, Mission, and Educational Program
A petition should provide a reasonably comprehensive description of the educational
program of the charter that includes a description of “whom the charter school is

5
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attempting to educate,” what it means to be an “educated person in the 21st
century, and how learning best occurs.” (Ed. Code, § 47605, subd. (c)(5)(A)(i).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
e The Petition describes the targeted student populations and community need,
including:

0 The students the charter school will try to educate and a
demonstration of need for the proposed educational program
(Petition, p. 26-37);

0 Grade levels and number of students the charter school plans to serve
(Petition, p. 26-27, 36);

0 A clear, concise school mission and vision statement that aligns with
the target population (Petition, p. 27); and

0 The needs and challenges of the student groups to be served (Petition,
p. 28-34).

e The Petition describes attendance, including:

O The school year/academic calendar, number of school days and
instructional minutes (Petition, p. 43-47);

0 Attendance expectations and requirements, including enrollment
projections (Petition, p. 36);

O The master/daily schedule and proposed bell schedule (Petition, p. 43-
47 and Appendix 7: Budget and financial Documents)

e The Petition describes what it means to be an educated person in the 215t
Century, including:

O Goals that are consistent with enabling all pupils to become or remain
self-motivated, competent, lifelong learners (Petition, pgs. 26, 38-40);

0 Lists of academic skills and qualities important for an educated person
(Petition, pgs. 28, 38); and

0 Lists of general nonacademic skills and qualities important for an
educated person (Petition, p. 38-40).

e The Petition describes how learning best occurs and instructional design,
including:

0 A framework for instructional design that is aligned with the needs of
the students that the charter has identified as its target student
population (Petition, pgs. 38-43);

0 A description of the learning setting (e.g., site-based matriculation,
independent study, tech-based) (Petition p. 11, 39-40);

0 Instructional approaches and strategies the school will use that will
enable the school’s students, including subgroup populations such as
English language learners (ELL), to master the content standards for
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the core curriculum areas adopted by the State Board of Education
(Petition, pgs. 33-36, 47-65);
A process for developing or adopting curriculum and teaching methods
(Petition, pgs. 47-65);
How the charter school will identify and meet the needs of students
with disabilities, ELL students, students who are achieving substantially
above or below grade level expectations, and other special student
populations (note: The description demonstrates understanding of the
likely ELL population and includes a sound approach to identify and
meet the needs of subgroup populations) (Petition, pgs. 70-85);
A special education plan including, but not limited to, the means by
which the charter school will comply with the provisions of Education
Code section 47641 (Petition, pgs. 79-85); and
A plan for professional development that aligns with the charter
school’s proposed program (Petition, pgs. 66-68).

e The Petition describes its materials and technology, including:

(0]

o

How staff’s and students’ technology resources are aligned with the
instructional program and meet state assessment requirements
(Petition, p. 70-71);

What materials are available to students (Petition, pgs. 39, 70-71);
student-to-computer ratio appears reasonable (Petition, p. 70-71);
A description or plan for providing adaptive technology for special
education students (Petition, pgs. 70, 79-83); and

Common Core technology standards, digital assessments, and
professional learning (Petition, p. 66-68, 70-71).

o The Petition describes annual goals, including:

(0]

(0]

Annual goals for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified
pursuant to Education Code Section 52052 that apply to the grade
levels served (Petition, pgs. 91-110);

Goals tied to state priorities listed in Education Code Section 52060(d)
and LCAP, as appropriate (additional priorities related to unique
aspects of the proposed charter school program include goals and
specific annual actions) (Petition, pgs. 91-110); and

Specific annual actions designed to achieve the stated goals (Petition,
pgs. 99-110).

e The Petition describes requirements for Charter Schools serving high school
students, including:

o

(0}

How parents will be informed about the transferability of courses to
other public high schools (Petition, p. 47);

How parents will be informed about the eligibility of courses to meet
college entrance requirements (Petition, pgs. 68-69);
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0 How each student will receive information on how to complete and
submit the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) (Petition,
p.71);

0 How the exit outcomes will align with mission, curriculum and
assessments (Petition, pgs. 86, 90, 91);

0 Information indicating that all students will have the opportunity to
take courses that meet the University of California’s A-G requirements
(Petition, pgs. 22-23, 47); and

0 Planned graduation requirements and Western Association of Schools
and Colleges accreditations (Petition, pgs. 17, 47-68).

Element B: Measurable Student Outcomes

Every charter petition must identify annual goals, specific annual actions to achieve
those goals, measurable pupil outcomes and methods of measuring progress in meeting
pupil outcomes. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(B-C).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes measurable pupil outcomes for all groups, i.e., specific
assessment methods or tools listed for each exit outcome. (Petition, pgs. 89-110)

The Petition describes a description of how pupil outcomes align with the state priorities
consistent with the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), as described in
Education Code section 52060(d), that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of
the program. (Petition, pgs. 89-110)

The Petition describes specific annual actions designed to achieve the stated goals.
(Petition, pgs. 91-109)

The Petition describes additional school priorities related to unique aspects of the
proposed charter school program, with goals and specific annual actions. (Petition, pgs.

109-110)

The Petition describes a description of how pupil outcomes will address state content
and performance standards in core academic areas. (Petition, pgs. 91-110)

The Petition describes a description of how exit outcomes align with the mission and
instructional design of the program. (Petition, pgs. 90-110)

The Petition describes a description or affirmation that benchmark skills and specific
classroom-level skills will be developed. (Petition, pgs. 89-91)
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The Petition discusses school wide student performance goals students will achieve over
a given period of time, including attendance levels, dropout rates, and graduation rate
goals. (Petition, pgs. 91-109)

Element C: Student Progress Measurement

Every charter petition must identify annual goals, specific annual actions to achieve
those goals, measurable pupil outcomes and methods of measuring progress in meeting
pupil outcomes. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(B-C).

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary

The Petition describes assessment tools that include required state and federal
assessments (e.g., SBAC, ELPAC) for purposes of accountability. (Petition, pgs. 89, 111-
114)

The Petition describes at least one assessment method or tool listed for each of the exit
assessments. (Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition describes a variety of alternative assessment tools, including tools that use
objective means of assessment consistent with the measurable pupil outcomes.
(Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition generally describes how chosen assessments are appropriate for standards
and skills the charter school seeks to measure. (Petition, pgs. 111-114)

The Petition describes a plan for collecting, analyzing, using and reporting student and

school performance to charter school staff and to students’ parents and guardians, and
for using the data continually to monitor and improve the charter school’s educational

program. (Petition, pgs. 87-91 and 111-114)

Element D: Governance Structure

A Petition must provide a reasonably comprehensive description of the Charter School’s
governance structure, including the process for parental involvement. (Ed. Code, §
47605 (c)(5)(D))

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition indicates that “New Pacific School will operate autonomously from the
District with the exception of the supervisory oversight as required by statute and other
contracted services as negotiated between the District and PCl,” and “the PCl Board is
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the governing body that will oversee the Charter School, with a Director at the Charter
School overseeing day-to-day operations.” (Petition, p. 115).

The Petition describes evidence of PCl’s incorporation as a nonprofit benefit
corporation. (Petition, p. 115, 176)

The Petition provides the names and relevant qualifications of all persons whom the
Petitioner nominates to serve on the governing body of the charter school. (Petition, p.
116-117)

The Petition references a set of bylaws and basic policies. (Petition, p. 7, 75, 117-118,
122, 176 and Appendix 4: PCl Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws)

The Petition describes evidence that the organization and design of the governance
structure reflect the following:
e Aseriousness of purpose to ensure that the charter will become and remain a
viable enterprise.
e An understanding and assurance of compliance with open meeting
requirements.
(Petition, pgs. 8-10 and 115-118)

The Petition generally describes the key features of governing structure including, but
not limited to, the following:

e The Petition generally describes a delineation of roles and responsibilities of the
governing board and staff. (Petition, pgs. 117-125)

e The Petition generally describes the interaction between the Charter School and
the charter management organization with regard to budget, expenditures,
personnel, and daily operations. (Petition, p.118-121 and 172-175)

e The Petition generally describes the purpose and composition of board, board
committees and/or advisory councils. (Petition, pgs. 116-118 and 125-127)

e The Petition describes the method for selection of replacement board members.
(Petition, p. 119)

The Petition generally describes a process for involvement or input of parents and
guardians in the governance of the charter school, including the following:
e Adelineation of roles and responsibilities of parent councils, advisory committee
and other supporting groups. (Petition, p. 125-127)
e A description that it shall notify the parents and guardians of applicant pupils
and currently enrolled pupils that parental involvement is not a requirement for
acceptance to or continuation at the charter school. (Petition, p. 9)

The Petition generally references specific policies and internal controls that are meant
to prevent fraud, embezzlement and conflict of interest, and that ensure the

10
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implementation and monitoring of those policies. (Petition, p. 118, 174, 175 and
Appendix 5: Conflict of Interest Code)

During the Capacity Interview, Petitioners communicated specific trainings and
professional development that the board takes advantage of. (Petition, p. 118)

The Petition generally describes other important legal or operational relationships
between the charter school and granting agency. (Petition, p. 168, 172, 176-177)

Element E: Employee Qualifications
The Petition should identify the qualifications required of individuals who will work at
the Charter School. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(E).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes core and college preparatory teachers, and affirms all teachers
will hold appropriate Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificates, per Education
Code 47605.4. (Petition, p. 9, 130)

The Petition describes those positions that the charter school regards as key and for
which it specifies additional qualifications, responsibilities and accountability. (Petition,
pgs. 129-133)

The Petition describes general qualifications for the various categories of employees
(e.g., other administrative, instructional support, non-instructional support). These
qualifications appear sufficient to ensure the health and safety of the charter school’s
faculty, staff and students; however, it is unclear whether an administrative credential
will be required for the school principal or other administrators with responsibility for
evaluating certificated employees and expelling students, even if such a credential is
not strictly required by law. (Petition, pgs. 129-133)

The Petition describes a plan for recruitment, selection, development and evaluation of
staff and charter school leaders. (Petition, p. 133-135)

The Petition describes roles and lines of authority for board and management positions.
(Petition, pgs. 120- 125 and Appendix 4: PCI Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws)

The Petition does not specify the teacher to student ratio, stating “student to staff
ratios will be low” (Petition, p. 27). The budget provides for 3 teachers and 4 teacher
assistants to 100 students (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents).

Element F: Health and Safety Procedures

Pursuant to Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(F), the Petition must include the
procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of students and
staff.

11
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Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition discusses a comprehensive charter school safety plan, provides a safety
plan, and gives assurance that the plan will be updated annually and staff shall receive
training in emergency response, including appropriate first responder training or its
equivalent. (Petition, p. 136-140 and Appendix 8: Safety Plan)

The Petition makes assurances that the charter school will require a criminal
background clearance report and proof of tuberculosis examination prior to
employment. (Petition, p. 136)

The Petition makes assurances that the charter school will adopt procedures to prevent
acts of bullying and cyberbullying, and make the California Department of Education
(CDE) online training module available to all employees who interact with students.
(Petition, p. 140)

The Petition discusses that charter schools with grades 7-12 will adopt a suicide
prevention policy. (Petition, p. 137)

The Petition sufficiently describes health and safety practices for students and staff.
(Petition, pgs. 85, 136-140)

The Petition describes assurances regarding compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA). (Petition, p. 8)

Element G: Racial and Ethnic Balance

Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(G) requires that a charter petition include a
reasonably comprehensive description of the means by which the school will achieve a
racial and ethnic balance among its students that is reflective of the general population
residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the charter authorizer to which the charter
petition is submitted.

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition generally describes practices and policies the charter school will design and
implement to attract a diverse applicant pool and enroliment that reflects the general
population, including special populations that reside within the district’s territorial
jurisdiction. (Petition, pgs. 141-145)
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The Petition describes practices and policies that appear tailored to achieve racial and
ethnic balance. (Petition, p. 141-145)

The Petition describes outreach strategies, which identify the targeted groups for
achieving balance. (Petition, p. 141)

The Petition indicated recruitment materials would be published in Spanish, but there
was no mention of printing recruitment materials in Punjabi even though a significant
portion of the population in the surrounding geographic area speaks Punjabi. (Petition,
P. 141). If the Petition is approved, a memorandum of understanding with the Charter
School should include the Charter School’s assurance it will print student recruitment
and other materials in the languages of all significant sub populations (15% and greater).

Element H: Admissions Policies and Procedures
The Petition must describe its admissions requirements, if applicable, pursuant to
Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(H).

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes the following assurances: The charter school shall be
nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other
operations, shall not charge tuition, and shall not discriminate against a pupil on the
basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or
ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including
immigration status, equal rights, and opportunities in the educational institutions of the
state. (Petition p. 8, 129, 142)

The Petition describes a clear description of admission policies that satisfy legal
requirements in the staff’s assessment. (Petition, p. 142-145)

The Petition provides a description of how students in the community will be informed
and given an equal opportunity to attend the charter school. (Petition, p. 141)

The Petition describes proposed admissions and enrollment requirements, process and
timeline, which include the following:
e Information to be collected through the interest form, application form, and/or
enrollment form. (Petition, pgs. 143)
e Assurances that enrollment preferences will not require mandatory parent
volunteer hours as a criteria for admission. (Petition, pg. 9, 142)

The Petition describes the public random drawing processes that comply with state and
federal laws. (Petition, pgs. 143-145)
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The Petition does not give any indication that preferences, if given, will negatively
impact the racial, ethnic and unduplicated pupil balance the charter school strives to
reflect. (Petition, pgs. 8-9, 143-144)

Element I: Annual Independent Financial Audits

The Petition must describe the manner in which annual, independent, financial audits
will be conducted, which will employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the
manner in which audit exceptions and deficiencies will be resolved to the satisfaction of
the chartering authority. (Ed. Code, § 47605 (c)(5)(l).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In Summary:

The Petition describes the manner in which the audit will be conducted.
(Petition, p. 146)

The Petition describes procedures to select and retain an independent auditor,
including:
e Qualifications that will be used for the selection of an independent auditor,

e Assurance that the auditor will have experience in education finance.
(Petition, p. 146)

The Petition describes assurance that the annual audit will employ generally
accepted accounting principles. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition describes scope and timing of audit, as well as distribution of completed
audit to authorizer, county office, State Controller, California Department of
Education, and/or other agencies required by law. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition describes a process and timeline that the charter school will follow to
address any audit findings and/or resolve audit exceptions. (Petition, pg. 146)

The Petition indicates that “the Charter School will inform the District of any
outstanding exceptions or deficiencies at the time of audit submission and how they
are resolved to the satisfaction of the District”. The Petition further adds that “any
disputes regarding the resolution of audit exceptions and deficiencies will be
referred to the dispute resolution process referenced in Element N of the petition,
or if applicable, referred to the Education Audit Appeals Panel process in compliance
with Education Code Section 41344.(Petition, p. 146) However, the Petition states in
Element N that “New Pacific School recognizes that it cannot bind the District to a
dispute resolution procedure to which the District does not agree. (Petition, p. 168).
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Such a proposed resolution does not necessarily ensure the authorizer’s satisfaction.
(Petition, pg. 146.)

The Petition describes who is responsible for contracting with and overseeing the
independent audit. (Petition, pg. 146)

Element J: Suspension/Expulsion Policies and Procedures

Education Code section 47605(c)(5)(J) requires that the petition contain a reasonably
comprehensive description of the procedures by which pupils can be suspended or
expelled from the charter school for disciplinary reasons, or otherwise involuntarily
removed from the charter school for any reason. “Involuntarily removal” includes
disenrollment, dismissal, and transfer. Petitions must also describe, at a minimum, “how
the charter school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and
substantive due process requirements.”

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes a process for suspensions of fewer than 10 days, including the
following:

e Oral or written notice of the charges against the pupil.

e If the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence that supports the
charges.

e How an opportunity will be provided for the pupil to present a rebuttal to the
charges.

(Petition, p. 155-156)
The Petition describes a process for suspensions of 10 days or more and all other
expulsions for disciplinary reasons, including the following:

e Timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of the
pupil’s basic rights.

e A process of hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number
of days, and to which the pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an
advocate.

(Petition, p.157-158)
The Petition describes a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by
the charter school for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been
provided with written notice, and that ensures the written notice shall be in the native
language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian. (Petition, p. 149)

The Petition describes an understanding of relevant laws protecting constitutional rights
of students.
e Provides for due process for all students and demonstrates understanding of the
rights of students with disabilities, in regard to suspension, expulsion and
involuntary dismissal. (Petition, pgs. 148-149)
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Explanation of how authorizer may be notified of disciplinary matters. (Petition, p. 160)

Element K: Staff Retirement System

The Petition must describe the manner in which staff members of the Charter School
will be covered by the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’
Retirement System, or federal social security. (Ed. Code, § 47605(c)(5)(K).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes a statement of what retirement options will be offered to
employees: State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) (if STRS, then all teachers must
participate); Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS); and Social Security.
(Petition, pg. 165)

The Petition describes whether and how retirement will be offered.
(Petition, pg. 134, 165)

The Petition describes who is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate
arrangements for coverage have been made. (Petition, pg. 165)

Element L: Public School Attendance Alternatives

The Petition must describe the public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing
within the attendance area who choose not to attend the Charter School. (Ed. Code, §
47605 (c)(5)(L).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition discusses attendance alternatives for students who reside within the county
and choose not to attend the charter school. (Petition, pg. 166)

Element M: Post-employment Rights of Employees

The Petition must include the rights of the charter authorizer’s employee upon leaving
charter authorizer employment to work in the Charter School and any rights of return to
the charter authorizer after employment at the Charter School. (Ed. Code, §
47605(c)(5)(M).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes school district employees’ return to employment rights, including
the following:
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e Whether, and how staff may resume employment within the district or
authorizer. (Petition, pg. 167)
The potential ability to transfer sick and/or vacation leave to and from the charter
school and another LEA was referenced in the Petition. Staff was uncertain of
employees’ ability to transfer leave. Petitioners clarified in the capacity interview that
employees are able to transfer sick leave. (Petition, pg. 167)

Element N: Dispute Resolution Procedures

The Petition must include the procedures to be followed by the Charter School and the
SCOE to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. (Ed. Code, §
47605(c)(5)(N).)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes a process for the charter and the authorizer to settle disputes
related to the provisions of the charter. (Petition, pg. 168-169)

The Petition references that PCl policies and procedures will be used by the Charter to
resolve internal complaints and disputes (Petition, pgs. 139, 168).
e Includes a reference to the Uniform Complaint procedures and a description of
how this process is communicated to parents, staff and the community.
(Petition, pg. 168)

The Petition describes an acknowledgement that, except for disputes between the
chartering authority and the charter school, all disputes involving the charter school
shall be resolved by the charter school according to the charter school’s own internal
policies. (Petition, pg. 168). However, nowhere are the policies/procedures included
with the Petition.

The Petition describes a statement that if any such dispute concerns facts or
circumstances that may be cause for revocation of the charter, the authorizer shall not
be obligated by the terms of the dispute resolution process as a precondition to
revocation. (Petition, pg. 169)

Element O: Closure Procedures
The Petition must include the procedures to be used if the Charter School closes. (Ed.
Code, § 47605(c)(5)(0))

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes procedures to be used if the charter school closes, including the
following:
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e Who is the responsible entity or person that will conduct closure-related
activities?

e How the charter will communicate the closure to students, parents and
guardians, the authorizing entity, the county office of education, the charter’s
special education local plan area, the retirement systems in which the school’s
employees participate, and the California Department of Education.

e Who will conduct the process for the completion and submission of final
financial reports, expenditure reports for entitlement grants, and the filing of
any required final expenditure and performance reports?

(Petition, pp. 170-171)

The Petition describes the maintenance plan for pupil records and the manner in
which parents and guardians may obtain copies of pupil records if the charter school
closes, including how information will be preserved and transferred. (Petition, pp.
170-171)

The Petition describes a process for how the charter will ensure a final audit of the
charter school.

e An assurance the audit will be conducted within six months of closure.

e The disposition of the charter school’s assets.

e Plans for disposing net assets including at least the following:

The disposition of all assets of the charter, including cash and accounts
receivable and an inventory of property, equipment and other items of
material value.

An accounting of all liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction
in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans,
and unpaid staff compensation.

An assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due
to the charter.

Process for the return of any donated materials and property in accordance
with any conditions established when the donation of such materials or
property was accepted.

(Petition, pp. 170 -171)

The Petition describes he transfer and maintenance of personnel records in
accordance with applicable law. (Petition, pp. 170 -171)

Required Supplemental Criteria

Financial and Administrative Plan

Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

18

358



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 256 of 777

The Petition describes a first year operational budget, including:
e Annual revenues and expenditures clearly identified by source. Appendix 7: Budget
and Financial Documents)

Petitioner has LCAP goals and actions that seem to be aligned with their budget;
ideally, the Petition would reflect further assumptions to strengthen the alignment
verification. (Petition, pgs. 91-109 and Appendix 7: Budget and Financial
Documentation). During the Capacity interview, petitioners described their
alignment of goals with the budget. However, Petitioners should provide a clear
written description of the alignment of LCAP expenditures with their budget.

The Petition describes financial projections that include a clear description of
planning assumptions. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents -)

The Petition describes start-up costs with a reasonable allocation for most major
start-up costs. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The Petition describes cash flow projections for first three years with a monthly
projection of revenue receipts in line with local, state and federal funding
disbursements. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)

The Petition describes structure for administrative services and operations (Petition,
p. 175-176)

Back Office Providers
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes the name of the back office provider and a description of support
used by the charter. (Petition, p. 175)

Charter Management Organization
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:
The Petition describes the name and relationship of PCl to charter school, along with
other relevant details. (Petition, pgs. 173-175)

Facilities: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(h)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition generally describes the type and the location of the charter school facility
or facilities that the Petitioner proposes to operate, even though it does not identify the
precise location it will operate. (Petition, pgs. 29, 175)
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The Petition generally describes current and projected availability of facilities but does
not presently specify where the Charter School proposes to locate, or specifically what
facilities will be used as that process remains underway with the Charter School’s
realtor. (Petition, p. 175) The Petition includes
e Assurances of legal compliance with all health and safety, ADA, and applicable
building codes. (Petition, p. 140, 176)
e Adequate budget for anticipated costs, including renovation, rent, maintenance
and utilities. (Appendix 7: Budget and Financial Documents)
e Assurance that the facilities shall be accessible for all students with disabilities
(Petition, p. 79)

The Petition described that the Charter School may apply for Proposition 39 facilities
(Petition, p. 176)

Impact Statement: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(h)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition discusses an anticipated operational memorandum of understanding
between the authorizer and charter school, and further discusses potential civil liability
effects, upon the school and the authorizer. (Petition, p. 172, 176)

Community Impact: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(c)(7)
Staff have concluded that this portion of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

The Petition adequately described a program that Staff has determined does not reflect
that it will duplicate a program currently offered by the District, within the meaning of
Education Code section 47605(c)(7), nor is there evidence it will it substantially
undermine existing school district services, academic offerings, or program offerings.
(Petition, pgs. 26-114)

Special Education: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47641(a) and Education Code §
47646
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition sufficiently describes the school’s special education structure in detail,
including discussion of provision of services under the IDEA, Section 504, special
education staffing, responses to requests for assessments, identification and referral,
the IEP process, student placement, addressing due process and parent concerns, and
more. (Petition, p. 74, 79-85)
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The Charter Petition includes evidence that the school has consulted with, and will
become a member of, the El Dorado Charter SELPA. (Appendix 9: Letter from EDCOE
SELPA)

The Petition includes the following assurances:
e The charter will comply with all provisions of IDEA. (Petition, p.79)
e Discusses admission based on disability or lack of available services. (Petition, pgs.
82,142-143)
e Student study team process will be implemented. (Petition, p.73-74)

e Students qualifying for Section 504 services will receive such services. (Petition, p
84-85.)

Required Declaration
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be
deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school. (Petition,
p. 8)

Affirmations: Evaluation Criteria Education Code § 47605(e)
Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is reasonably comprehensive.

In summary:

The Petition describes affirmations that:

e The school will be nonsectarian in its:

- Programs

- Admission policies

- Employment practices

- All other operations
(Petition, p. 8, 129, 142)

e The school shall not charge tuition. (Petition, p. 8, 142)

e The school shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of disability, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate
crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the California Penal Code. (Petition, p. 8, 129,
142)

e Admission to a charter school shall not be determined according to the place of
residence of the pupil, or of the pupil’s parent or legal guardian, within this state,
except that an existing public school converting partially or entirely to a charter
school under this part shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference
to pupils who reside within the former attendance area of that public school.
(Petition, p.8, 142)
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e The charter school shall admit all pupils who wish to attend the charter school.
(Petition, p. 8, 143)
e The school will comply with federal, state and local laws as required for charter
schools. (Petition, p. 8-10)

Alternative Education Criteria: Education Code § 58500 — 58512

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is not applicable.

Independent Study Criteria: (5 Year Moratorium)

Staff have concluded that this element of the Petition is not applicable.

6. Does the Petition contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall
be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school
for purposes of Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title
1 of the Government Code. (Education Code § 47605(b))?

- Yes. Staff have determined that the Petition contains the required
declaration.

In Summary:

The declaration is found on page 8 of the Petition.

7. Is the charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire
community in which the school is proposing to locate?

- No. Staff have determined the Charter School is not demonstrably unlikely
to serve the interests of the entire community in which it is proposing to
operate.

In summary:

e The Petition and associated documents do not support a finding that the
proposed Charter School would substantially undermine existing services,
academic offerings, or programmatic offerings of the school district in which
it is proposing to locate.

e The Petition and associated documents do not support a finding that the
proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered within
the local school district, within the meaning of Education Code §
47605(c)(7).

8. Whether the school district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the
proposed charter school?
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None of the statutory criteria are present indicating the school district is
not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school,
within the meaning of Education Code § 47605(c)(8).

In summary:

The District does not have a qualified interim certification pursuant to
Section 42131 and the county superintendent of schools, in consultation with
the County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, has not
certified that approving the charter school would result in the school district
having a negative interim certification pursuant to Section 42131;

The District does not have a negative interim certification pursuant to
Section 42131; and

The District is not under state receivership.

Evidence for denying the Petition.

From Staff’s analysis, no findings specific to the particular Petition were identified
that rose to the level of justifying denial of the Petition. However, several deficient

items are noted in this staff report and should be resolved through an operational

Memorandum of Understanding and other oversight measures. These items

include:

a.
b.

Lack of more precise facilities information, including specific address;

Lack of inclusion of dispute resolution policy/procedures for internal conflict
referenced in the petition;

Ambiguity in language following assurance that Charter School will resolve
any audit deficiencies to the satisfaction of the authorizer;

While goals and actions of the Charter School’s LCAP are present in the
petition, as well as budget expenditures that could achieve their stated goals
and actions, Petitioners lack a clear description of the correlation between
their goals and budget.

Lack of assurance that recruitment materials will be printed in all languages
that are identified as the primary language spoken by 15% or more of
families within the District’s boundaries in order to achieve a racial and
ethnic balance.

Staff Recommendation

Based on Staff’s careful review of the Petition, it is recommended that the County Board
adopt the above findings as its own, and:

1. Approve the Petition submitted by the Charter School, as Staff have concluded that
the Petition meets the requirements for approval pursuant to Education Code
section 47605; and

As a condition of approval, require the Charter School, within 45 days of approval,

to:
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a. Execute a Memorandum of Understanding addressing the items noted in
Section 9 (a)-(e) of this staff report; and
b. Provide documentation verifying purchase or lease of Charter School
facilities, including the precise location for said facilities.
c. Make changes throughout the Petition as needed to reflect the County
Board as authorizer.
3. Approve any admissions preferences set forth in the Petition.
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Ifémflc
CSchool

DECEMBER 6, 2022
Via Email
tomr@sutter.k12.ca.us
Tom Reusser, Superintendent
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
970 Klamath Lane
Yuba City, California 95993

RE: Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding New Pacific School - Yuba City Petition
Dear Superintendent Reusser,

Pacific Charter Institute ("PCI"), which proposed to operate New Pacific School - Yuba City (“New
Pacific School” or “NPS"), is in receipt of the Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact Regarding
New Pacific School - Yuba City Petition. New Pacific School greatly appreciates the diligence
demonstrated by the Sutter County Office of Education ("County”) in its detailed staff report. We
concur that the charter merits approval.

New Pacific School writes to address the items identified by the County for inclusion in a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the parties. Below please find responses to each of
the identified items, in the order presented.

a. Lack of more precise facilities information, including specific address;

Due to negotiations and fiduciary responsibility with public funds, the NPS team / PCI negotiates in
closed session in accordance with the Brown Act. NPS is actively engaged in locating a facility and
will notify the County of the address as soon as it can be determined. We request flexibility from the
County on the timeline for finalizing a lease.

b. Lack of inclusion of dispute resolution policy/procedures for internal conflict referenced in
the petition;

Conflict resolution at New Pacific School Yuba City begins at the most local level between staff
members, If staff members and the supervisor are unable to resolve the conflict PCl human resources
engages with the parties for resolution. If human resources is unable to resolve the dispute the
executive director will evaluate the dispute and seek to resolve it. All staff members may go directly
to the executive director for resolution, but that person (s) may be referred to human resources. ALL

Page 1 of 6
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employees may address the PCI Board of Directors if they continue to seek resolution within PCI. The
PCI Board of Directors may resolve the issue and if it is unable to resolve the conflict it may contract
with an outside agency to seek resolution. NPS does not object to memorializing this process in an
MOU, however, we note that Education Code Section 47605(c){5)(N) does not require a description
of internal dispute resolution procedures in the charter petition.

<. Ambiguity in language following assurance that Charter School will resolve any audit
deficiencies to the satisfaction of the authorizer;

New Pacific School Yuba City will resolve all audit exceptions according to GAAP and state audit
guidelines. The state audit guidelines are consistent between charter schools and school districts.
This norm should satisfy Sutter County Office of Education as the regulations apply to all LEA's.
Education Code Section 47605 (c)(5)(I) mandates that any concerns around deficiencies in the annual
financial audit are resolved to the satisfaction of the charter authority. We do not have the unilateral
prerogative to determine what resolution would be to the satisfaction of the County, and we are open
to the County’s preference.

d. While goals and actions of the Charter School’s LCAP are present in the petition, as well as
budget expenditures that could achieve their stated goals and actions, Petitioners lack a clear
description of the correlation between their goals and budget.

Page 2 of 6
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State Priority Goal LCFF / LCAP amount
. . . All students will receive instruction from NOTES: Salaries, benefits
State P #1 - Basic Services ’
e Priority ] . teachers fully credentialed in the subject areas, teaching staff/para’s
The degree to which teachers are appropria tely will have sufficient access to standards-aligned | Payroll series
assigned (E.C. §44258.9) and fully credentialed, and | jpstructional materials, and will learn in a well- | $554,051
EVED maintained school environment.
pupil has sufficient access to standards-aligned
instructional materials (E.C. § 60119), and school
facilities are maintained in good repair (E.C.
§17002(d}}
State Priority #2— Implementation of Common | New Pacific School provides CCSS-based PD/ C‘_lm‘fum“; grogramds
Core State Standards instruction to all students, gg:)“(}’:;i_t::‘ LESUUETS
Implementation of State Standards (including CCSS New Pacific School provides differentiated Portions of 'i‘ravel &

and ELD} including how EL students will be enabled to
gain academic content knowledge and English
language proficiency

professional development focused on effective
instructional practices aligned to CCSS and

Conference, Instructional
Services

ELD. $10,000 plus 1% of 7000
New Pacific School uses interim and summative | gerjes
assessments aligned with CCSS.
State Priority #3— Parental Involvement and New Pacific School will provide opportunities for | Powerschool & social
Family Engagement parental involvement. Parents access all media )
A. Parental involvement and family engagement, information and data abgut their student Combinatu.m of 7000 and
including efforts the Charter School makes to seek ,ﬂ“"“g,h PowerSch(.)ol‘ suite of programs Payrfall. Serles: .
parent input in making decisions for the Charter including, but not I!mlted to, coursework, grades, Admlmst‘ra‘twe services
state and school-wide assessment results, & Advertising

School, and including how the Charter School will
promote parental participation in programs for
unduplicated pupils and individuals with exceptional

teacher communication, portfelio completion
and school updates. NPS will have staff that

1% of $12,287

needs. speaks Punjabi, Spanish, and other concentration | Principal Salary
languages in the Yuba City community. $165,377
- . Schoolwide intervention in language arts and 4000 series
State Priority #4— Student Achievement
v cmev mathematics with assigned appropriate CCSS- Portion of the $190,000

Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the
following, as applicable:

aligned instructional materials and practice
testing for familiarity with format and content,
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i Parents will be communicated in their home
language including Punjabi and Spanish
regarding their student plan and updates.
State Priority #5— Student Engagement New Pacific School will provide a safe, g:;::;ess & Admin
. rturing and engaging learning environment .
Pupil engagement, as measured by ali | TUTUT rning | 5000 series
of the following, as applicable: for all its §tudents and families, including those $171,618
of the various subgroups enrolled. ’
Support Staff
Payroll series included in
other priorities

State Priority #6— School Climate

School climate, as measured by all of
the following, as applicable:

A. Pupil suspension rates
B. Pupil expulsion rates

Other local measures, including surveys of pupils,
parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and
school connectedness

Students, parents, and teachers will be trained
and implement best practices. All counselors will
be promoting Leader in Me mental health
strategies for students. Charter School leadership
will work with teachers and families to manage
student behavior issues and concerns. Parents
will be communicated in their home language
including Punjabi and Spanish to support the
development of school climate and promote
Leader in Me principals.

Leader in Me training,
counseling, office staff,
Combination of 5000
Travel & Conference
$10,000 and 7000 PCI
Admin Travel &
Conference, PCI
Instructional Salaries &
Benefits

1% of $49,193.

Some overlap with other
priorities

State Priority #7— Course Access

The extent to which pupils have access to,
and are enrolled in, a broad course of
study, including programs and services
developed and provided te unduplicated
students (classified as EL, FRPM- eligible,
or foster youth; E.C. §42238.02) and
students with exceptional needs.

“Broad course of study” includes the following,
as applicable:
Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social
sciences, science, visual and performing arts,

Students, including all student subgroups and
students with exceptional needs, will have access
to and enroll in our academic and educational
program as outlined in the New Pacific School
charter document.

Combination of 4000 and
5000 series for
Instructional:

Portion of the $200,000

368

Page 4 of 6



Documentary Record from
Sutter County Board of Education

accs-jun23item03
Attachment 4
Page 266 of 777

health, physical education, and other as
prescribed by the governing board. (E.C.
§51210)

Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign
language(s), physical education, science,
mathematics, visual and performing arts, applied
arts, and career technical education. (E.C.

§51220(a)-(i))

State Priority #8—Other Student Outcomes
Pupil outcomes, if available, in the subject areas
described above in #7, as applicable.

All students will have access to CCSS language
arts programs, K-12.

All students will have access to small group,
one-on-one, and online intervention
programs.

All K-2 students will be assessed for literacy
and appropriate interventions will be
implemented for students not reading at
grade level.
Qualifying high school students will have access
to dual enrollment.

Combination of Payroli for
teachers/paras and 7000
series. Overlapped with
other state priorities.
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e. Lack of assurance that recruitment materials will be printed in all languages that are
identified as the primary language spoken by 15% or more of families within the district’s
boundaries in order to achieve a racial and ethnic balance.

New Pacific School Yuba City will hire staff or contract with experts to ensure populations greater
than 15% will be communicated with in their home language through written materials and direct
verbal communication. The languages will include Punjabi and Spanish. Further, a staff member will
be hired that will speak languages utilized by greater than 15% of NPS families. All recruitment
materials will be printed in English, Punjabi, Spanish, and any other language spoken by 15% or more
of NPS families within the district boundaries.

* * *

New Pacific School - Yuba City looks forward to its apportunity to meet with the County Board on
December 14%, We stand ready to negotiate a Memorandum of Understanding with County staff.
Please feel free to contact me at paul keefer@pacificcharters.org or 916-616-3958 if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

flarr—

Paul Keefer
Lead Petitioner

Page 6 of 6
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Agenda Item No. 10.0

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

BOARD MEETING DATE: _ January 18, 2023

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY:
X Action Brian Gault, Jessica Burrone,
Chris Reyna
Reports/Presentation
SUBMITTED BY:
Information

Brian Gault

Public Hearing

PRESENTING TO BOARD:
Other (specify)

Brian Gault

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

The locally provided data for the 2021-22 School Accountability Report Cards is prepared
per state requirements for Sutter County Special Education, Feather River Academy and
Pathways Charter Academy.

The February 1 deadline for posting the SARC is a legal statute with no extension allowed.
Based on this requirement, the Word templates presented tonight include all available
“data provided by LEA” (DPL). The California Department of Education will upload
remaining data fields (indicated by DPC) during the month of January. The completed
SARC will be presented at the February Board Meeting as an information item.
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62021-22

School Accountability Report Card Template
(Word Version)

(To be used to meet the state reporting requirement
by February 1, 2023)

Prepared by:
California Department of Education
Analysis, Measurement, and Accountability Reporting Division

Posted to the CDE Website:
December 2022

Contact:
SARC Team
sarc@cde.ca.gov

Important!

Please delete this page
before using the SARC template
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School Accountability Report Card
Reported Using Data from the
2021-22 School Year

California Department of Education

Sutter County Superintendent of School-
Special Education

Address: 970 Klamath Lane Yuba City, Ca. 95993 Phone: (530) 822-2911
Director: Jessica Burrone Grade Span: K-12™

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a
School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains information about the
condition and performance of each California public school. Under the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address state and
local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data
reported in the SARC.

> For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports,
see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sal.

> For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page
at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aallc/.

> For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community
members should contact the school principal or the district office.

DataQuest

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
https://dqg.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this school and
comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a
dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data, enroliment, high
school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English
learners).

California School Dashboard

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/
reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement system and provides
information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse
student population. The Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of
LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in
identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.
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Internet Access

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation may
be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available on a
workstation, and the ability to print documents.

Throughout this document, the letters DPL refer to data provided by the LEA,
and the letters DPC refer to data provided by the CDE.
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Entity Contact Information
District Name [DPC]
Phone Number [DPC]
Superintendent [DPC]
Email Address [DPC]
Website [DPC]

Table 2: School Contact Information (School Year 2022-23)

Entity Contact Information
School Name [DPC]
Street [DPC]
City, State, Zip [DPC]
Phone Number [DPC]
Principal [DPC]
Email Address [DPC]
Website [DPC]
gounty-Dlstrlct-SchooI (CDS) [DPC]
ode
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Table 3: School Description and Mission Statement (School Year 2022-23)
Mission Statement: Working Together for Student Success

Vision Statement:
We believe
» That all special education students can reach their highest possible standard of
achievement
» That special education students can become contributing members of our
community
» That special education programs will reflect only the finest in research-based
practices
» That ongoing staff development will focus on the refinement on instructional
practices that reflect the unique needs of our students
» That all special education activities will be meaningful, authentic, and engaging for
our students
» That all Sutter County Special Educators will be a model of excellence in their
field

The Special Education Department provides special education related services to
the 12 school districts and 3 charter schools within Sutter County for students from
age birth to 22 years. The Special Education department consists of approximately
170 staff members located throughout Sutter County who provide support to
students and families. In addition to providing specialized academic instruction,
speech and language, and school psychologist services to the eleven smaller
districts of Sutter County, Sutter County also provides intensive Special Education
support in a Special Day class setting in 32 classrooms on 17 different school sites
throughout Sutter County. These classrooms are located on district school sites.
These students require special education services in self-contained special day
classrooms to support their unique needs. For ages Birth to three, services include
the Infant Development Program that is provided within the home setting. For ages
Preschool-age 22, Special Day classroom programs are provided for students with
severe cognitive, physical and/or medical disabilities, students identified with
behavioral needs, and students identified with Autism. Specialized services include
the following: Speech and Language, Psychologist services, Nursing and Behavior.

The overarching goal of the Sutter County Special Education program is to assist
students in finding success and meeting their individual academic, functional,
life/work skills and social/emotional/behavior needs in order to provide them with the
skills they need in order to be successful in the future. Each student’s program is
uniquely designed to meet his or her goals. Students are all working toward either a
diploma or Certificate of Completion. If a student receives a diploma, this is given by
the student’s school of residence. Sutter County’s Adult Transition Program is for
students from their completion of high school program through age 22 and is
focused on working with students on their work and life transition goals.

Table 4: Student Enroliment by Grade Level (School Year 2021-22)
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Grade Level Number of Students

Kindergarten [DPC]
Grade 1 [DPC]
Grade 2 [DPC]
Grade 3 [DPC]
Grade 4 [DPC]
Grade 5 [DPC]
Grade 6 [DPC]
Grade 7 [DPC]
Grade 8 [DPC]
Grade 9 [DPC]
Grade 10 [DPC]
Grade 11 [DPC]
Grade 12 [DPC]
Total Enrollment [DPC]

377



accs-jun23item03

Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 275 of 777
Page 7 of 27
Table 5: Student Enroliment by Student Group (School Year 2021-22)
Student Group Percent of
Total Enroliment
Female [DPC]
Male [DPC]
Non-Binary [DPC]
American Indian or Alaska Native [DPC]
Asian [DPC]
Black or African American [DPC]
Filipino [DPC]
Hispanic or Latino [DPC]
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander [DPC]
Two or More Races [DPC]
White [DPC]
English Learners [DPC]
Foster Youth [DPC]
Homeless [DPC]
Migrant [DPC]
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged [DPC]
Students with Disabilities [DPC]

A. Conditions of Learning

State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic

(Priority 1):

e Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the

subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

¢ Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

e School facilities are maintained in good repair

378



accs-jun23item03

Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 276 of 777
Page 8 of 27
Table 6: Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2020-21)
Authorization/ School | School | District | District State State
Assignment Number | Percent | Number | Percent | Number | Percent
Fully (Preliminary or Clear)
Credentialed for Subject
and Student Placement [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
(properly assigned)
Intern Credential Holders
Properly Assigned [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Teachers Without
Credentials and
Misassignments [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
(“ineffective” under ESSA)
Credentialed Teachers
Assigned Out-of-Field [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
(“out-of-field” under ESSA)
Unknown [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Total Teaching Positions [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one
staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work
50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a position that an educator is

assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services

that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

Table 7: Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2021-22)

Authorization/ School | School | District | District State State
Assignment Number | Percent | Number | Percent | Number | Percent

Fully (Preliminary or Clear)
Credentialed for Subject
and Student Placement [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
(properly assigned)
Intern Credential Holders
Properly Assigned [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Teachers Without
Credentials and
Misassignments [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
(“ineffective” under ESSA)
Credentialed Teachers
Assigned Out-of-Field [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
(“out-of-field” under ESSA)
Unknown [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Total Teaching Positions [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one
staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work
50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a position that an educator is

assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services

that an educator is authorized to provide to students.
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Table 8: Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments
(considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22
Number Number
Permits and Waivers [DPC] [DPC]
Misassignments [DPC] [DPC]
Vacant Positions [DPC] [DPC]
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments [DPC] [DPC]
Table 9: Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field
(considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
Indicator 2020-21 2021-22
Number Number
Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver [DPC] [DPC]
Local Assignment Options [DPC] [DPC]
Total Out-of-Field Teachers [DPC] [DPC]
Table 10: Class Assignments
Indicator 2020-21 2021-22
Percent Percent
Misassignments for English Learners (a percentage of all
the classes with English learners taught by teachers that [DPC] [DPC]
are misassigned)
No credential, permit or authorization to teach (a
percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no [DPC] [DPC]
record of an authorization to teach)

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp.
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Table 11: Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional
Materials (School Year 2022-23)

Year and month in which the data were collected: September 2022

Instructional materials and textbooks are provided to students by the school districts
within the SELPA or by SCSOS. Textbook adoptions are completed by the school
district that hosts the SCSOS classroom and are utilized by the SCSOS classrooms.
SCSOS continues to purchase supplementary materials that align to the Common Core
and that meet individual student needs. SCSOS has created a library of
textbooks/materials that are available to new students when they enter throughout the
school year.

Subject Textbooks and From Most Percent
Other Recent Students
Instructional Adoption? Lacking Own
Materials/year of Assigned Copy
Adoption

Reading/Language Arts
Mathematics

Science

History-Social Science
Foreign Language
Health

Visual and Performing
Arts

Science Laboratory
Equipment (grades 9-12) N/A N/A 0

O OO0 |0O|lO0O|O

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Table 12: School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

SCSOS Regional Special Education Programs are located on multiple comprehensive
public school sites.
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Table 13: School Facility Good Repair Status This table will be “hidden” when the
Web Application is available, as it does not apply based on the statement provided in
able 12 above.

Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following:
e Determination of repair status for systems listed
e Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair
e The year and month in which the data were collected
e The rate for each system inspected
e The overall rating

Year and month of the most recent FIT report:  [DPL]

System Inspected Rate | Rate Rate Repair Needed and Action
Good | Fair Poor Taken or Planned

Systems: Gas Leaks,
Mechanical/HVAC, [DPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Sewer
Interior: Interior
Surfaces [DPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Cleanliness: Overall
Cleanliness, Pest/ [DPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Vermin Infestation
Electrical: Electrical [DPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Restrooms/Fountains:
Restrooms, Sinks/ [DPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Fountains
Safety: Fire Safety,
Hazardous Materials [OPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Structural: Structural
Damage, Roofs [DPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
External:
Playground/School
Grounds, Windows/ [OPL] | [DPL] | [DPL] [DPL]
Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Facility Rate
Year and month of the most recent FIT report: [DPL]

Table 14: Overall Rating This table will be “hidden” when the Web Application is
available, as it does not apply based on the statement provided in able 12 above.

Exemplary Good Fair Poor
[DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL]
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B.Pupil Outcomes

State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Achievement (Priority 4):

o Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance
and Progress [CAASPP] System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessments for students in the general education population and the California
Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible
students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common
Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive
disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student
participation requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in
grades three through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for
mathematics in grades three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five,
eight, and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

e College and Career Ready: The percentage of students who have successfully
completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of
California and the California State University, or career technical education
sequences or programs of study.

Table 15: CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven taking and completing a state-
administered assessment

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

Subject School | School | District | District State State
2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2021-22
English Language
Arts/Literacy N/A [DPC] N/A [DPC] N/A [DPC]
| (grades 3-8 and 11)
Mathematics
(grades 3-8 and 11) N/A [DPC] N/A [DPC] N/A [DPC]

Note: Where it was the most viable option, in 2020-21, LEAs were required to
administer the statewide summative assessment in ELA and mathematics and where a
statewide summative assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA, LEAs
were permitted to report results from a different assessment that meets the criteria
established by the California State Board of Education on March 16, 2021. The 2020
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21 data cells for the school, district, state have N/A values because these data are not
comparable to 2021-22 data.

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less,
either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical
accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e.,
achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who
participated in both assessments.
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for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2021-22)

Student Group Total Number Percent Percent Percent
Enroliment Tested Tested Not Met or
Tested Exceeded
All Students [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Female [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Male [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
American Indian or
Alaska Native [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Asian [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Black or African
American [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Filipino [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Hispanic or Latino [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Native Hawaiian or
Pacific Islander [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Two or More Races [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
White [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
English Learners [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Foster Youth [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Homeless [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Military [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Socioeconomically
Disadvantaged [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Students
Receiving Migrant
Education [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Services
Students with
Disabilities [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]

Note: ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the
CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of
students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved

Level 3—Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who
participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less,
either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical
accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test
whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the
number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The
achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.
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Table 17: CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group
for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2021-22)

Student Group Total Number Percent Percent Percent
Enroliment Tested Tested Not Met or
Tested Exceeded
All Students [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Female [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Male [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
American Indian or
Alaska Native [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Asian [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Black or African
American [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Filipino [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Hispanic or Latino [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Native Hawaiian or
Pacific Islander [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Two or More Races [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
White [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
English Learners [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Foster Youth [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Homeless [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Military [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Socioeconomically
Disadvantaged [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Students
Receiving Migrant
Education [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Services
Students with
Disabilities [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]

Note: Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment
and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of
students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved

Level 3—Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who

participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less,
either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical

accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test
whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the

number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The

achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.
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Table 18: CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

Grades Five, Eight, and High School

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

Subject School | School | District | District State State
2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2021-22

Science
(grades 5, 8 and [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
high school)

Note: Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded
the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e.,
achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who
participated in both assessments.

Note: For any 2020-21 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test
students using the CAASPP for Science.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test
whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the
number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The
achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.
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Student Group Total Number Percent Percent Percent
Enroliment Tested Tested Not Met or
Tested Exceeded
All Students [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Female [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Male [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
American Indian or
Alaska Native [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Asian [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Black or African
American [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Filipino [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Hispanic or Latino [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Native Hawaiian or
Pacific Islander [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Two or More Races [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
White [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
English Learners [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Foster Youth [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Homeless [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Military [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Socioeconomically
Disadvantaged [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Students
Receiving Migrant
Education [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]
Services
Students with
Disabilities [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC] [DPC]

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less,
either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical

accuracy or to protect student privacy.

388



accs-jun23item03
Documentary Record from Attachment 4
Sutter County Board of Education Page 286 of 777

Page 18 of 27

Table 20: Career Technical Education Programs (School Year 2021-22)

For students aged 16 and above, career education and transition goals are addressed
through each student's individualized education plan (IEP.) Students served by SCSOS
have the opportunity to participate in academic and Workability programs for the
development of career readiness skills. In addition to academic and Workability
programs, when appropriate, students participate in life skills programs that offer and
support the development of appropriate work behaviors, functional daily living skills,
communication skills, social-emotional skills, and career exploration.

Table 21: Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation
(School Year 2021-22)

Measure CTE Program
Participation
Number of Pupils Participating in CTE [DPC]

Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a

High School Diploma [DPC]
Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated
Between the School and Institutions of Postsecondary [DPC]

Education

Table 22: Course Enroliment/Completion of University of California (UC) and/or
California State University (CSU) Admission Requirements
UC/CSU Course Measure Percent
2021-22 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU
. [DPC]
Admission
2020-21 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required
for UC/CSU Admission

[DPC]

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil
Outcomes (Priority 8):

e Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education
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Table 23: California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2021-22)

Percentage of Students Participating in each of the five Fithess Components This table
will be “hidden” when the Web Application is available, as it does not apply because
students participate in Adaptive PE as determined per their Individualized Educational
Program.

Grade | Component 1: | Component 2: | Component 3: | Component 4: | Component 5:
Aerobic Abdominal Trunk Upper Body Flexibility
Capacity Strength and | Extensor and | Strength and
Endurance Strength and Endurance
Flexibility

5 [DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL]

7 [DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL]

9 [DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL] [DPL]

Note: Due to changes to the 2021-22 PFT administration, only participation results are
required for these five fithess areas.

Note: Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when
the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in
this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

C. Engagement

State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3):

o Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions
regarding the school district and at each school site

Table 24: Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2022-23)

Each student in the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools' Special Education
Programs is on an Individualized Education Program (IEP). The IEP process legally
requires students and parents to actively participant in the educational process.
Community Advisory Committee (CAC) is facilitated by the Sutter County SELPA to
engage parents in the process of supporting students with disabilities in the community,
as well as provide resources and information to parents and guardians. This group is
comprised of parents, community members and school representatives. School events
are also held where parents may become involved and participate.

State Priority: Pupil Engagement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the